(a)

(b)

A meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL will be
held in the CIVIC SUITE, PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S
STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on MONDAY, 17 OCTOBER
2011 at 7:00 PM and you are requested to attend for the transaction of
the following business:-

APOLOGIES
MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on
19th September 2011.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS
To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or

prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any
Agenda Item. Please see Notes 1 and 2 below.

ST. IVES WEST URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK (Pages 7 - 20)
To consider a report by the Head of Planning Services.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - DEFERRED ITEM (Pages 21 -
42)

Application to replace Planning Permission 05016580UT for
erection of foodstore, petrol filling station, residential
development, community facilities and associated highways and
infrastructure works, land at the corner of Stocking Fen Road and
St. Mary’s Road, Ramsey.

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - OTHER APPLICATIONS
Huntingdon (Pages 43 - 58)

Erection of a temporary building and creation of temporary car parking
— British Red Cross Society, Castle Moat Road

Holme (Pages 59 - 70)

Alterations to existing car park entrance and road access, erection of a
bird watchers hide, erection of a bird watchers hide, construction of
granular material footpath, culverting of two ditches to form crossing
point for grass footpath and construction of ditches as part of the
Great Fen Project, Halfway Farm, Long Drove

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development



(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9

Management).

APPLICATIONS REQUIRING REFERENCE TO PANEL

Sawtry (Pages 71 -78)

Variation to condition 10 of planning permission 0800897FUL for
erection of supermarket to: the use hereby permitted shall not be
open to customers outside the following times: 0700 to 22.00 Monday
to Sunday including Public/Bank Holidays, 20 Glatton Road.

Warboys (Pages 79 - 94)

Replacement dwelling, Rose Cottage, Puddock Road.

Brampton (Pages 95 - 104)

Retention of annexe as detached dwelling, 32 Cranfield Way
Godmanchester (Pages 105 - 128)

Proposed additional dwelling and garage, 4 The Close

Godmanchester (Pages 129 - 150)

Sub-division of existing dwelling and erection of extensions to form a
new 2 bed dwelling,13 Windsor Road

Huntingdon (Pages 151 - 160)

Variation of condition 1 of planning permission 0802184FUL to extend
temporary consent to December 2015 for continuation of use of
portable building as 2 classrooms, Huntingdonshire Regional College,
California Road

Little Paxton (Pages 161 - 172)

Removal of brick wall and replacement with 2.5m fence and trellis —
land off Bydand Lane and rear of Park Crescent

To consider reports by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

APPEAL DECISIONS (Pages 173 -178)

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

LATE REPRESENTATIONS

To be published on the website — www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk on




Dated this 7 day of October 2011

Head of Paid Service

Notes
1. A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a
greater extent than other people in the District —

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the
Councillor, their family or any person with whom they had a close
association;

(b)  a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner
and any company of which they are directors;

(c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest
in a class of securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or

(d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests.

2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the

public (who has knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard
the Member’s personal interest as being so significant that it is likely to
prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of the public interest.

Please contact Ms C Deller, Democratic Services Manager, Tel No. 01480
388007/e-mail: Christine.Deller@huntsdc.gov.uk. If you have a general
query on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence
from the meeting, or would like information on any decision taken by the
Panel. However, if you wish to speak at the Panel's meeting regarding a
particular Agenda Item please contact Jackie Holland - Tel No. 01480
388418 before 4.30pm on the Friday preceding this meeting.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be
directed towards the Contact Officer.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers
except during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business.

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website —
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy).

If you would like a translation of



Agenda/Minutes/Reports or would like a
large text version or an audio version
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and
we will try to accommodate your needs.

Emergency Procedure

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest
emergency exit.




29.

30.

31.

Agenda ltem 1

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PANEL held in the Civic Suite, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street,
Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on Monday, 19 September 2011.

PRESENT: Councillor P L E Bucknell = Chairman.

Councillors Mrs B E Boddington, G J Bull,
E R Butler, W T Clough, J J Dutton,
N J Guyatt, R B Howe, Mrs P JLongford,
P D Reeve, P A Swales, R G Tuplin,
P R Ward and R J West.

APOLOGY: An apology for absence from the meeting
was submitted on behalf of Councillor D B
Dew.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 15th August 2011
were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor N J Guyatt declared a personal and prejudicial interest in
Minute No. 31 (b) by virtue of his close acquaintance with the
applicants and left the room during discussion and voting thereon.

Councillor P L E Bucknell, Mrs B E Boddington, G J Bull, E R Butler,
W T Clough, J J Dutton, Mrs P J Longford, P A Swales, R G Tuplin
and R J West declared a personal interest in Minute No. 31 (b) by
virtue of an acquaintance with the applicants.

Councillor P D Reeve declared a personal interest in Minute No. 31
(d) by virtue of his membership of Ramsey Town Council.

Councillor N J Guyatt declared a personal and prejudicial interest in
Minute Nos. 31 (d) and (n) and left the room during discussion and
voting thereon.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

The Planning Service Manager (Development Management)
submitted reports (copies of which are appended in the Minute Book)
on applications for development to be determined by the Panel and
advised Members of further representations (details of which also are
appended in the Minute Book) which had been received in connection
therewith since the reports had been prepared. Whereupon, it was



RESOLVED

(a)

(b)

Erection of four dwellings to revised design
(retrospective) erection of double garage Plot 3.
Construction of roadside parking lay-by, plot 4
(part retrospective) garden shed and air source
heat pump plot 4, and placing of central heating oil
tanks on plots 1, 2 and 3, land adjacent 33
Thrapston Road, Spaldwick — 11/01444/FUL

(Mr S Martin, agent addressed the Panel on the
application).

that, on the expiry of the public consultation period and
after consultation with the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman of the Panel, the Head of Planning Services
be authorised to determine the application.

Erection of 2 eco houses, land north of Hillside
View, Somersham Road, St. lves — 11/01038/FUL

(Mr S Fisher, objector and Mr K Reynolds, applicant
addressed the Panel on the application.)

(See Minute No. 30 for Members’ interests.)

that the application be refused for the following reason

There is no essential functional rural need to justify the
provision of the proposed dwellings within this
countryside location. The sustainability credentials of
the design of the proposed dwelling, combined with the
highway benefits of the cessation of the existing
storage use of the site would fail to outweigh the
inherently unsustainable location of the site for housing
where opportunities to make necessary journeys by
foot, cycle or public transport are severely limited and
where future occupiers would be wholly reliant on
private transport access nearly all services,
employment and facilities. As such the proposal would
constitute an unsustainable form of residential
development and would lead to an unjustifiable
increase in new housing development within the
countryside, which would be incongruous in this
location and detrimental to the rural character and
appearance of the countryside, which should be
preserved for its own sake. For these reasons, the
proposal would be contrary to Planning Policy
Statement Nos 1, 3 and 7, policies ENV7 and SS1 of
the East of England Plan — Revision to the Regional
Spatial Strategy (May 2008), policies En25, H23 and
En17 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, policies
CS1 and CS3 of the adopted Huntingdonshire Local
Development Framework Core Strategy 2009 and
policies E1, E8 and P7 of the Huntingdonshire
Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010.



(c)

(d)

(e)

Variation of Condition 21 to allow for buses and
heavy commercial vehicles to use the
accessl/egress on planning permission 1100350573
for variation of conditions 2, 3, 10, 15 and 21 of
planning permission 1001717/FUL to the multi-
storey car park only. Conditions 4, 7, 8,12, 14 and
18 to be split between road, car park and multi-
storey car park, private car park, Chequers Way,
Huntingdon — 11/01290/S73

that, subject to the Local Highways Authority having no
objection to the proposal to vary condition 21 as
described in paragraphs 7.4 — 7.7 of the report, the
application be approved subject to those conditions
determined by the Panel in Minute No. 9 (c) of the
meeting held on 23rd May 2011.

[Following concern expressed by a Panel Member, the
Executive Councillor for Strategic Planning and
Housing, Councillor N J Guyatt undertook to pursue the
possibility of the installation of a pedestrian crossing
across Hartford Road in the vicinity of Saxongate with
Cambridgeshire County Council.]

Application to replace planning permission
05/01658/OUT for erection of food store, petrol
filling station, residential development, community
facilities and associated highways and
infrastructure works, found at the corner of
Stocking Fen Road and St. Mary’s Road, Ramsey —
11/01019/REP

(Councillor R Brown, Ramsey Town Council and Ms C
Renner, agent, addressed the Panel on the
application.)

(See Minute No. 30 for Members’ interests.)

that determination of the application be deferred to
enable the Head of Planning Services to investigate
land ownership issues to ascertain whether the
proposed housing development could be linked by
condition to the delivery of the employment permission
on land to the north-west of the Ramsey Northern
Gateway and to consider whether it would be possible
to introduce greater flexibility into the agreed planning
obligation in relation to highways.

Erection of four dwellings to replace three
dwellings previously approved, land at Waters
Edge, Elton Road, Wansford — 11/00874/FUL

that the application be approved subject to conditions
to be determined by the Head of Planning Services to
include those listed in paragraph 8 of the report now
submitted.



(9

(h)

(i)

Councillor N J Guyatt left the meeting at 8.55pm.

Erection of dwelling and garage, land at 4 The
Wilderness, St. Ives — 10/01410/0UT

(Mr Dawkins, objector and Mr M Page, agent
addressed the Panel on the application.)

that the application be approved subject to conditions
to be determined by the Head of Planning Services to
include those listed in paragraph 8 of the report now
submitted.

Variation of condition 9 of planning permission
04/02199/0UT to read: up to 10 dwellings may be
occupied until the junction with the A1123 and the
part of the highway which provides access to the
dwelling has been constructed in accordance with
the approved details — removal of Condition 13,
land adjacent Orchard House, Houghton Road, St.
Ives — 11/00293/S73

that the application be approved subject to the
imposition of the varied conditions, the re-imposition of
the other conditions modified as appropriate to take
account of details which have already been approved
and to a supplementary agreement under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to link the
new planning permission to the existing planning
obligation.

Erection of 14 residential units following
demolition of existing commercial buildings, south
part of Cromwell Works, New Road, St. Ilves -
11/01075/FUL and 11/01076/CAC

(i) that the Head of Legal and Democratic Services
be authorised to enter into an Agreement under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 to secure a contribution for primary
school places and off-site open space as detailed
in paragraphs 7.47 — 7.48 of the report now
submitted; and

(i)  that, subject to the completion of the Agreement
referred to in resolution (i) above, the application
be approved subject to conditions to be
determined by the Head of Planning Services as
set out in paragraph 8 of the report now
submitted.

Replacement of existing public telephone kiosk
with kiosk combining public telephone service and
ATM service, The Market Square, St. Neots -
11/01237/FUL



@)

(m)

(n)

that, subject to the receipt of an amended plan to
ensure that the proposed ATM is placed in a location
which would ensure CCTV coverage, the application
be approved subject to conditions to be determined by
the Head of Planning Services to include 02003 time
limit — 3 years and the installation of bollards in front of
the proposed ATM.

Erection of 3 four bed houses with double garages,
1 three bed house with parking space, double
garage to existing dwelling with walls, fences,
landscaping etc. land between 4 and 10 Ermine
Street, Great Stukeley — 11/01183/FUL

(i) that the Head of Legal and Democratic Services
be authorised to enter into an Agreement under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 to secure the provision of one
affordable housing unit; and

(i)  that, subject to the completion of the Agreement
referred to in resolution (i) above, the application
be approved subject to conditions to be
determined by the Head of Planning Services to
include those listed in paragraph 8 of the report
now submitted.

Erection of 2 dwellings, land south-west of the
Stables, Main Street, Upton — 11/01137/FUL

that, as the proposal had been withdrawn by the
applicant, the application be not determined.

Replacement dwelling, Rose Cottage, Puddock
Road, Warboys — 11/01037/FUL

that on the advice of the Planning Service Manager
(Development Management), determination of the
application be deferred to enable issues in relation to
flood risk and the visual impact of flood risk mitigation
measures to be assessed prior to consideration of the
application by the Panel.

Change of use from A1 (retaill to A3/A5
(restaurant/hot food takeaway). Replacement of
flat roof with pitched roof and conversion of garage
to store room with pitched roof over, 124 Main
Street, Yaxley — 11/00776/FUL

that determination of the application be deferred to
enable the applicant to undertake parking surveys in
the vicinity of the development site prior to
consideration of the application by the Panel.

Proposed alterations and change of use of the
existing farm buildings from agricultural to B1,
Manor Farm, Wennington Road, Wennington -
11/00505/FUL



32.

(Mr W Allwood, agent addressed the Panel on the
application.)

(See Minute No 30 for Members’ interests.)

that the application be approved subject to conditions
to be determined by the Head of Planning Services to
include those listed in paragraph 8 of the report now
submitted.

(0) Replacement of planning permission 08/01956/FUL
for the erection of 2 dwellings, land at 23 Gains
Lane, Great Gidding — 11/01001/REP

that the application be approved subject to conditions
to be determined by the Head of Planning Services to
include those listed in paragraph 8 of the report now
submitted.

APPEALS - PROGRESS

The Planning Service Manager (Development Management) advised
the Panel of the progress of various appeals against refusal of
planning permission by the District Council.

It was reported that the hearing in the case of four wind turbines at
Woolley Hill, Ellington would be held between 9 — 20th January 2012
and that for the four wind turbines on land at Bicton Industrial Park,
Kimbolton would convene on 20th/21st December having originally
commenced in August.

Referring to the appeal against development of 69 High Street,

Upwood, Councillors G J Bull and R B Howe indicated that they were
willing to support the Council’s written representations in the case.

Chairman



Agenda ltem 3

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 17™ OCTOBER 2011

ST IVES WEST URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK
(Report by Head of Planning Services)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 At its meeting on 15" August 2011 the Panel was encouraged by the Head of
Planning Services to consider the content of the Draft St lves West Urban
Design Framework (Draft UDF) in readiness for the next meeting when
Members would be formally invited to submit their observations on the
document.

1.2 The Draft UDF is available on the District Council’s website (follow Planning;
Urban Design; St Ives; St Ives West — Urban Design Framework) and Members
will be provided with a link to it by email prior to the Panel meeting.

1.3 The attached Cabinet report summarises the consultation themes and
recommends approval of the Draft UDF as planning guidance to inform the
development of Council policy and the consideration of potential planning
applications, subject to any appropriate comments from the Panel and the
Overview and Scrutiny (Environmental Wellbeing) Panel meeting on 12"

October 2011.
2, RECOMMENDATION
2.1 That the Panel agrees its formal observations on the Draft St lves West Urban

Design Framework for submission to Cabinet.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Draft St lves West Urban Design Framework August 2011
Adopted Huntingdonshire Core Strategy 2009

Contact Officer: Paul Bland — Planning Services Manager (Policy)

& 01480 388430



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 17 OCTOBER 2011

ST IVES WEST URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK
(Report by Head of Planning Services)
COMT
3R"° OCTOBER 2011

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (ENVIRONMENTAL WELLBEING)
12™ OCTOBER 2011

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL
17™ OCTOBER 2011

CABINET
20™ OCTOBER 2011

2.1

22

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this report is to update Cabinet regarding the recent
consultation about the draft St lves West Urban Design Framework
(Draft UDF) and, taking any appropriate additional comments from
the Overview and Scrutiny (Environmental Wellbeing) Panel and the
Development Management Panel into account, recommend its
approval as planning guidance to inform the development of Council
policy and the consideration of potential planning applications.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Draft UDF seeks to establish positive planning, urban design,
and development principles for the potential development at the St
Ives West area in line with the principles established in the adopted
Huntingdonshire Core Strategy (2009). In particular, the Draft UDF
provides a framework to enable the delivery of high quality new
housing and an opportunity to create a substantial area of accessible
strategic green space.

At the Core Strategy Examination in Public, an independent Planning
Inspector examined the principle of development in this area and
found it to be sound. The following extract from the Planning
Inspector’s report, dated 29™ July 2009, confirms the basis on which
the St Ives West area was selected from a range of other potential
development areas at St Ives:

3.44 St Ives is also a sustainable location for development and will
become more so with the introduction of the Cambridge Guided Bus
route. However, it has less opportunity for growth other than to the
west where it can link with other allocations and commitments. From
my visits | agree with the Council that separation between St Ives and
Houghton should be retained. There are also flood risks constraints
fo the south and south east making land unsuitable for housing
development, and land to the north and north-west is remote from the
town centre. Nevertheless 500 homes are proposed during the plan
period and 17ha is available for employment generation uses. If



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

3.1

there is any imbalance relating to inward and outward commuting
advantage can be taken of the guided bus provision between
Cambridge and St Ives.

The Draft UDF was subject to extensive public consultation between
29" July 2011 and 23™ September 2011. The consultation was well
publicised in the local press, on posters, and through the District
Council’'s website. Consultation exhibitions were held at Houghton
Pavilion and at St Ilves Library. These were staffed by Planning
Services officers on 1% and 2"* September 2011. As a result of the
consultation, 126 respondents made a range of comments on the
Draft UDF.

For planning purposes, within the adopted Core Strategy, the whole
St Ives West area is identified as a strategic direction of growth (area
for development) within the St Ives Spatial Planning Area. This is
not based on individual Parish or Town Council administrative
boundaries and was identified through rigorous testing of the most
appropriate locations for new development at the Core Strategy
Examination in Public. The draft UDF (page 2, paragraph 1.2) states
that the St lves West Area is partly within both St Ives Town Council
and Houghton and Wyton Parish Council boundaries.

The Draft UDF preferred option sets out urban design principles,
highlights the size of a green separation area between St Ives and
Houghton and Wyton, identifies a large area of accessible strategic
green space, and enables the introduction of additional measures to
strengthen conservation designations in the area. It is considered
that these principles will ensure that development at St lves West will
be of the highest quality and will not erode the character of Houghton
and Wyton.

With regard to the capacity of development at St Ives West, as
identified in the Draft UDF, some 300 dwellings would be within the
Parish boundary of Houghton and Wyton (including 90 dwellings at
Houghton Grange), and some 190 dwellings within the town
boundary of St lves. Two housing development sites in the vicinity at
Slepe Meadow and Green Acres (part of the former golf course) are
currently under construction and the combined capacity of these is
some 230 dwellings.

The Draft UDF preferred option does not promote development
related to the built-up area of Houghton village and a substantial
physical green separation area will remain, between Houghton and
Wyton and St Ives.

Other parallel processes are ongoing to formally allocate land through
the emerging Planning Proposals Development Plan Document. The
Draft UDF informs this emerging policy and provides a framework to
enable consideration of any planning applications that may be
submitted prior to the adoption of formal planning allocations.

CONSULTATION THEMES

A summary of the consultation comments and the District Council
responses can be found at Appendix 1. The main consultation
themes that emerged were as follows:



41

4.2

4.3

5.1

Principle, scale and location of proposed development
Traffic and transport

Maintaining the separation of St lves and Houghton
Affordable housing

Landscape and green space

Social infrastructure

Environmental infrastructure

Proposed shop

Process issues

CONCLUSIONS

A range of comments were received on the proposals set out in the
Draft UDF. It is clear that there is both support for and objection to
the proposals. The main objections derive from the residents of
Houghton Village and have been voiced by individuals, members of
the local SHED action group, Houghton and Wyton Parish Council,
and some of the Parish, District and County Councillors on the St Ives
West Working Group. In part, these objections have questioned the
legitimacy of the District Council’s approach to preparing the Draft
UDF, and also its legality.

On balance, it is considered that the principles set out in the Draft
UDF continue to establish a robust framework for the delivery of the
District Council’'s adopted Core Strategy policies for new housing in
this area. The Draft UDF secures the opportunity to create a high
quality of development set within a large and accessible area of
strategic green space, and a substantial separation area which will
continue to effectively separate the settlements of St lves and
Houghton and Wyton.

It is intended that the UDF will be used to inform the emerging
Planning Proposals Development Plan Document as it moves through
its formal processes through to adoption, and to provide a robust
framework for the consideration of any planning applications received
in the interim.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that Cabinet authorises the Executive Councillor
for Strategic Planning and Housing, in conjunction with the Chairman
of the Development Management Panel and the Head of Planning
Services, to finalise and approve the St Ives West Urban Design
Framework to inform Council policy and Development Management
decisions on potential planning applications.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Draft St lves West Urban Design Framework August 2011
Adopted Huntingdonshire Core Strategy 2009

Contact Officer:Paul Bland — Planning Services Manager (Policy) @ 01480

388430

10



APPENDIX 1

St Ives West Urban Design Framework

Summary of Consultation Comments and District Council Responses

Principle, scale and location of proposed development

Summary of Consultation Comments

District Council Responses

There is general support from respondents
from St Ives relating to the proposed
development, safeguarding the amenity of
those living along Westwood Road in
particular, and helping to link all of the
housing with the town centre. Conversely
there is general opposition  from
respondents from Houghton and Wyton

who consider this location to be
unsustainable and are opposed to the
principle, scale and location of the

proposed development.

The proposals would double the size of the
Houghton village.

There are some suggestions that the
development should instead take place to
the north and north east of the town, close
to the Rainbow Store and employment
areas, and some suggest a more limited
amount of development in this current
location.

Ribbon development will be created along
the A1123.

Support for principle of no development on
the 9" fairway of the former golf course and
for limited development in the garden of
The How. Conversely, representations
from the representations of specific
landowners seeking inclusion of the 9"
Fairway and related land within the Draft
UDF.

The driveway to the How and How Lodge
contribute greatly to character of this part of
Houghton Road and should be retained.

Some support for lower density housing on
western edge, others would like lower

The District Council must deliver its
adopted Core Strategy, which seeks to
provide 400 new dwellings on a sustainable
green field site to the west of St Ives. The
principle, scale and location are set out in
the Core Strategy. This Draft UDF has no
policy making role in relation to principle,
scale and location of development.

This is a western extension to the town of
St Ives, not an eastern extension to the
village of Houghton.

These options were dismissed at the Core
Strategy Examination.

This will not be ribbon development. It is
relatively compact and will be screened by
a deep landscape corridor along the A1123
and set within an extensive area of
strategic green space.

The Draft UDF seeks to protect the 9"
Fairway area as an important part of the
new area of accessible strategic green
space for the benefit of local communities.
Development on this area would therefore
be inappropriate.

The Draft UDF seeks to achieve this as a
positive outcome.

The deep landscaped buffer along
Houghton Road will effectively screen

11




density facing onto Houghton Road.

Concern that the housing should meet the
needs of all age groups, especially the
elderly.

The capacity of sewage and storm water
infrastructure will need to be upgraded for a
development of this size.

Some members of the St Ives West
Working Group propose that the number of
houses in the development area should be
reduced by approximately 200 and a
strategic gap created at ‘C’ on the plan at
page 15 of the UDF — this will also reduce
the traffic exiting on to the A1123 Houghton
Road.

development in this location.

This will be addressed in the finalised UDF
and in the consideration of future planning
applications.

Upgrades will be needed to the foul water
infrastructure. Storm  water will be
discharged by sustainable drainage
systems. This will be dealt with in
conjunction with relevant infrastructure
providers at planning application stage.

This proposal by some members of the
Working Group does not enable the
delivery of the adopted Core Strategy that
has already established the principle of the
scale of development for this area, as set
out in Core Strategy Policy CS2. The draft
UDF sets out a framework for delivering a
high quality development in this area, along
with large areas of accessible green space.
The principle of this scale of development,
and its potential impacts on the A1123, was
accepted by CCC as highways authority as
part of the EiP into the Core Strategy.
Such a departure from established
principles could lead to the District Council
having to determine a set of planning

applications for the full scale of
development established in the Core
Strategy that may fail to deliver the

qualities and facilities set out in the UDF.

Traffic and transport

Summary of Consultation Comments

District Council Responses

Not enough information provided relating to
whether the plans will improve, worsen or
be neutral for the existing traffic.

Concern over the effect of the development
on highways access to Houghton and
Wyton, and the A1123 is at full capacity.

It will be responsibility of developers to
undertake transport assessments of their
scheme at planning application stage. If
these are not to the satisfaction of the local
planning authority, then a planning
application could be refused.
Cambridgeshire County Council (CCC), as
highways authority, has been involved in
the development of the Draft UDF and has
commenced the provision of improved
highways infrastructure including a new
junction serving the area from the A1123.

The transport assessments that
accompany any future planning
applications may take into account and
enable improvements to highways access

12




Impact of cancellation of proposed new
A14, and the role of the A1123 as a relief
road when the A14 is closed due to
accidents.

Assertion by some that development will
increase traffic along A1123 by 30%.

Some concerns from new residents of
Green Leas development in St Ives about
the potential loop road and effect on their
amenity, not knowing about this when they
bought their houses this year, and some
concerns and alternative suggestions over
proposals to close off High Leys.

How can bus services be improved to be
more beneficial to residents of Houghton
and Wyton?

Useful contributions reminding HDC and
CCC of other junctions improvements that
will need to be made, such as Wyton on
the Hill / Houghton Road

to Houghton and Wyton. CCC has
confirmed that the A1123 is not at full
capacity.

The A1123 already partially serves this
function through dissipation and diversion
across the wider highways network. The
proposed development will not affect this
and the principles of development at this
location were accepted following the Core
Strategy EiP. Amended proposals are
being developed by the DfT and the HA for
improvements to the A14.

This is incorrect. A 30% increase in traffic
does not relate to this proposal. A 30%
increase is the CCC assessment of
increase over time other things being
equal.

The alternatives suggested by local
residents will be investigated in conjunction
with CCC as highways authority.

This will be investigated with CCC as
highways authority.

Welcome these suggestions, and will be
made clearer on the framework document.

Maintaining the separation of St lves and

Houghton

Summary of Consultation Comments

District Council Responses

Concern from those in Houghton and
Wyton about green separation between St
Ives and Houghton and Wyton, and the
village and town merging.

Concern that HDC is proposing to build on
strategic green space.

Concern that part of this development will

They will not merge. There is a significant
green separation between the two
settlements west of Houghton Grange.
There will also be a significant green
backdrop along Houghton Road, and this
will provide a softer edge along this road.
The whole development will also be set
within an accessible area of strategic green
infrastructure. Conservation designations
within these areas will be strengthened.

To the contrary, the District Council is
seeking to create a large accessible area of
strategic green infrastructure as part of the
wider community benefit of this proposal.

For planning purposes, the scale and

13




lie within Houghton and Wyton, therefore
not separating the town and village, and
land is precious to people of Houghton and
Wyton.

Concern that proposed green gap in the
grounds of Houghton Hill House is
insufficient in scale and will be difficult to
enforce. Perceptions that the proposed
green gap is just houses and gardens and
not an obvious gap.

The rural nature when driving through
Houghton Hill will be lost forever.

location of the St Ives West development
area have been established as part of the
St Ives Spatial Planning Area identified in
the adopted Core Strategy. This relates to
land partly in St lves and partly in
Houghton and Wyton.

The proposed green gap is a significant
area (340-425 metres wide), and has the
full weight of planning policy that prevents
building in the countryside. Proposals to
extend the Conservation Area will further
protect this area by reducing the amount of
extensions and other domestic building
work that homeowners will be able to
undertake and will also protect significant
trees not currently protected by TPO from
being removed. In planning terms, the few
properties that lie within extensive grounds
in the green gap are houses in the
countryside, that lie outside of the built-up
settlement area of Houghton and Wyton.

A significant landscaping belt along the
A1123 will prevent views of the housing
development from the road, and will help to
provide a more landscaped entrance to the
town.

Affordable housing

Summary of Consultation Comments

District Council Responses

Concern over the amount and percentage
of social housing that will be delivered by
the development, and that this will increase
crime, vandalism and anti social behaviour
and the risk of creating a sink estate.

The target of 40% affordable housing is
established with the adopted Core Strategy
(Policy CS4). The District Council
fundamentally disagrees with comments
relating to the potential anti social impact of
affordable housing on an area.

Landscape and green space

Summary of Consultation Comments

District Council Responses

Support for increased landscaping screen
along A1123 and creation of areas of public
green space.

Concern over loss of green space, green
space has always existed.

Needs to highlight allotment provision.

Support welcomed as this is considered to
be an important element in the quality
design required for this area.

The UDF will help to deliver a large
accessible area of strategic green
infrastructure. Land currently in private

ownership is not accessible to the public.

The potential for allotments provision will
be noted in the UDF.

14




Concern over views into the site from
meadows and river valley to the south.

There are some errors on the nature
conservation designations map.

Some concern that there is already
significant public access in the area, and
that extensive and unrestrained public
access will compromise objective of
preserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Issues relating to future maintenance and
management of any open space.

The long views out are very long distance.
There are very few short views into the site
from public footpaths. More evidence of
protection of views into the site can be
added to the UDF, and developers will be
required to address this point specifically.

These will be rectified.

Disagree. The Core Strategy has a
fundamental objective to improve access to
identified areas of green space, providing
opportunities for healthy and active
lifestyles. The level of accessibility to
particular areas of nature conservation
value will be managed appropriately.

These issues will be addressed at a later
stage, and potential partners have already
been identified.

Social infrastructure

Summary of Consultation Comments

District Council Responses

Concern over the capacity of the schools,
particularly St lvo school.

Needs to medical

requirements.

clarify provision

No community central hub, therefore lack
of community cohesion.

The County Council is currently
undertaking a review of primary school
provision in St Ives. Decisions about the
investment of developer contributions and
other resources will be made once the
review is completed. This site will be within
the catchment of St Ivo Secondary School,
as students will be within easy walking
distance. The County Council may look at
reviewing catchment areas for St Ivo
school.

This issue will be clarified in conjunction
with the PCT.

There may be a possibility to consider
linkages to / provision of community
facilities relating to the proposals and the
locality.

Environmental infrastructure

Summary of Consultation Comments

District Council Responses

Early infrastructure should be provided,
landscaping, footpaths etc.

Some residents of Houghton and Wyton
are concerned over upgrading the Thicket
path to a cycleway and concern that the
Thicket path floods and therefore is

This will be considered in detail as part of
the implementation of the proposals.

For most of its route the Thicket path is a
tarmac lane, and people cycle along this
route all the time. This is the historic low
road between St Ilves and Houghton and

15




unsuitable for upgrading. Conversely there
is support for upgrading the path to
encourage increased usage for cyclists and
pedestrians.

Wyton and is a safe and flat route. It may
need to be upgraded in places and access
can be managed when it is flooded.

Proposed shop

Summary of Consultation Responses

District Council Response

Some concern that a potential shop within
the site will have an adverse impact on the
viability of the existing village shop.

Some support for the shop, and need to
encourage early provision.

A site for a potential shop was identified to
help reduce traffic flows in the wider St lves
area, such as Hil Rise, as these
developments were not provided with shop
facilities when they were built. The shop in
Houghton and Wpyton is some distance
away from this potential development and
is unlikely to be adversely affected.

Will investigate how this can be achieved.

Process issues

Summary of Consultation Comments

District Council Responses

The preparation and consultation
processes for the adopted Core Strategy
itself (from 2006 to 2009) were insufficient
and the residents of Houghton in particular
were unaware of or only partially engaged
in those processes.

The Huntingdonshire Core Strategy was
adopted in 2009 following extensive
consultation, an Examination in Public, and
a binding Inspectors Report. Along with
the East of England Plan, the Core
Strategy forms the statutory Development
Plan for Huntingdonshire. The process
was open, transparent, and well publicised.
The District Council does not accept the
suggestion from particular objectors that
they did not have sufficient opportunity to
be involved in the Core Strategy process.
The adopted Core Strategy clearly
identifies directions of growth for strategic
housing and other development on a Key
Diagram and describes the spatial
locations of development types in its
policies. The St Ives West area is
identified as a strategic  housing
development location both on the Key
Diagram and in Policy CS2 “Strategic
Housing Development”, which states:

In the St Ives Spatial Planning Area where
at least 500 homes will be provided. Of
these, at least 100 homes will be on
previously developed land, about 400
homes will be on Greenfield land and about
200 will be affordable. Provision will be in
the following general locations:

e In a significant Greenfield development

16




The Draft UDF should not be referred to as
a Supplementary Planning Document, and
should have been prepared only after the
formal confirmation of site allocations
through the adoption of a formal district
wide Planning Proposals Development
Plan Document (PP DPD).

The change to the administrative boundary
of Houghton and Wyton Parish, after the
adoption of the Core Strategy, should
mean that the identified level of
development would relate to and impact on
Houghton rather than St Ives.

The process of engaging with and
informing elected councillors during the

to the west of the town;

o In the redevelopment of previously
developed land within the built-up area
of the town.

The District Council’s purpose in preparing
the Draft UDF is to establish the planning,
urban design, and development principles
that will apply to the area described in the
Core Strategy, to ensure the delivery of a
high quality development. This is an
important stage in the planning process as
the Core Strategy has established the
principle of development in this location.
The adopted Core Strategy is the key
element of the Local Development
Framework that provides the basis for the
District Council preparing focused and
positive planning framework for identified
strategic development areas. The Draft
UDF is not being promoted as a
Supplementary Planning Document, and
any reference to such a definition will be
removed from the final document. Once
approved, the UDF will provide the District
Council’s development guidance for the
area. It is not necessary to delay the
production of such guidance until the
Planning Proposals DPD is completed.
The Draft UDF informs the development of
Local Development Framework policy
deriving from the adopted Core Strategy,
and this includes the emerging Planning
Proposals DPD which deals with specific
land allocations.

The Parish boundary between Houghton
and Wyton and the Town Council boundary
of St lves was amended in 2010. The
nature of the objections on this matter
suggest that this means an element of the
St lves West development is proposed on
green field land to the east of the built up
settlement area of Houghton village and
that this should not be allowed. However,
the spatial strategy of the Core Strategy
(adopted in 2009) and in particular Policy
CS2 relates to the St lves Spatial Planning
Area. This is not based on the
administrative boundaries of individual
parishes and towns, and this is a consistent
spatial planning approach that has been
applied across the District.

In preparing the Draft UDF the District
Council has been able to engage with a
range of stakeholders including the

17




preparation
ineffective.

of

the

Draft

UDF was

relevant landowners and developers,
partner organisation such as
Cambridgeshire County Council, elected
Councillors, and local communities. The
purpose of the St lves West Working Group
was to inform elected Councillors from the
Town, Parish, District and County Councils.
The Working Group has met on a number
of occasions throughout the process of
developing the Draft UDF, and also
undertook two visits to the St Ives West
area. It has been an effective group and,
whilst its members have not always agreed
on matters of principle, their individual
views have been heard and have been
formally stated through the recent
consultation process.

18




Y ﬂw% s11an/d

NM e _uc
n e
* 1 an
©°pPesuw o211 n(Cd L

(¢}
0 q, o smoin Buo) o3 u..:vcc\ ~ ®
(PETY EN °PIA\ -
\E:_U anspo o =w o 3.1.-. womsins

] .. /ll ..... : —.l RS

\\ ’ ] - ' /@ . Y
&
m>a._,_n_= ' _ \P

19

}o aso) . ﬂ
- A = A
=== B
&= ﬂH_ o r
= (&
D ah _H_m_,lm.r (4] T = o o a
(] |
-~ & =
& =
4]
o
s
0 B
2,
g = t ugu



This page is intentionally left blank

20



Agenda ltem 4

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 17 OCTOBER 2011

Case No: 1101019REP (EXTENSION TO TIME LIMIT FOR
IMPLEMENTATION)

Proposal: APPLICATION TO REPLACE PLANNING PERMISSION
05016580UT FOR ERECTION OF FOODSTORE, PETROL
FILLING STATION, RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT,
COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND ASSOCIATED HIGHWAYS
AND INFRASTRUCTURE WORKS

Location: LAND AT THE CORNER OF STOCKING FEN ROAD AND ST
MARYS ROAD

Applicant: LORD DE RAMSEY'S 1963 SETTLEMENT
Grid Ref: 528394 285810
Date of Registration: 10.06.2011

Parish: RAMSEY

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL
1 UPDATE

1.1 This application was deferred at the meeting on the 19th September
2011 to enable further consideration of two specific issues:

- to investigate land ownership issues to ascertain whether the
proposed housing development could be linked by condition to the
delivery of the employment permission in the Northern Gateway to
the northwest of the application site; and

- whether there could be greater flexibility in the way the ‘junction
improvement’ contribution in the planning obligation is used.

1.2 This supplementary report deals with these issues. It also comments
on the agent’s ascertain that the development cannot deliver 40%
affordable housing. The original report and the ‘Planning Obligation
Status’ note included in the ‘Friday letter’ e-mail are appended as
Green Papers.

1.3 There are tests which all planning conditions and obligations must
meet in order to be legal.

1.4 Paragraph 14 of Circular 11/95 sets out six tests:
“‘On a number of occasions the courts have laid down the general
criteria for the validity of planning conditions. In addition to satisfying
the court's criteria for validity, the Secretaries of State take the view
that conditions should not be imposed unless they are both necessary
and effective, and do not place unjustifiable burdens on applicants.
As a matter of policy, conditions should only be imposed where they

21



1.5

1.6

1.7

21

2.2

satisfy all of the tests described in paragraphs 14-42. In brief, these
explain that conditions should be

i. necessary;

ii. relevant to planning;

iii. relevant to the development to be permitted;

iv. enforceable;

v. precise; and

vi. reasonable in all other respects.”

Paragraph 37 deals specifically with land ownership matters.
“Particular care needs to be taken over conditions which require
works to be carried out on land in which the applicant has no interest
at the time when planning permission is granted. If the land is
included in the site in respect of which the application is made, such
conditions can in principle be imposed, but the authority should have
regard to the points discussed in paragraph 28 above [relates to
whether compliance is reasonable]. If the land is outside that site, a
condition requiring the carrying out of works on the land cannot be
imposed unless the authority are satisfied that the applicant has
sufficient control over the land to enable those works to be carried
out.”

Paragraph B5 of Circular 05/05 states that a planning obligation must
be:

(i) relevant to planning;

(i) necessary to make the proposed development acceptable in
planning terms;

(iii) directly related to the proposed development;

(iv) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed
development; and

(v) reasonable in all other respects.

Furthermore, regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 now embeds three of these tests into a statutory
instrument; it states:
“A planning obligation may only constitute a reason for granting
planning permission for the development if the obligation is—

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms;

(b) directly related to the development; and

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development.”

LAND OWNERSHIP/LINKING THE DEVELOPMENT TO THE
DELIVERY OF THE EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT

The land on which the residential development would take place is in
two ownerships. The employment land is owned by one of these
owners, the Abbey Group. Imposing a condition would put the
implementation of the housing development outside the control of the
other owner of the housing land and this would be contrary to the
guidance in paragraph 37 of the Circular.

Furthermore, the current application should, according to the
Government’s Guidance in ‘Greater Flexibility for Planning
Permissions’, be considered on the basis of what has changed since
the original permission was granted. There have been two changes

22



2.3

24

3.1

3.2

4.1

in planning circumstances. Firstly, whereas housing development on
this site was contrary to the Local Plan at the time the original
permission was granted, the housing development is now in
accordance with and part of the Council’s provision for the Ramsey
Spatial Planning Area as set out in policy CS2 of the Core Strategy.

Secondly, the employment development has progressed to the extent
that it now has outline planning permission, demonstrating the
landowner’s intention of bringing the land forward for development,
and the land has an access provided by the Tesco store
development. It is also relevant that all landowners’ ability to carry
out economic development has been affected by the recession and
the Government expressly made the temporary power to grant
‘replacement’ planning permissions to facilitate recovery.

It was not considered necessary to tie the implementation of the
housing to the delivery of the employment land originally and it is not
considered necessary or reasonable now.

HIGHWAY OBLIGATIONS/JUNCTION IMPROVEMENTS

The requirement of the original planning obligation to provide linked
signal controls at the Great Whyte and High Street junction was first
revised by the terms of the Second Principal Agreement of 24 July
2009 to require the Junction Improvements before occupation of the
Retail Phase. It was revised again by the Third Principal Agreement
of 19 November 2009 to enable the County Council to require the
Junction Improvements within 12 months of the date of the
agreement. It was revised again by the Agreement of 18 August
2011 under which payment of a contribution of £82,815 to the
Ramsey Market Town Transport Strategy was agreed in lieu of the
Junction Improvements specified in the First Principal Agreement of
27 October 2008 and the Second Principal Agreement of 24 July
2009.

In its present form the contribution can be used for a range of
measures set out in the MTTS which include the junction
improvements. Any alternative use of the contribution would need to
meet the tests set out above and, in particular, would need to be
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms
and directly related to the development. Precise details of any
alternative use would therefore need to be known to enable it to be
considered against these tests.

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS/VIABILITY

Core Strategy Policy CS10 makes clear that in determining the nature
and scale of any planning obligation, ... viability ... may be taken into
account. The agent has indicated that “the development will provide
a gross profit of just 8.7% if the affordable housing provision is set at
40%. If the level is kept at 29%, the gross profit will be in excess of
10% which could work as a development.” This would need to be
independently assessed to establish whether viability justifies
provision at or nearer the original 29% affordable housing
requirement than the target of 40% affordable housing set out in Core
Strategy Policy CS4.

23



5. RECOMMENDATION - The recommendation remains as set out in
the 19th September 2011 report with agreement of the update to the
obligations, including the percentage of affordable housing to be
provided, delegated to the Head of Planning Services following
consultation with the Ward Members if it is not possible to update the
Panel before the meeting.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Mr Nigel Swaby Development Management
Team Leader 01480 388461

24



GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

25



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

19 SEP 2011

Case No: 1101019REP (EXTENSION TO TIME LIMIT FOR

IMPLEMENTATION)

Proposal: APPLICATION TO REPLACE PLANNING PERMISSION

05016580UT FOR ERECTION OF FOODSTORE, PETROL
FILLING STATION, RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT,
COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND ASSOCIATED HIGHWAYS
AND INFRASTRUCTURE WORKS

Location: LAND AT THE CORNER OF STOCKING FEN ROAD AND ST

MARYS ROAD

Applicant: LORD DE RAMSEY'S 1963 SETTLEMENT

Grid Ref: 528394 285810

Date of Registration: 10.06.2011

Parish:

RAMSEY

1.1

1.2

1.3

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

In November 2008 outline planning permission was granted for the
mixed use development described above. Condition 4 sets a period
of 3 years (the default period) for the submission of reserved matters.
Reserved matters have been approved for the food store, petrol filling
station and community centre which have now been built. This
leaves just the residential development without the benefit of an
approval of reserved matters. This application seeks a replacement
for the original permission which would in effect extend the period for
the submission of reserved matters for the residential development.

In 2009 the Government instigated a facility to ‘extend’ the time limits
for implementing permissions in order to make it easier for developers
and local planning authorities to keep planning permissions alive for
longer during the economic downturn so that they can more quickly
be implemented when economic conditions improve.

The ‘extension’ is actually a procedure which allows applicants to
apply to the local planning authority for a new planning permission to
replace the original one. Currently the legislative provisions allow just
one extension to permissions granted on or before 1 October 2009.
In most circumstances the provisions are not applicable where
development has already begun because commencement of the
development means that the time limit conditions have already been
complied with. The only exception is where the application has been
submitted in outline and implemented in phases.

26



14 The overall site is divided into two parcels either side of High Lode
and on the northern side of St Mary’s Road towards the north of the
Town and has a total area of 7.06ha (including parts of the High Lode
and adjoining highways). The proposed residential areas are astride
the High Lode, approximately 1.63ha for about 60 dwellings to the
west and approximately 0.83ha to the east.

2, NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 PPS1: “Delivering Sustainable Development” (2005) contains
advice on the operation of the plan-led system.

2.2 Planning Policy Statement: Planning and Climate Change -
Supplement to Planning Policy Statement 1 (2007) sets out how
planning, in providing for the new homes, jobs and infrastructure
needed by communities, should help shape places with lower carbon
emissions and resilient to the climate change now accepted as
inevitable.

23 PPS3: “Housing” (2011) sets out how the planning system supports
the growth in housing completions needed in England.

24 Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessments (2007) explains
how local authorities and their partners must carry out an assessment
of land availability for housing, over a 15 year period, in their areas as
outlined in Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing.

2.5 Draft National Planning Policy Framework: Consultation (2011) -
sets out the Government's key economic, social and environmental
objectives and the planning policies to deliver them. The intention is
that these policies will provide local communities with the tools they
need to energise their local economies, meet housing needs, plan for
a low-carbon future and protect the environmental and cultural
landscapes that they value. It seeks to free communities from
unnecessarily prescriptive central government policies, empowering
local councils to deliver innovative solutions that work for their local
area.

2.6 Greater Flexibility for Planning Permissions: Guidance (updated
October 2010)

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live.

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links
to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

27



3.2

3.3

3.4

e SS81: “Achieving Sustainable Development” — the strategy seeks
to bring about sustainable development by applying: the guiding
principles of the UK Sustainable Development Strategy 2005 and
the elements contributing to the creation of sustainable
communities described in Sustainable Communities: Homes for
All.

e S84: “Towns other than Key Centres and Rural Areas” — Local
Development Documents should define the approach to
development in towns. Such towns include selected Market
Towns and others with potential to increase their social and
economic sustainability.

e H1: “Regional Housing Provision 2001 to 2021” — Local Planning
Authorities should facilitate the delivery of district housing
allocations — 11,200 for Huntingdonshire.

e H2: “Affordable Housing” — Development Plan Documents should
set appropriate targets. At the regional level, delivery should be
monitored against a target for some 35% of housing coming
forward through planning permissions granted after the
publication of the RSS.

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)

Saved policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure
Plan 2003 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk follow the links to environment,
planning, planning policy and Structure Plan 2003.

e P6/1 — Development-related provision

e P10/3 - Market Towns — Peterborough and North
Cambridgeshire — at Ramsey new proposals should encourage
appropriate small to medium scale employment opportunities and
provide limited and small scale new housing development
appropriate to its role as a focus for the rural hinterland.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)
Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are
relevant and viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e H38: “Noise Pollution” — development sites adjoining main
highways, railways, industrial operations and other potentially
damaging noise pollution sources will be required to adopt
adequate design solutions to create acceptable ambient noise
levels within the dwellings and their curtilage.

e E3: 16.6 ha of land north of St Mary’s Road is allocated for
B1/B2/B8 uses, the 3 ha of which adjacent to High Lode basin to
be for B1 uses only

e R7: Open play space provision standards in new housing
schemes.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002)
Saved policies from the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002

28



3.5

3.6

are relevant and viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan -
Then click on "Local Plan Alteration (2002)

e OB2 - states that a financial contribution for the maintenance of
open space may be required.

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” - all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development. Including reducing
water consumption and wastage, minimising impact on water
resources and water quality and managing flood risk.

e CS2: “Strategic Housing Development” — during the period 2001
— 2026, a total of at least 14,000 homes will be provided in areas
including:

In Ramsey an employment led mixed use re-developments to the
west of the town, to the north of the town and redevelopment of
previously developed land within the built up areas of the town.

e CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — Identifies Huntingdon, St
Neots, St Ives and Ramsey and Bury as Market Towns in which
development schemes of all scales may be appropriate in built up
areas.

e (CS4: “Affordable Housing in Development” — 40% of all housing
proposed on proposals of 15 or more homes or 0.5ha, or more in
all parts of the District.

e CS10: “Contributions to Infrastructure Requirements” — proposals
will be expected to provide or contribute towards the cost of
providing infrastructure and of meeting social and environmental
requirements, where these are necessary to make the
development acceptable in planning terms.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on
Development Management DPD where there is a link to the Proposed
Submission Document.

e C5 “Flood Risk and Water Management” — development
proposals should include suitable flood protection / mitigation to
not increase risk of flooding elsewhere. Sustainable drainage
systems should be used where technically feasible. There should
be no adverse impact on or risk to quantity or quality of water
resources.

29



E3: “Heritage Assets” — proposals which affect the District's
heritage assets or their setting should demonstrate how these
assets will be protected, conserved and where appropriate
enhanced.

E9: “Travel Planning” - To maximise opportunities for the use of
sustainable modes of travel, development proposals should
make appropriate contributions towards improvements in
transport infrastructure, particularly to facilitate walking, cycling
and public transport use. Proposals should not give rise to traffic
volumes that exceed the capacity of the local or strategic
transport network, nor cause harm to the character of the
surrounding area.

E9: “Travel Planning” — A Travel Plan will be required where the
development involves large scale residential development;
employment/commercial development in excess of national
guideline figures or non-residential institutions including schools
and colleges. The Travel Plan will need to demonstrate that
adequate mitigation of the transport impacts of the proposal can
be achieved.

H2: “Housing Mix” — a mix of housing is required that can
reasonably meet the future needs of a wide range of household
types in Huntingdonshire and reflect the advice and guidance
provided within the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough SHMAs
and relevant local housing studies. Regard must also be given to
other materials factors specific to the site.

D1: “Green Space, Play and Sports Facilities Contributions” -
informal green space should be provided on site where possible,
taking account the nature of the development proposed and the
existing local provision. Where provision is not made on site, an
appropriate financial contribution will be made.

D2: “Transport Contributions” — contributions will be required
towards improvements in transport infrastructure where
necessary to mitigate the impact of new development on local
transport networks, particularly to facilitate walking, cycling and
public transport use.

D3: “Community Facilities Contributions” — contributions will be
required towards the provision, extension or improvement of
community facilities where necessary to promote the
development of sustainable communities and mitigate the
impacts of the development as identified through the Local
Investment Framework.

D4: “Utilities Contributions” — contributions will be required
towards provision or improvement of utilities infrastructure where
necessary to mitigate the impacts of development as identified
through the Local Investment Framework.

D5: “Emergency and Essential Services Contributions” -
contributions will be required towards the provision, extension or
improvement of emergency and essential services where
necessary to promote public safety within new development and

30



41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

mitigate the impacts of development as identified within the Local
Investment Framework.

e D6: “Environmental Improvements Contributions” — contributions
will be required towards environmental improvements where
necessary to mitigate against the impacts of the development as
identified through the Local Investment Framework, the
Cambridgeshire Horizons Green Infrastructure Strategy or
successor documents and other evidence.

e D7: “Drainage and Flood Prevention Contributions” -
contributions will be required towards improvements in drainage
and flood prevention where necessary to mitigate the impacts of
development as identified through the Local investment
Framework, the Huntingdonshire Outline Water Cycle Strategy or
successor documents or by the Environment Agency.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

05016580UT  Erection of foodstore, petrol filling station, residential
development, community facilities and associated highways and
infrastructure works. Granted Nov 2008

0900192REM  Approval of reserved matters in respect of access,
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale for the erection of a food
store, petrol filling station, associated highway works and
infrastructure Approved Nov 2009

0900365S73 Variation of condition 7 of outline planning
permission 05016580UT in respect of the erection of a foodstore,
petrol filling station, residential development, community facilities and
associated highway and infrastructure work so that the condition
states 'the access arrangement and footway shall be completed in
accordance with the approved details before the occupation of the
store on the western side of High Lode' rather than ‘'before
commencement of development'. Granted Nov 2009

0900286REM  Approval of reserved matters in respect of access,
appearance, layout and scale for the erection of a community centre.
Approved Nov 2009

09011270UT  (On adjacent land) Mixed use development
comprising employment (including trade counter sales) (use classes,
B1, B2 and B8) car sales, car breaking, combined heat and power
uses and a children's day nursery (D1), means of access and road
layout. Granted Sept 2010.

CONSULTATIONS

Ramsey Town Council - Recommends Refusal (see attached for
original comments). The Town Council reconsidered the application
after officers had clarified that the proposal only related to the
residential development. On the second occasion the vote was 5
votes for refusal, 3 for approval with 3 abstentions. The Town
Council felt that the housing was not needed and would not
regenerate the Town.

31



5.2

5.3

54

5.5

6.1

7.1

Cambridgeshire County Council (Highways) — No objection
subject to re-imposition of conditions.

HDC Head of Housing — Affordable housing should be secured at
the current policy level (40%)

HDC Environmental Health — Recommends repeating condition 13
of the original permission relating to contamination.

Environment Agency — No additional comments.
REPRESENTATIONS

None received.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues are whether the residential development which

formed part of the original outline permission should still go ahead
and, if so, the terms of the planning obligation.

Planning Policy

7.2

7.3

7.4

The Government has advised that in the current circumstances local
planning authorities should take a positive and constructive approach
towards applications which improve the prospect of sustainable
development being taken forward quickly. The development proposed
in an application for an ‘extension’ will by definition have been judged
to be acceptable in principle at an earlier date. While applications
should be determined in accordance with s.38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, local planning authorities are further
advised, in making their decisions, to focus their attention on
development plan policies and other material considerations which
may have changed significantly since the original grant of permission.

In this case the main policy changes relevant to the principle of
residential development in this location and planning obligations are:

- the East of England Plan has been adopted (and remains part of the
Development Plan pending revocation of the Regional Spatial
Strategies as proposed by the Coalition Government;

- the Huntingdonshire Core Strategy was adopted in 2009;

- the Huntingdonshire Development Management Plan DPD:
Proposed Submission was published in 2010;

- the National Planning Policy Framework was published in draft in
July 2011.

The site is part of the Ramsey Northern Gateway. Land to the north-
west of High Lode was part of a B1/B2/B8 employment allocation in
the Local Plan 1995 and the land to the east was committed for
employment. By 2004 there had been little interest in building-out the
allocation due to the associated infrastructure costs needed to
develop the site and the poor road infrastructure in the Ramsey area.
In November 2004, this Council adopted as Interim Planning
Guidance the ‘Ramsey Gateway Urban Design Framework’ and the
area was identified as an opportunity site in the Ramsey Action Plan
under the theme of creating sustainable development. The
Framework proposed the enhancement of this area as a ‘gateway’ to

32



7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

the town. The intentions were, amongst others, that derelict land
would be regenerated, un-neighbourly employment uses would be
encouraged to relocate and the viability of the remaining employment
land would be enhanced. Part of the reason for the delay in the
housing development has been the ongoing negotiations to relocate
the scrap yard which is within the proposed residential area to the
north-west of High Lode.

Since the outline planning permission was granted in 2008 the retail
development has taken place and there is now access to the
remaining employment land which itself has the benefit of outline
planning permission granted in 2010.

In terms of policy changes, the Core Strategy now makes provision
for the residential development which was previously a departure for
the provisions of the 1995 Local Plan. Policy CS2 states that at least
300 homes will be provided in the Ramsey Spatial Planning Area, “In
employment led mixed use re-developments to the west of the town,
to the north of the town and redevelopment of previously developed
land within the built up areas of the town.” The reference to ‘to the
north of the town’ relates to this direction for growth. The reasoned
justification for this policy explains at paragraph 5.7 that the scale of
development reflected Ramsey’s role as a focal point for the rural
community, its relative remoteness and poor transport infrastructure.
There is a need for a modest scale of new housing and this site is in
an appropriate and sustainable location to provide some of it. The
changes to policy, particularly the adoption of policy CS2 and the
draft National Planning Policy Framework, albeit it only has limited
weight at this stage, support a further grant of planning permission.

If appropriate, different conditions in respect to matters other than the
time limit can also be imposed — for example in order to make the
scheme acceptable in the light of new policies, or if some pre-
commencement conditions have already been discharged.

The outline planning permission was granted subject to the following

summarised conditions:

1. Submission of phasing plan

2. Reserved matters, including the means of access to the part of
the development on the eastern side of High Lode to be
approved before development on any phase is commenced.

3. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved
reserved matters.

4. Applications for approval of reserved matters to be made within
three years.

5. Development to be begun within two years from approval of the
reserved matters.

6. Details submitted pursuant to conditions 2-4 shall accord with
the land use zones shown on drawing no. 283997/30 (or
drawing no. 283997/38 if the scrap yard is to remain) and the
broad design principles shown on drawing 6149/PO7 Rev.B.

7. Submission of detailed drawings of the roundabout on St
Mary’s Road to serve the part of the development on the
western side of High Lode. Details to include a footway along
the northern side St Mary’s Road between the roundabout and
High Lode.

33



Foodstore not to exceed 3610 square metres gross and 2316
square metres net floorspace. No more than 15% of net
floorspace to be for comparison goods.

9. Prior to opening of the foodstore or the occupation of any of the
market dwellings the access road from St Marys Road to the
remainder of the land allocated for employment to be
constructed.

10. Submission of Green Travel Plans.

11.  Archaeological investigations.

12. Provision of fire hydrants.

13. Pre-commencement contamination investigation and
remediation.

14. Submission of details of a bridge link across High Lode.

15. Noise protection scheme for any dwellings occupied before the
relocation of the scrap yard.

16. Submission of surface water drainage scheme.

7.9 The grant of a replacement planning permission would comply with

policy CS2 of the Huntingdonshire Core Strategy 2009.

Planning Obligations

7.10 The Government guidance states that local planning authority or the
applicant may seek changes to an existing obligation in order to make
the proposal acceptable in changed circumstances.

7.11 The outline planning permission was bound by a planning obligation
under section 106, the main provisions of the original obligation,
which has since been the subject of a number of variations, can be
summarised as follows:

a.

b.

£100K towards the cost of extending an existing bus service
from the town centre to the new store;

The provision of linked signal controls at the Great Whyte and
High Street junction, linked to the pedestrian crossing to the
west of the junction on the High Street, to also include minor
alignment works to kerb edging and resurfacing works;

A new combined pedestrian/cycle route between the foodstore
and the Rivermill site, to include a bridge across High Lode
between Foot Drove and Rivermill;

A contribution of £48K towards highway safety improvements
on St Mary’s Road,;

The provision of a HGV routeing agreement for delivery
vehicles serving the foodstore to avoid the town centre;
Agreement to carry out no further works in relation to the
permissions for the foodstores on land at Rivermill;

The transfer of land at Rivermill to the District Council suitable
for the provision of a community centre, and the erection of or
funding for a community centre of circa 2500 sq m gross to
include a hall, kitchen, toilet facilities and office space with
associated outdoor space and potential for future upgrade and
expansion;

The provision of affordable housing at a level of 29% of the total
number of residential units;

The provision and subsequent transferral of equipped play
areas to include a Local Equipped Area of Play (LEAP) and a
Local Area of Play (LAP);

34



7.12

8.1

j- A contribution of £20K towards the ongoing maintenance and
repair of the Play Areas and a further contribution towards the
maintenance of other landscaped public spaces;

K. A contribution of £5K towards the enhancement of the moorings
along High Lode in the vicinity of the site to include mooring
facilities and access from the river to Horse Drove;

l. A contribution via Cambridgeshire County Council of £20K
towards the cost of library and associated facilities;

m. A contribution of £485 per dwelling towards health care facilities
via Primary Health Care Trust;

n. Agreement that there shall be no residential development within
the proposed landscaped attenuation zone prior to the
cessation of the car breakers use on the land adjacent to High
Lode; and

0. An obligation to use all reasonable endeavours to promote and
secure confirmation of a Section 247 Order to provide
alternative access to land fronting Horse Drive.

Consultations are ongoing to establish that those aspects of the
obligation which relate to the residential development are still relevant
and necessary and meet the policy tests in Circular 05/2005 and the
statutory tests in the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations
2010. With regard to (h) affordable housing, policy CS4 provides that
developments should seek to achieve a target of 40% affordable
housing. The terms of the supplemental obligation will be negotiated
by officers under the delegation agreement.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE:

The application be APPROVED subiject to the imposition of the varied
time limit, the re-imposition of the other conditions modified as
appropriate to take account of any details which have already been
approved and to a supplemental agreement under section 106 to link
the new planning permission to the existing planning obligation and
update the obligations.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Mr Nigel Swaby Development Management
Team Leader 01480 388461

35



15/@7/2811 18:31 81487815328 RAMSEY TOWN COUNCIL PAGE 84

oA\
- A\
S &

P T Y
Head of Planning Services .-IHunﬂnngnShire

__Pﬂmmm.l& BistTrRieT CODUNCI1 L

St. Mary's Street
Huntingdon Tel: 01480 388388
Cambridgeshire PE 29 3TN Fax: 01480 388099
www.huntingdonshire.gov. uk

Application Number: 1101019REP Case Officer Mr Niget Swaby

Proposal: Application to replace Planning Permission 05016580UT for erection of foodstore,
petrol fllling station, residential development, commiuitity Taciiities and associated highways
and infrastructure works

Location: Land At The Corner Of Stocking Fen Road AndSt Marys RosdRamsey

Obsarvations of Ramsey Town/Parish Council,

Please ¥ box as appropriale

Recommend approval because ...,.. {please give relevant planning reasons in BpEGE Deiow)

b
/ Recommend refusal because. .. (please give relevant planning reasons in space below)

By Il voteo to | Ho defeloppant siar fett- Lo bbe
Swplug 10 requuemerts.

No ohservations either in favour or against the proposal

| ’," al
Failure to return this form within the time indicated wilt be taken as an indication that the Town or
Parish Council do not express any opinion either for or against the application.

Cilerk to Ramsey Town/Parish Council.

36



Development Management Panel

Application Ref: 1101019REP
Location: Ramsey

Hun’ringdonshiré

DI'STRICT COUNZ CIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

Scale: 1:5000 37

- e . —>
9517{;&_7 i \‘:;_\(\. 'Eﬁ}ﬂotsev ?’
e . #CH o q
iy = , 3, & /‘C{L/; Foore
& i F w L"/,A:J"'g-’ g—f B
gt |y ’ ['T'Burlal“\\‘. f
o B’ 2 \‘\‘/,/ H
New o & ; }= =g
A A Sitockinig
,',’Fenéﬂ ~Poo Y ;
[Foay >
‘q-_:\\-‘ 1 ‘(.a
B:Fy Gré‘ew
Conifer Farm . F
NN AW A a
i
%
S/,
&
% 2, D X oA 2
0 NG,
o 2 > X
Q % Tm a
Ko <& N > S% V
1) B R R
N R
O o\ 2 / TN
! <G 3 < & s °
@ O
N Q <
| Legend 34 : ‘ : e
——— Z 5 7% o S5
Ve ) - g ok ’
qd |/ The Site N =3¢’ N .
—— . o S ) S
. :_ 1 Conservation Area ; @ O\ KT
T % m X 50 N\
A A TN RL SN " N\ 2 NS




e
spamptalod \.-_._W_.MMT-
uwunm!ml 7

eseyd yjedjooy

aseyd
fenuepises ||iq oYL

aseyd aBpug

aseyd
[enuapisay (IUIBaAR

aseyd sijuad
Ajunwwos pue 1gjey

|d0 0@

eyns uoneoyddy

TN A W s

o i
zm of
N
i

uresq

e




Planning Obligation Status

The

1.

land is bound by the following agreements:

Agreement dated 27 October 2008 — the First Principal Agreement, accompanying
planning permission 05016580UT granted on 10 November 2008.

2. Deed of Variation to the First Principal Agreement dated 16 March 2009
3. Agreement dated 24 July 2009 — the Second Principal Agreement
This agreement accompanies planning permission 09/00365S73 by which condition 7 of
outline planning permission 05016580UT which requires:
- a detailed engineering drawing of the new roundabout to be approved before the
development starts;
- the new roundabout to be completed before the start of the built development in the
area west of High Lode;
was varied to require the roundabout to be completed before the food store is occupied,
rather than before it is started. The provisions of this agreement mirror those of the First
Principal Agreement except in relation to the Junction Improvements (see (b) below.
4. Agreement dated 9 October 2009 — with Cambridgeshire County Council under Sections
38 and 278 of the Highways Act 1980
5. Agreement dated 19 November 2009 — the Third Principal Agreement
6. Agreement dated 18 August 2011 (see (b) below)
Ref. | Provisions of the First Principal Current status
Agreement dated 27 October 2008
a. Schedule 2, Part 1.1
Bus Contribution
£100K towards the cost of extending an Clause completed.
existing bus service from the town centre to | Indexed sum paid to Cambridgeshire
the new store. County Council on 14/12/09.
b. Schedule 2, Part 1.5
Junction Improvements
The provision of linked signal controls at This requirement was first revised by the
the Great Whyte and High Street junction, terms of the Second Principal
linked to the pedestrian crossing to the Agreement of 24 July 2009 to require
west of the junction on the High Street, to the Junction Improvements before
also include minor alignment works to kerb | occupation of the Retail Phase.
edging and resurfacing works. To be It was revised again by the Third
provided prior to commencement of the Principal Agreement of 19 November
Retail Phase. 2009 to enable the County Council to
require the Junction Improvements
within 12 months of the date of the
agreement.
It was revised again by the Agreement
of 18 August 2011 under which payment
of a contribution of £82,815 to the
Ramsey Market Town Transport
Strategy was agreed in lieu of the
Junction Improvements specified in the
First Principal Agreement of 27 October
2008 and the Second Principal
Agreement of 24 July 2009.
C. Schedule 2, Part 2.1

Bridge Link
Prior to commencement of the retail phase,

to enter into an agreement and bond with
the County Council under sections 38 and
278 of the Highways Act 1980 for carrying
out the ‘Bridge Link’ being a new combined
pedestrian/cycle route between the
foodstore and the Rivermill site, to include a

Agreement dated 9 October 2009.

39




bridge across High Lode between Foot
Drove and Rivermill;

Schedule 2, Part 1.2

St Mary’s Road Contribution

A contribution of £48K towards highway
safety improvements on St Mary’s Road;

Clause completed.
Indexed sum paid to Cambridgeshire
County Council on 14/12/09.

Schedule 2, Part 1.3

Delivery Routing

The provision of a HGV routing agreement
for delivery vehicles serving the food store
to avoid the town centre;

To be confirmed

Schedule 1, Part 1.1

Rivermill Site

Agreement to carry out no further works in
relation to the permissions for the food
stores on land at Rivermill, reference
91/0200 and 01017850UT;

Ongoing obligation.

Schedule 1, Part 1.2

Community Centre

The transfer of land at Rivermill to the
District Council suitable for the provision of
a community centre, and the erection of or
funding for a community centre of circa
2500 sg m gross to include a hall, kitchen,
toilet facilities and office space with
associated outdoor space and potential for
future upgrade and expansion. Provide on
the Community Centre Land a Local Area
for Play (LAP). The Community Centre to
be constructed before any Phase of the
development is occupied.

An alternative site for the Community
Centre was agreed by the Variation to
the First Principal Agreement dated 16
March 2009. The definition of the LAP
Contribution and LAP Maintenance
Contribution in the First and Second
Principal Agreements were varied by the
Third Principal Agreement of 19
November 2009.

Clause completed 16/12/09 when the
LAP was delivered at the Community
Centre and the associated commuted
sum was received on 02/02/10.

Schedule 1, Part 2.1

Affordable Housing

The provision of affordable housing at a
level of 29% of the total number of
residential units;

Obligation to provide affordable housing
in the Rivermill Residential Development

Schedule 1, Part 3.1

Affordable Housing

The provision of affordable housing at a
level of 29% of the total number of
residential units;

Obligation to provide affordable housing
in the St Mary’s Road Residential
Development

Schedule 1, Part 3.2

Play Area

The provision and subsequent transfer of
equipped play areas to include a Local
Equipped Area of Play (LEAP) within the St
Mary’s Road Residential Development.
Plans to be submitted prior to
commencement of the St Mary’s Road
Residential Development. Play Area to be
transferred to the Council.

LEAP Play area to be constructed prior
to first occupation of not more than 50%
of the dwellings within the St Mary’s
Road Residential Development

Schedule 2, Part 3.2

Play Areas

A contribution of £12K towards the ongoing
maintenance and repair of the LEAP Play

Area and a further contribution towards the
maintenance of other landscaped public

Payable on transfer of the LEAP Play
Area on the St Mary’s Road Residential
Development to the Council.

40




Spaces,;

Schedule 1, Part 2.2

The Rivermill Development High Lode
Contribution

A contribution of £2K towards the
enhancement of the moorings along High
Lode in the vicinity of the site to include
mooring facilities and access from the river
to Horse Drove;

To be paid prior to the first occupation in
the Rivermill Residential Development

Schedule 1, Part 3.3

The St Mary’s Road Residential
Development High Lode Contribution

A contribution of £3K towards the
enhancement of the moorings along High
Lode in the vicinity of the site to include
mooring facilities and access from the river
to Horse Drove;

To be paid prior to the first occupation in
the St Mary’s Road Development

Schedule 2, Part 3

Library Contribution

A contribution via Cambridgeshire County
Council of £18K towards the cost of library
and associated facilities;

To be paid prior to the first occupation in
the Rivermill Residential Development

Schedule 2, Part 4

Library Contribution

A contribution via Cambridgeshire County
Council of £22K towards the cost of library
and associated facilities;

To be paid prior to the first occupation in
the St Mary’s Road Development

Schedule 1, Part 2.3

The Healthcare Contribution

A contribution of £485 per dwelling towards
health care facilities via Primary Health
Care Trust;

To be paid prior to the first occupation in
the Rivermill Residential Development

Schedule 1, Part 3.4

The Healthcare Contribution

A contribution of £485 per dwelling towards
health care facilities via Primary Health
Care Trust;

To be paid prior to the first occupation in
the St Mary’s Road Development

Schedule 1, Part 3

Landscape Attenuation Zone

St Mary’s Road Residential Development
Agreement that there shall be no residential
development within the proposed
landscaped attenuation zone prior to the
cessation of the car breakers use on the
land adjacent to High Lode; and

Ongoing obligation.

Schedule 2, Part 1.4

Section 247 Order

An obligation to use reasonable
endeavours to promote and secure
confirmation of a Section 247 Order to stop
up the highway known as Horse Drove.

Ongoing obligation

Ref.

Provisions of the Deed of Variation to
the First Principal Agreement dated 16
March 2009

Status

Public Realm Contribution

A contribution of £200k relating to the
provision of a bridge, footpaths and rights
of way.

Clause completed.
Indexed sum paid to Cambridgeshire
County Council .

41




This page is intentionally left blank

42



Agenda ltem 5a

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 17 OCTOBER 2011

Case No: 1100668FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: ERECTION OF TEMPORARY BUILDING AND CREATION OF
TEMPORARY CAR PARKING

Location: BRITISH RED CROSS SOCIETY CASTLE MOAT ROAD

Applicant: BRITISH RED CROSS SOCIETY

Grid Ref: 523961 271476

Date of Registration: 16.06.2011

Parish: HUNTINGDON

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 The site relates to an area previously occupied by the British Red
Cross Society. The building which previously stood on the site has
been demolished, although the slabs remain and a hoarding has been
erected around the site. The application site only relates to a
proportion of the former British Red Cross site to the rear. The site is
located to the south of Castle Moat Road between the dwellings along
The Walks East and the Church.

1.2 To the rear of the site lies a horse chestnut tree subject of a Tree
Preservation Order and beyond the rear boundary of the site lies a
public right of way. The site lies in the Conservation Area and is
located close to the Castle Hills, a Scheduled Monument.

1.3 The proposal seeks the erection of a temporary building to the rear of
the site approximately 9.9 metres in depth by 12.2 metres in width by
3.5 metres in height to contain a training room, medical loan facility,
office, store, kitchen and cloak room facilities.

1.4 The proposal also includes the erection of a bin store approximately
3.3 metres by 3 metres and the erection of temporary hoarding to
widen the access way and to form a boundary with the front part of the
site.

1.5 It also includes the creation of a temporary car park to provide 3 car
parking spaces. Access to the site shall be via the existing access
used by the bungalows along The Walks East. The applicants have
provided supporting evidence that they own this access way, with the
occupiers of the dwellings along The Walks East having rights of
access over this land only.

43



1.6 This application is before the Panel because the Head of Planning
Services considers that it should be presented to the Panel for
decision.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 PPS1: “Delivering Sustainable Development” (2005) contains
advice on the operation of the plan-led system.

2.2 PPS4: “Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth” (2009) sets
out the Government's comprehensive policy framework for planning for
sustainable economic development in urban and rural areas.

2.3 PPS5: Planning for the Historic Environment (2010) sets out the
Government's planning policies on the conservation of the historic
environment.

2.4 PPG13: “Transport” (2011) contains advice on the integration of
planning and transport.

2.5 Draft National Planning Policy Framework: Consultation (2011) -
sets out the Government’s key economic, social and environmental
objectives and the planning policies to deliver them. The intention is
that these policies will provide local communities with the tools they
need to energise their local economies, meet housing needs, plan for a
low-carbon future and protect the environmental and cultural
landscapes that they value. It seeks to free communities from
unnecessarily prescriptive central government policies, empowering
local councils to deliver innovative solutions that work for their local
area.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk  then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy
(May 2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

eENV6: “The Historic Environment” - Within plans, policies,
programmes and proposals local planning authorities and other
agencies should identify, protect, conserve and, where appropriate,
enhance the historic environment of the region including
Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings.

¢ ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new development
to be of high quality which complements the distinctive character and

44



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

best qualities of the local area and promotes urban renaissance and
regeneration.

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and Structure
Plan 2003.

e None relevant

Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

¢En5: “Conservation Area Character’ - development within or directly
affecting conservation areas will be required to preserve or enhance
their character and appearance.

¢En6: “Design standards in Conservation Areas” — in conservation
areas, the District Council will require high standards of design with
careful consideration being given to the scale and form of
development in the area and to the use of sympathetic materials of
appropriate colour and texture.

¢En9- “Conservation Areas” - development should not impair open
spaces, trees, street scenes and views into and out of Conservation
Areas.

¢En11: “Archaeology” — Permission will normally be refused for
development that would have an adverse impact on a scheduled
ancient monument or an archaeological site of acknowledged
importance.

¢En12: “Archaeological Implications” — permission on sites of
archaeological interest may be conditional on the implementation of a
scheme of archaeological recording prior to development
commencing.

¢En18: “Protection of countryside features” — Offers protection for
important site features including trees, woodlands, hedges and
meadowland.

¢En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District Council
will expect new development to respect the scale, form, materials and
design of established buildings in the locality and make adequate
provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

e None relevant

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at

45



3.6

3.7

http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then

click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

¢CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” - all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and economic
issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

¢C1: “Sustainable Design” — development proposals should take
account of the predicted impact of climate change over the
expected lifetime of the development.

eE1: “Development Context” - development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of the
surrounding environment and the potential impact of the proposal.

¢ E3: “Heritage Assets” — proposals which affect the District's heritage
assets or their setting should demonstrate how these assets will be
protected, conserved and where appropriate enhanced.

oE5: “Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows” — proposals shall avoid the
loss of, and minimise the risk of, harm to trees, woodland or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value,
including ancient woodland and veteran trees. They should
wherever possible be incorporated effectively within the landscape
elements of the scheme.

¢E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord with
the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1 ‘Parking
Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities shall be
provided to serve the needs of the development.

eH7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the living
conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or nearby
properties.

eP4: “Town Centre Uses and Retail Designations” — proposals for
retail, leisure, office, cultural and tourism facilities and other main
town centre uses should be located within the defined town centres
of the Market Towns, unless they accord with exceptions allowed
for elsewhere in the LDF.
Supplementary Planning Document:
e Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape Assessment (2007)

PLANNING HISTORY

¢ 1000329FUL - Erection of a site boundary hoarding to secure site —
permission granted

46



5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

6.1

6.2

¢ 1000330CAC - Demolition of existing building to ground slab —
consent granted

¢ 0400625FUL - Alterations to building and provision of additional car
parking — permission granted

¢ 7800352FUL - Extension to garage — permission granted

CONSULTATIONS
Huntingdon Town Council — recommend approval (copy attached)

English Heritage — do not object to the principle of locating a temporary
structure adjacent the monument, but recognise that such buildings are
unlikely to make a positive contribution to the setting of the
monuments. Recognise that this scheme is integral to the sites re-
development and therefore feel that the setting can be protected by
conditioning the application accordingly. Would recommend the
permission is limited for a period of 5 years to ensure that the setting is
not impaired in the long term. An archaeological condition would also
be appropriate to ensure that the provision of the footings for, and
services to the temporary structure are adequately mitigated and any
archaeological remains can be adequately recorded.

Highway Authority — No objections subject to conditions relating to the
construction, drainage and width of the access and the parking,
servicing, loading/unloading, turning and waiting area.

CCC Rights of Access Team — No objections but request that, if
permission is granted, a note is included stating that the public footpath
that runs immediately adjacent to the southern boundary of the site
shall remain open, and unobstructed at all times.

CCC Historic Environment Team — no objection to this development
and would not consider archaeological works necessary in advance or
during the course of development.

Highways Agency — No objections.
REPRESENTATIONS

1 Castle Hill - Comments:
The general plan added 16/6/11 relates to Case 1100668FUL. The
chestnut tree referred to Tree Protection Plan has been pruned and |
would estimate it is 8 metres high.

12 The Walks East — Objection to the original plans showing the

tracking of vehicles entering and leaving the parking area:

e property lines shown on the submitted plans are incorrect

e covenant in place between the owners of the 12ft section of the lane
and owners of the bungalow in that they only have access into the
lane

e loss of this amenity would have an affect on value of property

e the tracking plan shows that to work it must cross my property which |
object to

eany increase in traffic movements approx 6-10 daily would cause
extra risk on entering onto ring road. You also have to cross a
footpath which is used heavily by cyclists and school children on the
way to school.

47



ethere is a manhole in the middle of the lane which is not built to
withstand heavy vehicles, also as the bungalows are responsible for
maintaining the lane we object to extra vehicular movements when
Red Cross already have two other entrances to the site

ethey do not keep the boundary fence in good repair, yet it states in
the plans they are keeping the original fence

ethe boundary fence of No 12 is set inside its property line to enable
turning circle to be achieved, as well as more room for parking.

e understand that the application can only be considered as submitted
but giving an access to the site at the rear opens possibilities for the
rear of this which | am opposed to.

ethis lane is the only vehicle access to these property’s it is a private
lane not one that can support a commercial activity without causing
major problems.

e |n relation to the latest amended plans, the occupier of 12 The Walks
East states that the tracking path is better but could still encroach on
my property. Can the Red Cross prove they have access rights to the
lane?

7. SUMMARY OF ISSUES

71 The main issues to consider are the principle, the impact on the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area, impact on
residential amenity, impact on the existing tree subject to a tree
preservation order, parking and impact on highway safety, and impact
on the adjacent right of way.

Principle

7.2 The proposal seeks to provide a temporary building on the site to
provide training and medical loan facilities, as an interim proposal with
intentions to provide permanent facilities in the future on the remainder
of the site (this is a future project and does not have the benefit of
planning permission). This would allow the British Red Cross Society
to re-establish its presence in the town and for a temporary period of
three years.

7.3 There are no objections to the principle of the proposed development.
Impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation area

7.4 The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act states that
special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character and appearance of conservation areas. The
proposal seeks the installation of a temporary building to be sited at the
rear of the site. Whilst it may not be considered that such a building
shall enhance the character and appearance of the Conservation Area,
the proposal is only for a temporary period and, importantly, enables
the Red Cross to re-establish its presence on the site. It is not
considered that this proposal would cause significant harm to the
designated heritage asset (the Conservation Area) that would warrant
refusing this application for this temporary period. Nor is it considered
that the erection of the new fencing and bin store would cause
significant harm to the character and appearance of the Conservation
Area.

48



Impact on residential amenity

Temporary building

7.5

The single storey temporary building has been sited to the rear of the
site and adjacent to the boundary with the church and is therefore set
away from the neighbouring residential properties. The proposed
building, having regard to its siting and scale, is not considered to harm
the amenity of the neighbouring residential properties or community
facilities.

Access and parking

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

This application has raised concerns with the neighbouring residential
properties along The Walks East in respect of access along the
existing access way and parking for the residents, which takes place to
the rear of their properties and adjacent the access way. Following
discussions with the agent supporting documentation has been
provided that states that the applicants, the British Red Cross Society,
own this access way and the residents adjacent the site have rights of
access.

The application has also been amended to ensure that vehicles visiting
the application site can use the access way and turn into the parking
area for the proposed building without crossing over onto the private
land of the adjacent residential dwellings.

Whilst noting the concerns of the resident, the confirmation that the
applicants own this access way means they are able to freely use this
access way subject to the Highway Authority being satisfied with the
proposal, discussed in detail later in the report. In terms of parking it
will be for the residents to ensure they park within the confines of their
land and not land outside of their ownership. The relationship in terms
of parking and access and any possible conflict becomes a civil matter
to be discussed/negotiated between the relevant parties.

It is not considered that the provision of this development and use of
access is such that it would significantly harm amenity or would
warrant refusing this application.

Impact on the adjacent tree

7.10

7.11

The application includes an Arboricultural Method Statement which
indicates that all existing hard surfaces are to be retained as surface
protection with the exception of part of the former garage slab, which is
to be a no dig drive construction. Tree Protection Fence shall also be
erected during construction and the parking spaces shall also ensure
that the existing levels on site are not altered.

The proposed development is not considered to harm the existing
horse chestnut tree. Conditions are recommended to ensure that the
Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement are adhered
to.

Parking, access and impact on highway safety

Parking

49



712

713

Access

714

7.15

7.16

The proposal seeks the provision of 3 car parking spaces on site. It is
considered, in accordance with Appendix 1 of the Development
Management DPD Submission a maximum of 8 car spaces are
required. Whilst recognising an under provision of car parking spaces
is proposed, given the sustainable location of the site, within walking
distance of the Bus Station and Train station, access to public car
parks and close proximity to the town centre, this under provision is
acceptable in this instance as other more sustainable modes of
transport exist for potential users of the site.

Cycle parking has not been shown for this development, whilst only a
temporary consent is proposed, it is not considered unreasonable in
the pursuit of encouraging the use of more sustainable modes of
transport for secure cycle parking to be provided on site. Given the
size of the building this would require at least 8 cycle spaces. It is
recommended that a condition is imposed requiring adequate
provision.

A revised plan, received 7/9/11, now shows that a vehicle can enter
and exit the application site without causing congestion on the
highway. There is sufficient space for two cars to pass.

The Highway Authority has not objected to the proposal subject to the
imposition of conditions in relation to the provision of turning/ servicing/
loading/ waiting/ parking area on the site prior to occupation, adequate
drainage measures to prevent surface water draining on to the highway
and a minimum access width of 5 metres for a distance of 10 metres
from the carriageway. They have also requested a condition requiring
the access to be constructed to the County Council’s specification. The
condition requiring the access to be constructed to the County
Council’s specification is not considered necessary as the County
Council are able to regulate this separately to any planning permission.

On the basis of the revised plans, it is considered that the proposal
would not harm highway safety.

Archaeology

717

The proposal if permitted would allow archaeological works to be
undertaken on the site in advance of the redevelopment of the site, and
the proposed building itself is designed to have no impact on sub-
surface archaeological deposits. Notwithstanding English Heritage’s
comments, archaeological works are not considered to be necessary in
advance or during the course of this development, having regard to the
proposed development.

Impact on the adjacent right of way

7.18

7.19

Having regard to the proposed erection of a temporary building and
creation of parking spaces, all within the confines of the application
site, this is not considered to adversely affect the adjacent right of way.

Comments on representations received:

50



7.20

7.21

The general plan added 16/6/11 relates to Case 1100668FUL.
The chestnut tree referred to Tree Protection Plan has been
pruned and | would estimate it is 8 metres high — whilst noting this
it does not override the submitted Arboricultural Method
Statement and Tree Protection Plan.

property lines shown on the submitted plans are incorrect —
revised plans have bees submitted and this should have
corrected this matter.

covenant in place between the owners of the 12ft section of the
lane and owners of the bungalow in that they only have access
into the lane — this is a civil matter and not a consideration for this
planning application.

loss of this amenity would have an affect on value of property —
property value is not a planning matter.

the tracking plan shows that to work it must cross my property
which | object to — revised plan now submitted showing tracking
within the confines of the red edged application site.

any increase in traffic movements approx 6-10 daily would cause
extra risk on entering onto ring road. You also have to cross a
footpath which is used heavily by cyclists and school children on
the way to school — whilst noted the concern the Highway
Authority has not objected to the proposal.

there is a manhole in the middle of the lane which is not built to
withstand heavy vehicles, also as the bungalows are responsible
for maintaining the lane we object to extra vehicular movements
when Red Cross already have two other entrances to the site —
this is not a planning consideration, but a matter covered by civil
legislation.

they do not keep the boundary fence in good repair, yet it states
in the plans they are keeping the original fence — the fence line is
proposed to be altered as part of the most recent plan and it
would not seem unreasonable to secure details of a new fence via
the imposition of a condition.

the boundary fence of No 12 is set inside its property line to
enable turning circle to be achieved. As well as more room for
parking — this relates to a civil matter.

understand that the application can only be considered as
submitted but giving an access to the site at the rear opens
possibilities for the rear of this which | am opposed to — each
application is assessed on its own merits any future proposal
would be reconsidered.

this lane is the only vehicle access to these property’s it is a
private lane not one that can support a commercial activity without
causing major problems — this concern it noted however the
Highway Authority has raised no objections to the proposal.

Conclusion

The principle of the development is acceptable, there would not be any
significant harm to the character and appearance of the Conservation
Area, there would not be any significant detrimental impact on
residential amenity, there would be no adverse impact on the adjacent
horse chestnut tree, parking is acceptable and would not harm highway
safety, the development would not adversely affect any potential
archaeology remains and would not adversely affect the adjacent
public right of way.

51



7.22 In approving the application, the relevant guidance and policies were
identified as PPS1, PPS4, PPS5, PPG13, policies ENV6 and ENV7 of
the East of England Plan, policies En6, En9, En11, En12, En18 and
En25 of the Local Plan, policy CS1 Of the Adopted Core Strategy,
policies C1, E1, E3, E5, E10, H7 and P4 of the Development
Management DPD Submission and the Huntingdonshire Landscape
and Townscape Assessment (2007).

7.23 If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or
an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to
accommodate your needs.

8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to the following conditions

Nonstandard- 3 year temporary
Nonstandard - fence and hoarding
Nonstandard - provision of turning and parking area
Nonstandard - drainage details
Nonstandard - access road
Nonstandard - cycle parking
Nonstandard - tree protection
CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Michelle Nash Development Management
Officer 01480 388405

52



PAP/M10
HUNTINGDON TOWN COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMENTS : 29" SEPTEMBER 2011 (Q\u
i\

1100668FUL WEST
British Red Cross Society, 44 Moorfields, London EC2Y 9AL

Erection of temporary building and creation of temporary car parking - British Red Cross
Society Castle Moat Road Huntingdon

Recommend APPROVAL

Amendment: 30/06/2011 - Additional information received. Amendment 27/07/2011- 1.
Revised Design & Access Statement; 2. Vehicle tracking plans; 3. Site layout - section
line and additional levels Amendment: 01/09/2011- Amended fence line; Tracking Plan
from Ring Road.

Amendment 29/9/2011- 1. Tracking path per incoming and outgoing vehicles. 2.
Hoarding line adjusted to increase width of access way.

Amendment 30/06/2011 - The Panel requires further information in connection with this
application, since it appears to suggest that the access behind bungalows 9-12 will be
blocked by the proposed development. Providing this is not the case, the panel
recommends approval.

Amendment 11/08/11 - Recommend APPROVAL.

Amendment 1/9/2011 - Recommend APPROVAL

Amendment 29/09/11 Recommend APPROVAL

1101507CLP EAST
Mr & Mrs T Karr, 10 Peregrine Close, Hartford PE29 1UZ

Certificate of proposed lawful development for loft conversion with box dorpasr —
10 Peregrine Close, Hartford PE29 1UZ

Recommend APPROVAL

1101508FUL EAST

Mr & Mrs Holmes, 4 Lark Crescent, Hartford, PE29

Construction of side/back extensions to propérty - 4 Lark Crescent, Hartford PE29 1YN

Recommend APPROVAL subjectto the use of matching materials sympathetic to
the existing and surroundingproperties.

1101554REP EAST
Owner, 5 Temple €lose, Huntingdon PE29 3QX

Replacement of Planning Permission 0801852FUL for demolition of existing bungalow
and etettion of two flats - 3 Temple Close, Huntingdon PE29 3QX

e Panel recommended APPROVAL for the replacement of Planning Permission
and gave no further comments

53




Development Management Panel
Application Ref: 1100668FUL Huntin g donshire

Location: Huntingdon DISTRICT C€COUNTZ CIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

‘L
WaldenYXJous 13. 28 \ TR
g ‘%%:&J D)
< Har-tf 'l
HILL ﬂ 2 «j a
[Car Park (Below) rd{é’
2 A\ : ==
orw
Huntingdo
Bank %
§> HUNTING
ely Hol 5
= ‘ﬁ*-}‘%
Hawkin d T
3 n(e\ N 4
: w:si o Bills _,___‘_','
O Library 5
e &
4’ 4 Dilley ) ALt @o&‘ I
2 o \ e@‘ < '—\‘"‘ L
7(0 o© ‘\7' %
< RE
7 ) S
ey o) Gk e&o»o ‘ &
[y OO e Sy
% i NP \N%”/\Y\ a
& 15.
> c
¢ / o
o) Car Park
o )
Bus Station Parish Boo
2 15.

® 3
() 6,(@
2 X2 ==
Q %) =%
e
Methddist
Path (um - Chur
13/5m —waer HOVS 5
C 13. ent, . Offices) %
487( o Cnar, L uncit AT RoAD S
TRog ES
& 13.8m
14.71 ’ . ,
\ Castle Hi fidge Hotel
°
Q

Hill Lgdg
Car Park &

pad %
AR
E CASTL /
e > %

Motte and Baileys<=

pAj AU

0

El Sub Sta

Edward Hopst

1t033
35 to 45

WATERS MEET

~d Jrknddode T4

Gas Distribution “-____________—— g
— -
ot

] L) - palh

Legend

V// The Site
oo :_ | Conservation Area & o
et -— - g

o

Scale: 1:2500 54



OIS 2 NILLEN AS L4393 3

MOM 3O

*09'sUMdWO|LEUSINS O]

29£9 ¥9 b09LO wisoe 4
9969 9 b09LO :auoydaja]
g0 9NN

uojdweyuoN

IIoMAS

peoy Aqusy Siesi

utre afepon

w00 SAINLAVA 8 SNIIJWOL WYHSINS

INIWIDVYNVIN LO3rOHd ® SFOINHAS TYHNLOFLIHOHY

a4a  eva®00s:L 10z 934 \vd 80/0LLY

QIH0IHD NMYHa Fw0s 3lva NQISIrgH ON DNIMYHa

AL3ID0S $SOYD A3y HSILYg

404

NOJONIINNH

dvOd LVYOW F11Sv0

v

(03S0dOHd SV NV1d %0019 ONIQTING AHYHOJNI L 3S0d0Hd
U ONIMvHA L93r0Yd

= ava INFNONT Y
v Lrooel NMOHS BNIYEVd / 33HL / HIAOSSOHO B QIANIWY WK AUIS

102 NN €1

SIADINHFS DONINNY 2
S30INN3S
ALINDWWOD 8 TYLNIWNONIANT |

T
67102000} J8quinu aousdlT "paaiesal siybu |1y * | 102 WbBlAdod umoln (9) Aaaing eourUpPIO

ZExS,

TIH 37118V0

noD du,.:m,‘no

»mmuEO o
soputied

asnoH




(13AvyD)

T7IH 371LSvD T
§<,NP_O

RS e —— OO
O o LONLS
or
B paulejau 2ousy paeoq
———— 250|0 Jaquig buiisixg
OVINHYL
\

Buip|ing JawJoy o ge|s Jooyy
WOJ} pUe 03 552008 2[OIYIA
ysniy mojje 03 uoijeooads
ubisaq adeospue

940 ev@00e L HL0Z TiddY m 0 —f\o (VA%
DO v avos Ava ‘NS ONBNivia

AL3I00S SSOHO A3 HSILIHg
H04

NOGONILNNH (o))
QVON LYON F1LSvO %@ ) o0Jg pire 03 UOIFONIISUOD
v
0350d0Hd S¥ 1NOAV1 3LIS ONITTING AHVHOI 03S0dOHd Aielodwag ysm pauonoo
" FuLehivea a0 29 03 payojey UMoYs seauy
i dva

weo a<

|lejop ubisaq
odeospue] umoug pineq
01 bupuay uoijoajoud 224

$5300V 1 QuINENL

oy LPHGIM LIDJSA
buisixo &3 pajoauuoo
buipjing, Asesodwiog
wo) obeuies(
uoebijsanul
|eoibojoseyye |eiul
Aq pauiizioR yojip
2730w JO Ul Xqdddy

G300V 3N AYYONNOR ¥ OOV

S s e\
\\\\\\.W\N. = .».uuﬂnnnmnw

by 2e?

o 77
0

paulejal 20U}y 9o
ybiy wig | Buigsixg

ge|s obeueb pouiejos o Jead uo
20UD} PJeOq 950[0 YbIY WQ" |
Ul paWIo) 24035 UIg PapIs-¢
bumesp ubisoq adeospue
umoug pPIneq Yjim 2oUuepIoooe
un soeug Auesodwag yaim
P24oA0D 29 03 oAUP 23eAld
WO} BDJE SS9008 MO|je OF
Porowou obesedb uowuoy jo mm@

opeujsnieq | 2|A1s pue bunosp parogub
MS pa3eaJ] buoua suosyoel ul pawloy
[2A2] Jooyy buip|ing Aueiodwag 03 delg
buijsixo wouy 562008 paduied Jagui|

Bseud 35214 Ul Saom
jeaibojoseLoie Buunp parowas
59 03 geIs 4oo)y buisixg v

249U20 204N0S24

24n3ny J0 Sjed Jeo osn

071 AIesso0ou eade 552008
wnwiuiw Ag paulwisiop
seade 23is buijeledos
Buipaeoy Aid suluew pajuied
29ym ybiy wi g Jo aur

aul| Auepunoq vmﬁw%

03 2oueIES(O UIW WO' G 2AID
03 931 2pISUl JoYIN} P3O
paeoy Atesodway pue parowad
—L 2ouoy @D ybiy wy | buigsixg

Lovey® sso00y
0 s3ybry buiney smojebung
UM O¥g jo diysuoumo
Jopun oAud  931s 03

Ajuo sueo 4oy 56200y :J1ON

WO+ i)
20N33  syuom Abojoseyoue

)2&% paJinbau Aluo ss2000y
‘KeM2AIP 1O LJpIm Jed|0
25e2.40UI 0] PaUoIfISOdal

pue 2715 Ul paonpaJ

buipaeoy 03 21eb jo jea| auQ
Aemanip

10 yjbua| buoje oewueq

ul aulj@ousy buole poob apew
AP 27eAld pue parowal

wﬂm&% Wi | buigsixg

paulejos 90U2} pJeod
2500 Jaquig buijsixg

snyy pajousp dejs
Jooyy buijsixa jo quaixg

uoreoldde

buiuue|d 24ngny 2qesedas jo
Jued se pajgiugns 24 03 2Jju20
20410524 MaU 4O Sjie3ad :J1ON

. ' uoijebijsanul
|eoibojoseyoue |erjiul
/\ Ag pauiwiojep yogip
A32ieq jo aul| xouddy

ogeNeYoIng

Asesodwag pue smojebung

071 552008 U0} D|qepene

uoude jo ypim @_E\Eo‘m
5 -

=

poJ2jeun
PoUIB}U JDAOSSOUD
JejnoIyoA buijsixg



L] 3 - 66953 L]

anss|

£ e Buwoig 001l s
110Z/10/61 = W g
juswabubaiy
UOI}DAS|F
108l0ug
uopbununy ...
sweysAg buippng
SOIDPOSOY ..
uol}bAa|3 pul uci}bAs|3 Josy

oy #3100 A9 E !
N~
T}
DM\/-MONN- uclibas|3 pu3 co_~o>om Juca4
102 ddv 82
SIDINGIS ONINNVId
SADINAGIS
ALINDWWOO B TVLNIANOHIANT

8390011

S3I0N

l m - mmomu JoquINu. Buimo.g

anss|




e $6963

1 Joquinu Bumoag

nox o4 suonnjos Zupymg Lv_ Lv_
w7 smasdg Surpyng spepasoy o . : ]

1

CY sz Bumnig 0G:L  =p3xs
1L0Z/10/61 e WA umeig

juswebubily
[ SETER)
yoaloug
uopbununy ..
swaiskg buip|ing
SO|DPoSOY

oL

94015

wal

-
o Ton

=

0066

o8

|
|
|
|
|
A |
- od ke H ) " A
]| & | upo7 |poipaiy
25 @Q OM m
S E=—p2|qDsI(] | |
CENERE]= A '
1oz ¥dV 82 A _
SIDIAHTS ONINNN1d _ w
S3ADIAGEES |
ALINOWWOD 2 TVINIWNOHIANT 1 Ua Yo} w 7 CCOOW* @C_C_D\_._-
I 1 |
i W — ——==I %

gganntl

S3ION OONN —\

6951

Jaqunu_Buimoig

anss|




Agenda ltem 5b

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 17 OCTOBER 2011

Case No: 1101418FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING CAR PARK ENTRANCE AND
ROAD ACCESS, ERECTION OF A BIRD WATCHERS HIDE,
CONSTRUCTION OF GRANULAR MATERIAL FOOTPATH,
CULVERTING OF TWO DITCHES TO FORM CROSSING
POINT FOR GRASS FOOTPATH AND CONSTRUCTION OF
DITCHES AS PART OF THE GREAT FEN PROJECT

Location: HALFWAY FARM, LONG DROVE

Applicant:  WILDLIFE TRUST FOR BEDS, CAMBS, NORTHANTS AND
PETERBOROUGH

Grid Ref: 522229 287621
Date of Registration: 25.08.2011

Parish: HOLME

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 The application site is to the east of Holme and adjacent to the B660.
The site is some 73 hectares and is currently arable and grass land
with some animal grazing.

1.2 The site is within the Environment Agency Flood Zone 3.

1.3 The application is for alterations to existing car park entrance and
road access, erection of bird watchers hide, construction of granular
material footpath, culverting of two ditches to form crossing point for
grass footpath and construction of ditches as part of the Great Fen
Project. These works comprise of the first phases of a programme to
deliver visitor facilities in this part of the Great Fen.

14 For information, whilst the application contains details of information
boards for the car park, these are considered to have Deemed
Advertisement Consent.

1.5 The application is referred to the Panel for probity reasons because it
is a major application submitted by the District Council.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 PPS1: “Delivering Sustainable Development” (2005) contains
advice on the operation of the plan-led system.

59



2.2 PPS7: “Sustainable Development in Rural Areas” (2004) sets out
the Government's planning policies for rural areas, including country
towns and villages and the wider, largely undeveloped countryside up
to the fringes of larger urban areas.

2.3 PPG13: “Transport” (2011) provides guidance in relation to
transport and particularly the integration of planning and transport.

2.4 PPG17: “Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation” (2002)
sets out the policies needed to be taken into account by regional
planning bodies in the preparation of Regional Planning Guidance (or
any successor) and by local planning authorities in the preparation of
development plans (or their successors); they may also be material to
decisions on individual planning applications.

2.5 PPS25: “Development and Flood Risk” (revised 2010) sets out
Government policy on development and flood risk. Its aims are to
ensure that flood risk is taken into account at all stages in the
planning process to avoid inappropriate development in areas at risk
of flooding, and to direct development away from areas of highest
risk. Where new development is, exceptionally, necessary in such
areas, policy aims to make it safe, without increasing flood risk
elsewhere, and, where possible, reducing flood risk overall.

2.6 Draft National Planning Policy Framework: Consultation (2011) -
sets out the Government’s key economic, social and environmental
objectives and the planning policies to deliver them. The intention is
that these policies will provide local communities with the tools they
need to energise their local economies, meet housing needs, plan for
a low-carbon future and protect the environmental and cultural
landscapes that they value. It seeks to free communities from
unnecessarily prescriptive central government policies, empowering
local councils to deliver innovative solutions that work for their local
area.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links
to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e EG6: “Tourism” - Proposals for tourist development should be fully
sustainable in terms of their impact on host communities, local
distinctiveness and natural and built environments.

o ENV3: “Biodiversity and Earth Heritage” it should be ensured that
the region’s wider biodiversity, earth heritage and natural

60



3.2

3.3

resources are protected and enriched through conservation,
restoration and re-establishment of key resources.

e ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration.

e WAT4: “Flood Risk Management” — River flooding is a significant
risk in parts. The priorities are to defend existing properties from
flooding and locate new development where there is little or no
flooding.

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

e No relevant policies

Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e R1: “Recreation and Leisure Provision” — will directly promote
district wide recreation and leisure projects and generally support
leisure and recreation facilities commensurate with population
levels, housing developments and identified need.

e R13:"Countryside Recreation” — provision of facilities for informal
countryside recreation subject to the criteria of R2 (namely:
advice from sporting recreation authorities on the need for further
provision; the effect on residential amenity; the effect on
landscape, visual amenity, nature conservation and
archaeological interest; access, parking and traffic generation;
the siting, design and materials of any building and structures)
will be supported.

¢ R15: “Countryside Recreation” — will seek to improve access to
the countryside, including the network of public rights of way with
a view to modifying, extending and improving the network where
appropriate.

e En17: "Development in the Countryside" - development in the
countryside is restricted to that which is essential to the effective
operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry, permitted
mineral extraction, outdoor recreation or public utility services.

e En22: “Conservation” — wherever relevant, the determination of
applications will take appropriate consideration of nature and
wildlife conservation.

e En24: “Access for the disabled” — provision of access for the
disabled will be encouraged in new development

61



3.4

3.5

3.6

e En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

e To1: “Promotion and Development” offers support for the
development of tourism opportunities at an appropriate scale.

e To2: “New or improved tourist facilities” — will be encouraged
where the scale and location is not environmentally detrimental
and in keeping with the landscape and not damaging to
residential amenities

e To11: “Farm based developments” — which support tourism will
be supported, subject to agricultural considerations, where they
are not environmentally detrimental, nor damaging to residential
amenities, and where satisfactory access and car parking can be
provided.

e (CS8: “Water” — satisfactory arrangements for the availability of
water supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities, surface
water run-off facilities and provision for land drainage will be
required.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

¢ No relevant policies

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development. Including reducing
water consumption and wastage, minimising impact on water
resources and water quality and managing flood risk.

e (CS9: “Strategic Green Space Enhancement” - coordinated action
will be taken to safeguard existing and potential sites of nature
conservation value, create new wildlife habitats, contribute to
diversification of the local economy and tourist development
through enhancement of existing and provision of new facilities,
create appropriate access for a wide range of users to enjoy the
countryside and contribute where possible to enhanced flood
protection.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

62



3.7

3.8

e C5: “Flood Risk and Water Management” — development
proposals should include suitable flood protection / mitigation to
not increase risk of flooding elsewhere. Sustainable drainage
systems should be used where technically feasible. There should
be no adverse impact on or risk to quantity or quality of water

resources.

e E1:. “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the

proposal.

o E4: “Biodiversity and Protected Habitats and Species”

proposals will not be permitted where there is a likely adverse
impact on a site of national importance for biodiversity or
geology. The only exception will be for overriding reasons of

human health, public safety or environmental benefit.

e E6: “The Great Fen” — within the Great Fen area, planning
permission will only be granted for proposals which will deliver
the implementation of the Great Fen and which are consistent

with the Master Plan for the area or successor documents.

o E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord
with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1
‘Parking Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities

shall be provided to serve the needs of the development.

e P7: “Development in the Countryside” — development in the

countryside is restricted to those listed within the given criteria.

a. essential operational development for agriculture,
horticulture or forestry, outdoor recreation, equine-related
activities, allocated mineral extraction or waste management

facilities, infrastructure provision and national defence;

b. development required for new or existing outdoor leisure

and recreation where a countryside location is justified;
c. renewable energy generation schemes;

d. conservation or enhancement of specific features or sites

of heritage or biodiversity value;

e. the alteration, replacement, extension or change of use of
existing buildings in accordance with other policies of the

LDF;

f. the erection or extension of outbuildings ancillary or

incidental to existing dwellings;

g. sites allocated for particular purposes in other

Development Plan Documents.

Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape Assessment (2007)

The Great Fen Masterplan

63



41

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

6.1

71

PLANNING HISTORY
No relevant planning history
CONSULTATIONS

Holme Parish Council — No observations in favour or against the
proposal

Environment Agency — No objection however suggest the Internal
Drainage Board should be consulted.

Internal Drainage Board — have advised that they may comment,
Members will be updated at or before the meeting.

CCC Highways — No objection subject to a number of planning
conditions relating to the position of gates, the access gradient, width,
radii, drainage and visibility, on-site turning and parking and signage.
REPRESENTATIONS

No representations received.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues to consider in assessing this application are those of

the principle of development, design and visual impact, residential
amenity, highway safety and flooding.

Principle of development:

7.2

The proposed works are related to the Great Fen Project and related
to the objectives of this project of enhancing this area and increasing
access and promotion of this outdoor space for recreation and
leisure. The principle of the proposals is therefore consistent with
both national and local planning policy.

Design and visual impact:

7.3

7.4

Car park and access — The works at Halfway Farm propose a new
entrance and visibility splay, a barrier to restrict vehicle entry to the
site to cars only, a car parking area and area for information boards.
There will be little change to the actual physical appearance of this
area apart from the introduction of the car parking area. As this
appears to be a former farmyard this area could have been previously
used for heavy agricultural vehicles and equipment. The car park will
provide access for visitors to the Great Fen and is therefore
considered acceptable.

Observation hide — The hide is proposed to be located approximately
280 metres to the north of the car park area. The proposed hide will
be constructed from Straw Bales with the exterior finished in a lime
render which will be coloured to blend with the landscape. The floor
and roof will be formed from softwood with the three glazed windows
proposed on the front elevation. The hide will be located within the
tree line of the wooded area to the north and viewed within this
setting. The proposed development is considered to be sensitive to its

64



7.5

7.6

environment and as it to be constructed of natural materials would be
appropriate in this open location.

Granular material footpath — The footpath provides access from the
car park to the picnic area and the start of grass path walks around
the perimeter of the site. This is considered to have no adverse visual
impact and provides good access for visitors to the site.

Culverting and creation of ditches — These proposed works allow the
paths to be created and contained within the desired routes whilst
again providing good access around the site.

Residential amenity:

7.7

There are no nearby residential properties that would be adversely
affected by the minimal works related to this application.

Highway safety:

7.8

The access proposed conforms in design and vehicle to vehicle
visibility for the speed of the road and the number of vehicles likely to
use the car park. The use of the car park will be restricted to small
vehicles by use of a height barrier. The Local Highways Authority has
advised that it will be important that a suitable acceptable signage
scheme is submitted to inform drivers and make the facility more
prominent from a drivers’ perspective. Conditions are recommended
to ensure highway safety for users of the site and those on the
adjoining public highway.

Flooding:

7.9

7.10

7.11

The site is within the Environment Agency Flood Zone 3 — High
Probability however the Huntingdonshire Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment shows the area is defended by the flood banks on the
Middle Level watercourses. The use of land as amenity open space,
nature conservation and biodiversity, outdoor sports and recreation
fall within the definition of ‘water compatible’ development in
accordance with Planning Policy Statement 25 and therefore this type
of development is acceptable within this Flood Zone.

The submitted Flood Risk Assessment states that during
construction, no extra surface water run-off will take place and there
will be no effect on flood levels downstream and flood plain storage
capacity will not be reduced through the proposals.

The Environment Agency raises no objection to the proposed
development but refer to the site being within the operational area of
the Holmewood and District Internal Drainage Board. The Middle
Level Commissioners have been consulted and any comments
received will be reported to Members at or before the meeting.

Conclusion:

712

The application, as part of the Great Fen Project, is considered to be
compliant with Development Plan policies and supplementary
planning documents listed above by virtue of:

65



* Promoting access to the countryside for recreation and leisure

* Providing development of an appropriate design that causes no
significant detrimental impact

* Causing no significant impact to residential amenity

* Providing acceptable access and parking provision for cars

* Subject to any comments received from the MLC, no increased
flood risk to surroundings or unacceptable risk to visitors

As such the proposal is compliant with PPS1, PPS7, PPG13, PPG17,
PPS25, policies E6, ENV3, ENV7 and WAT4 of the East of England
Plan 2008, policies CS1 and CS9 of the Huntingdonshire Adopted
Core Strategy 2009, policies R1, R13, R15, En17, En22, En24, En25,
To1, To2, To11 and CS8 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995,
policies C5, E1, E4, E6, E10 and P7 of the Development
Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010.

8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to conditions to include
the following:
02003 Time Limit (3 years)
Nonstand Gates (set back)
Nonstand Gradient of vehicular access
Nonstand Access width
Nonstand Laying out of car park and turning
Nonstand Vehicular visibility splays
Nonstand Access junction — 6m radius kerbs
Nonstand Access drainage measures
Nonstand Signage

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Ms Louise Newcombe Development
Management Team Leader 01480 388370

66



01487773178 p.1

Huntingdonshire

DFsSTRUET CoOUNCIL

22 Sep 11 16:59 Neil Benham

Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street

Huniingdon. PE29 3TN Tel: 01480 3858388
mail@huntsdec.gov.uk Fax: 01480 388099
www.huntingdonshire. gov.uk
Head of Planning Services \/
Pathfinder House A \\\
St. Mary's Street A
Huntingdon b\
Cambridgeshire PE 29 3TN qL;

Application Number: 1101418F UL Case Officer Ms Louise Newcombe

Proposal: Alterations to existing car park entrance and road access, erection of a bird
watchers hide, construction of granular material footpath, culverting of two ditches to form
crossing point for grass footpath and construction of ditches as part of the Great Fen Project
Location: Halfway FarmLong DroveHolme

Observations of Holme Town/Parish Council.

Please ¥ box as appropriate

Recommend approval because -.....{please give relevant planning reasons in space below)

D Recommend refusal because...(please give relevant planning reasons in space below)

’E No observations either in favour or against the proposal

--Clerk to Hoime Fewn/Parish Council.

Date: =1} q

Failure ta return this form within the time indicated will be taken as an indication that the Town or
Parish Council do not €xpress any opinion either for or against the application.



Development Management Panel ' G
Application Ref: 1101418FUL Hu n‘l‘ingdonshire

Location: Stilton DISTRICT €OUNTZ CIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

S
rhouse
Sykm,

(]

Legend / : ‘ 1
/ [777] The site
7 /NS [ 4

: 1:25000
Scale 6 8




ﬁ LO/4D/SSS owama

pejeojpu| Se SnoueA  ves

wied AemyieH
Juiod uonewsoul
ued eI

wor

B11USUOPBUIUNH
~—v——

uerg uop

ozis 1aded 009x00Z} @00S: | 8[eds

Jeyawiad
Buiwoy
sdwnjg

eQ bog

w0l Jo Bujuedo’
pauiquo "sejed|

EENETTT) ESIENTE] ubly we'} omy
spm wzy € puejsod
0} UofoLSa ubly we'y
Jsiueq
by we'g

ojeb sBujuue|d
opim Wg pEoY
Wby uz'y|  [PeRA>-eY

Bunsix3 - wie4 Akemyjey

_aqpsl 01 [

b L E¢ o

oteueip
fop B

sounp
oeueip
g

ueyd

2D noAe| Bupsixa uy
Lo 5 pasn sjoquiks o0} Aoy

5o Buppooy
uopeNer3 apig Bupsrea - wieg AemeH,

T TH

one 12ded00900ZIBO0Z oS

o 10ded00910021D00Z: | oe0S:

won Suproor
voneASE3 o Bune3 - e femeH

ozis laded 009x00z} @000Z: b

N 2

us4 awjoH




20/4D/SSS v owwna [ — s mnssanena | P |
L , i » |- O EE e | et e I= |
Pajeopul se sNouB)  swos iod uopeuLoju| 53 egm 8.5 3o povenr 59 ¢ up wan | 0 sumq mirves e 58 08 01 1 wan|
us4 el dde Bujuueld SHIOM doud o} Aoy
o
I5T¥1s1a it e e (ST mmosees o yed 2 g secce e pun
suopBupuny” I 2R Te== " e e
(l"\\ oJddy Bujuuejd B 94 JOU SHJOM pasodoid o) Aoy
\
10010 oud swopum pazeiB. \
Buimous uonesis epis Bumous uopensie uoiy Ilem ou sey uonensie ey

! I

o2 Joded 009X00Z4DOOL} 9105

‘S OfeG Mess ou) 1o}

1001 84w, O} AN Aq SUOISUBWIP [EJ8AO SPIY 8L} SONPSI
PIN0D 971 318q U LOBLEA SI) PUE S8[eq ME1s 3L jo Sezis

“seup pophoe:
oues Jo sisisuoo

“Swieeq Jqui o pre| Bupjueid POOMJOS 0013
ssye|

Sifem Buiping wioy
BuBIBAO 001 BUMOUS UEld

. .
e 1281 OU 5| 8101 “aciE98pUE LM U]

ueid Uy suopeAsle

opis pue Jeas uos BUIMOYS ‘SPIH UOPEAISSIO

ot Viepaio wope & 'y e
g0 ohues tpdop oL | Lo opn ur

J8pIEq 5 198 O} YOI MO

BOUBIIUS BPIM WG
0} uogoLIsal
Jeuseq ybly wz'z

juswalinbal 90|
iad se Aejds eaibap|
St yum Buoj wg
8ouEAUs deuLE |

[seoeds g¢ - Bupyed
2)jqnd Jo} s|qepere
®ale ujJnoke|
Bupped sAgeoipu|

©aJe UONeUIoju] 5 moEm.: SSS|
| bR emmea ey | e eod
9] yeo Boq [euonippy " uopeuvow sany1

TET
paeyoI0 pio Buowe pauopisod

e)is Jo Jejewpied oy} punose sem yied
2.6 Jo ueys pue eaue ojuoid 0} sued Jed
oy sseooe apiaoid o) sebps uepoom

Ui yed [eusiew Jeinuelb spim Wz

Sylom pesodoud - ueq AemjjeH

92is 009%X00Z} ®000Z:}

uag swjoH




Agenda ltem 6a

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 17 OCT 11

Case No: 1101473S73 (RENEWAL OF CONSENT/VARY CONDITIONS)

Proposal: VARIATION OF CONDITION 10 OF PLANNING PERMISSION
0800897FUL FOR ERECTION OF SUPERMARKET TO: THE
USE HEREBY PERMITTED SHALL NOT BE OPEN TO
CUSTOMERS OUTSIDE THE FOLLOWING TIMES: 0700 TO
22.00 MONDAY TO SUNDAY INCLUDING PUBLIC/BANK
HOLIDAYS

Location: 20 GLATTON ROAD PE28 5SY

Applicant: ANGLIA REGIONAL CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETY LTD

Grid Ref: 516620 284182

Date of Registration: 06.09.2011

Parish: SAWTRY

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 Members may recall that planning permission was granted for the
erection of a new Co-op store on this site at Development
Management Panel in September 2008, application reference
0800897FUL.

1.2 Permission was granted subject to a number of conditions, including
condition 10 which stated: “The use hereby permitted shall not be open
to customers outside the following times: 0700 to 2200 Monday to
Saturday and 0800 to 2000 Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays.”
These were the hours proposed by the applicant at that time.

1.3 The development has commenced on site and the applicant is now
seeking a variation of this condition to permit additional opening hours
on Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays to match Monday to Saturday
opening hours. The application would thereby permit opening hours of
0700 — 2200 Monday to Sunday, including Public and Bank Holidays.
The applicant advises that this reflects other stores within the region.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

PPS1: “Delivering Sustainable Development” (2005) contains
advice on the operation of the plan-led system.

PPS4: “Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth” (2009) sets

out the Government's comprehensive policy framework for planning for
sustainable economic development in urban and rural areas.

71



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

PPG24: “Planning & Noise” (1994) guides planning authorities on the
use of planning powers to minimise the adverse impact of noise.

Draft National Planning Policy Framework: Consultation (2011) -
sets out the Government's key economic, social and environmental
objectives and the planning policies to deliver them. The intention is
that these policies will provide local communities with the tools they
need to energise their local economies, meet housing needs, plan for a
low-carbon future and protect the environmental and cultural
landscapes that they value. It seeks to free communities from
unnecessarily prescriptive central government policies, empowering
local councils to deliver innovative solutions that work for their local
area.

For full details visit the government website
http://www.communities.gov.uk  and follow the links to planning,
Building and Environment, Planning, Planning Policy.

PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building
and Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance,
Planning Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to
Live

East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links
to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration.

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and Structure
Plan 2003.

e None relevant

Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e H30: “Existing Residential Areas” — Planning permission will not
normally be granted for the introduction of, or extension to,
commercial uses or activities within existing residential areas
where this would be likely to have a detrimental effect on
amenities.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies
from the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and

72



3.5

3.6

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

6.1

viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on
"Local Plan Alteration (2002)

e None relevant

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

e E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of the
surrounding environment and the potential impact of the proposal.

e H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

PLANNING HISTORY

0800897FUL - Permission was granted for the erection of a
supermarket.

1100295NMA — minor alterations to the external fenestration.
Approved.

1101223ADV — A spilt decision permitting the main fascia signage but
refusing the proposed totem sign on the road frontage.

CONSULTATIONS
Parish Council — Recommend refusal (copy attached)

Environmental Health Officer — no objection subject to deliveries not
occurring on Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays.

REPRESENTATIONS

78 Deer Park Road — Objection

- This is a quiet edge of village location.

- The application cites accessibility, but this is misleading in
how this store will be accessed.

- Deer Park Road junction has not been mentioned throughout
and can foresee dangerous congestion that will require traffic
management and control measures at a later time, which will
be increased when the residential development on Gidding
Road opens.

73



7.1

7.2

7.3

- The reasons for this application are lame.

- To open this shop for these hours will destroy the residential
nature of this part of the village.

- The applicant has merely played the system and this was
always their intention.

- This is not reflective of the regions stores.

- This store is now in a completely different traffic and trading
environment to the present location.

- It is an abuse of the local community to try to impose
shopping mall hours in a village setting.

- The sanctity of a Sunday should be preserved.

- Holidays should be that — with stores closed.

- Any application for extended hours in whatever guise should
be rejected.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issue to consider in relation to this Section 73 application is
whether the proposed revisions to the condition are acceptable. The
reason for this condition was “in the interests of residential amenity”.
The previous permission conditioned the times in accordance with the
hours initially requested by the applicants through the application
process. It is understood that the reason behind the current application
to vary those originally conditioned is to ensure that the Sawtry Co-op
hours of operation are in accordance with those of other stores in the
region. Whilst it is noted from the third party representation that this
may not be reflective of many stores within the region, this is not a
material planning consideration and an assessment should be made
on the merits of this application.

It is noted that the site is located within a mixed use area with
residential properties to the south and across Glatton Road to the west,
however the Environmental Health Officer has confirmed that the hours
proposed for the shopping use are acceptable in principle in a
residential area. Notwithstanding this, alongside extended opening
hours on Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays, it has been suggested
that the hours of delivery be prohibited on Sundays and Bank Holidays
to limit disturbance to nearby residents. It is acknowledged that
Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays are days usually of rest and as
such to restrict the hours of delivery in such a manner is considered
reasonable to preserve neighbouring amenity and minimise any
potential disturbance. There is no restriction on the time of deliveries
as part of the original permission, although there was a condition
requiring a scheme for the mitigation of noise associated with
deliveries. The net effect of this proposal and recommended condition
would therefore be that opening hours could be longer on Sundays and
Public/Bank Holidays but there would be no deliveries on those days.

Comments have been made in respect of traffic movements within the
locality. Much of this issue was addressed within the 2008 application
and cannot be rehearsed here, as that is not in respect of this
application. However, the revised hours will result in some traffic
movements during the extended period relating to this use, however,
this is a main thoroughfare through the settlement and the hours are
such and on days whereby traffic movements will be lower and as such
unlikely to result in any significant detrimental harm to highway safety.

74



7.4

7.5

7.6

7.8

Concerns have also been raised in respect of the potential for this
application to change the character of the area. Whilst the concerns
are duly noted, the permission for the erection of the store exists and
this application only proposes an additional 4 hours trading on set
days. This is not considered to be significant in the larger scale of the
approved scheme, and whilst the store may have been closed under
the terms of the 2008 permission, its presence would still be there at all
times.

It is therefore considered that the application to vary the opening hours
is acceptable and a recommendation of refusal could not be upheld on
the basis of 4 additional hours trading, subject to the imposition of an
appropriate planning condition pertaining to deliveries.

The proposed extension of hours of operation is not considered to be
detrimental to residential amenity and is therefore considered to be in
accordance with policies ENV7 of the East of England Plan (2008);
H30 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995); CS1 of the Core
Strategy (2009); policies E1 and H7 of the Huntingdonshire LDF
Development Management DPD: Proposed Submission (2010); PPS1,
PPS4 and PPG24.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or
an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to
accommodate your needs.

RECOMMENDATION—- APPROVE subject to the variation of the
condition as described in paragraph 1.3 above and the imposition of an
additional condition restricting deliveries.

CONTACT OFFICER: Enquiries about this report to Michelle Nash
Development Management Officer 01480 388405

75



Message Page 1 of 1

Mullord, Peter (Planning Services)

From: Clerk at Sawtry Parish Council [clerk@sawtry-pc.gov.uk]
Sent: 29 September 2011 11:47

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Comments on planning applications

Sawtry Parish Council Planning Committee have made the following recommendations:

1101540FUL — 7 Bramble End — two storey side/rear extension - Recommend approval —
the site is big enough to accommodate the extension. Access to the rear of the property is
being maintained.

1101473573 — Co-op, 20 Glatton Road - variation of opening hours - Recommend refusal
— the original hours are adequate — 7.00 — 22.00 Monday to Saturday, 8.00 — 20.00 on
Sundays and Bank Holidays. This recognises the numbers of opposition to the noise and
opening hours in the original application.

1101531FUL - The Rectory, Church Causeway — extension to front - Recommend approval
— the plot is adequate to cope with the extension. It will be a useful addition to the rectory.

Diane Daviy
Clerk to Sawtry Parish Council

Office hours: 9.00 - 1.00
Monday to Friday

Tel: 01487 831771

Pm 292\

VAN

29/09/2011 76



Huntingdonshire

DI'STRICT COUNZ CIL

Copyright

Development Management Panel

Application Ref: 1101473S73

Location: Sawtry

ty's Stationery Office (C) Crown
HDC 100022322

/] The Site

Legend

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majest
orised re| ion infri i I i ivil i
Scale: 1:2500

;

77



This page is intentionally left blank

/8



Agenda ltem 6b

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 17 OCTOBER 2011

Case No: 1101037FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
Proposal: REPLACEMENT DWELLING

Location: ROSE COTTAGE PUDDOCK ROAD

Applicant: MR AND MRS T W LUMLEY

Grid Ref: 531719 282499

Date of Registration: 15.06.2011

Parish: WARBOYS
RECOMMENDATION - REFUSE
1 DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 Determination of this application was deferred prior to consideration by
Members at the 19th September 2011 DMP meeting to enable issues
in relation to flood risk and the visual impact of flood risk mitigation
measures to be assessed prior to consideration of the application by
the Panel.

1.2 This is a revised proposal for the erection of a dwelling on this site. The
first application (1100353FUL), for a larger dwelling, was refused under
the Delegated Procedure on the 26th May 2011. This application was
the subject of an appeal but this has been withdrawn.

1.3 This site is located in the open countryside approximately 3km north
east of Warboys. The site is part of a much larger field, which is
grassed at present although the aerial photographs suggest that it has
been cultivated in the recent past. The land is level and the boundary
with the road is largely open. There is mixed screening along the other
boundaries although this tends to be rather patchy. Puddock Road
adjoins the north western boundary of the site. There is a dwelling at
the southern end of the site (Rose Cottage), together with a separate
farm, and a dwelling to the north. Built development in the vicinity is
scattered and the majority of the land is in agricultural use.

1.4 The proposal is to demolish Rose Cottage, and to erect a replacement
dwelling on the open field to the north of this property. The main part of
the dwelling will be two storey and will measure 14.9m by 7.3m. At the
rear of this will be a single storey section containing the sitting room,
and measuring 8.5m by 5.85m. A second single storey extension will
be on the south western gable of the building and will measure 6.9m by
4.7m. The maximum ridge height of the building will be 8.5m. with the
single storey sections having a ridge height of 5m. The main building
will be of brick construction but the single storey sections will have a
brick plinth with horizontal timber cladding. The roofs will have a pantile
covering. The design is intended to give the building the appearance of
a “barn” despite the fact that there are few such structures in the

79



immediate vicinity. A new access will be provided from Puddock Road.
The application was accompanied by an initial Flood Risk Assessment
and this was revised in July.

1.5 The site is in the open countryside and Puddock Road is classified
(C117). The land is liable to flood.

2 NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 PPS1 — Delivering Sustainable Development (2005) contains advice on
the operation of the plan-led system.

2.2 PPS3 - “Housing” (2011) sets out how the planning system supports
the growth of housing completions needed in England.

2.3 PPS7 — Sustainable development in rural areas (2004). Sets out the
Government'’s planning policies for rural areas, including country towns
and villages and the wider, largely undeveloped countryside up to the
fringes of larger urban areas.

2.4 PPS25 — Development and Flood Risk (2010) sets out Government
policy on development and flood risk. Its aims are to ensure that flood
risk is taken into account at all stages in the planning process to avoid
inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding, and to direct
development away from areas of highest risk. Where new development
is, exceptionally, necessary in such areas, policy aims to make it safe,
without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and, where possible, reducing
flood risk overall.

2.5 Draft National Planning Policy Framework: Consultation (2011) -
sets out the Government’s key economic, social and environmental
objectives and the planning policies to deliver them. The intention is
that these policies will provide local communities with the tools they
need to energise their local economies, meet housing needs, plan for a
low-carbon future and protect the environmental and cultural
landscapes that they value. It seeks to free communities from
unnecessarily prescriptive central government policies, empowering
local councils to deliver innovative solutions that work for their local
area.

For full details visit the government website
http://www.communities.gov.uk and follow the links to planning,
Building and Environment, Planning, Planning Policy.

3 PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk  then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy
(May 2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then
follow links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

80



. S$81: “Achieving Sustainable Development” — the strategy seeks
to bring about sustainable development by applying the guiding
principles of the UK Sustainable Development Strategy 2005
and the elements contributing to the creation of sustainable
communities described in Sustainable Communities: Homes for
All.

. ENV7 Quality in the Built Environment — requires new
development to be of a high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

. None relevant

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

o H23 Outside Settlements - general presumption against
housing development outside environmental limits with the
exception of specific dwellings required for the efficient
management of agriculture, forestry and horticulture.

o H27 replacement dwellings in the country may be acceptable
provide that proposals only involve modest changes in building
size, are of good design, well related to their setting and do not
create or perpetuate a traffic hazard.

o H31 Residential privacy and amenity standards” — indicates that
new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate
standards of privacy can be maintained and adequate parking
provided.

o H32 “Sub-division of large curtilages” states that support will be
offered only where the resultant dwelling and its curtilage are of
a size and form sympathetic to the locality.

o En17 “Development in the countryside” — development in the
countryside will be restricted to that which is essential to the
efficient operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry,
permitted mineral extraction, outdoor recreation or public utility
services.

o En25 “General Design Criteria” — indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

o CS8 “water” — satisfactory arrangement for the availability of
water supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities, surface

81



water runoff facilities and provision for land drainage will be
required.

o CS9 Flooding. The Council will normally refuse development
proposals that prejudice schemes for flood water management.

3.5 Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies
from the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and
viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on
"Local Plan Alteration (2002)

) HL5 Quality and Density of Development - sets out the criteria
to take into account in assessing whether a proposal represents
a good design and layout.

3.6 Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

o CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
development will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered, including
design, implementation and function of development.

o CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — states that any areas not
specifically identified are classed as part of the countryside,
where development will be strictly limited to that which has
essential need to be located in the countryside.

3.7 Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

o C1: “Sustainable Design” — development proposals should take
account of the predicted impact of climate change over the
expected lifetime of the development.

o C5: “Flood Risk and Water Management” — development
proposals should include suitable flood protection / mitigation to
not increase risk of flooding elsewhere. Sustainable drainage
systems should be used where technically feasible. There
should be no adverse impact on or risk to quantity or quality of
water resources.

o E1 “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

o E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord
with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1
‘Parking Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities
shall be provided to serve the needs of the development.

82



3.8

41

5.1

5.2

5.3

o H5: “Homes in the Countryside” proposals to alter, extend or
replace existing dwellings should not: a. significantly increase
the height or massing of the dwelling, subject to the need to
provide satisfactory living conditions; b. significantly increase
the impact on the surrounding countryside; and entail
development where only the site of the previous dwelling exists
or the previous dwelling has been abandoned.

o H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

o P7: “Development in the Countryside” — development in the
countryside is restricted to those listed within the given criteria:

a.. essential operational development for agriculture,
horticulture or forestry, outdoor recreation, equine-related
activities, allocated mineral extraction or waste management
facilities, infrastructure provision and national defence;

b. development required for new or existing outdoor leisure and
recreation where a countryside location is justified;

c. renewable energy generation schemes;

d. conservation or enhancement of specific features or sites of
heritage or biodiversity value;

e. the alteration, replacement, extension or change of use of
existing buildings in accordance with other policies of the LDF;

f. the erection or extension of outbuildings ancillary or incidental
to existing dwellings;

g. sites allocated for particular purposes in other Development
Plan Documents.

The SPD Design Guide is a material consideration.

PLANNING HISTORY

1100353FUL.  Erection of replacement dwelling.
Refused 26th May 2011. Appeal withdrawn.

CONSULTATIONS

Warboys Parish Council — Approve (copy attached).

Environment Agency — development should not be affected by
flooding from the nearest designated main river (Bury Brook).The
revised FRA is acceptable and a condition is recommended regarding
the proposed floor level, setting this at 150mm above the height of the
adjoining carriageway at 0.4m above Ordnance Datum.

Environmental Health Officer — ground gas risk assessment
recommended.

83



54

6.1

71

Middle Level Commissioners — no objections
REPRESENTATIONS

Neighbours — one letter has been received. The writer supports the
proposal and is of the view that the development is a large
improvement over the existing dwelling.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The issues in this case relate to the principle of the development, the
impact of the development on the character and appearance of the
locality, the impact on neighbours, highway considerations and
flooding.

The principle of the development.

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

This site is in the open countryside for the purposes of the
Development Plan and emerging planning guidance. The relevant
policies are restrictive and will generally only permit development
which has an essential need to be in a rural location. The specific
categories of development which are appropriate in the countryside are
given in policy P7. The applicant is not arguing that the development is
required for one of the permitted exceptions.

The erection of replacement dwellings in the countryside may be
acceptable subject to a number of caveats. These are itemised in
policies H27 and H5.

There are no objections to the demolition of the existing dwelling per se
as it is of no great merit, although it is not untypical, in its form, design
and scale, of many agricultural dwellings built in the area over a period
of many years. This is not necessarily a reason to retain the building in
principle, but any replacement should be subject to the parameters set
down in policies H27 and H5 above. The building appears to be in poor
condition, and there is evidence of cracking in a number of the areas.
The single storey rear extension seems to be parting company from
the main structure. The application has been accompanied by a
structural report which concludes that the building has suffered from
excessive settlement and distortion, due to inadequate foundations,
and the differential effects of the later additions. The building will
continue to deteriorate, and, without proper foundations, there is no
case to support its repair and refurbishment. Due to poor ground
conditions on the site and in the general vicinity of the road, the
structural engineer has recommended that any new dwelling be moved
away from the road and the footprint of the original building.

In principle, the proposal can be seen as an exception to the policies of
restraint relating to development in the countryside, and this type of
application is specifically referred to in paragraph (e) of policy P7. Note
however, that this exception is tempered by the phrase “in accordance
with other policies in the LDF”.

The impact of the development on the character of the area.

7.6

The determining policies in respect of this issue are H27 of the HLP
1995, and policy H5 of the DMDPD. Both policies contain similar

84



7.7

7.8

7.9

provisions relating to the scale of new development which would be
acceptable in the countryside, and, in respect of this proposal, can be
summarised as follows:-

1. The new dwelling should not significantly increase the height and
mass of the original dwelling.

2. The new dwelling should not increase the impact of the original
dwelling on the surrounding countryside

3. The dwelling should be of good design and well related to its setting
4. The development should not create or perpetuate a traffic hazard.

In this case, the present dwelling has ground coverage of
approximately 79 sq.m., added to which should be a further 36 sq.m.
of garages and stores (a total of 115 sq.m.). By comparison, the
proposed dwelling will have a ground coverage of 190.9 sq.m., an
increase of 66%, or 140% if only the existing dwelling is included. A
substantial portion of the proposed dwelling will have two storeys,
whereas the 36 sq.m. of garages and stores of the original dwelling
are small scale, single storey buildings only. The maximum ridge
height of the proposed building will be 8.5m compared with the 6.4 m
of the original building and the main two storey element of the new
dwelling will be 14.9m long, compared with 8m of the original. Other
comparison can be drawn, but, on the basis of the figures quoted
above, the degree of increase in both the ground coverage and bulk
of the building, can only lead to the conclusion that the changes
proposed to the scale of the original building are not “modest” as
required by policy H27, and are “significant” when assessed against
policy H5. On the basis of this comparison, the proposal clearly fails
to meet the tests of policies H27 and H5.

A second requirement of the two policies quoted above is that any
proposal should be well related to its setting, and should not
significantly increase the impact of the original dwelling on the
surrounding countryside. The proposal fails to meet either of these
criteria. The proposal as submitted will extend built development onto
an otherwise undeveloped field and will lead to a greater proliferation
of development along the road. The increased amount of
development (and the domestification of the proposed 1.46 hectare
site which will inevitably follow the proposal) will have an adverse
impact on the rural character of the site and the area as a whole. The
building itself, by reason of its scale and bulk when compared with the
original dwelling, will result in an over-dominant feature on the site,
which will have a significant impact on the overall character of the
area and which will degrade the rural amenities of the locality.

It should be noted that, from information provided in the revised Flood
Risk Assessment, when combined with the E.A.’s recommended
finished floor level, the floor level of the building should be set at
150mm above the present level of Puddock Road, i.e. 0.4m. above
Ordnance Datum. However, the ground level in the vicinity of the
proposed dwelling is —1.11m, and thus the new building would have
to be raised approximately 1.5m above the present site level if the
recommended floor level is to be achieved. This level increase is
significant and will exacerbate the impact of the proposed building on
the character and appearance of the countryside.

85



7.10 A Structural Report prepared for the applicant recommends that the
replacement dwelling is moved away from the road and the footprint
of the original dwelling. These comments regarding the problems of
building on the existing site are noted and it is accepted that a
replacement dwelling would not necessarily have to be built on the
footprint of the existing dwelling. However, this does not provide
justification to agree to a proposal which is so clearly contrary to
policy and, being some 40m from the site of the existing dwelling,
represents such an unacceptable extension of built development onto
undeveloped land along Puddock Road.

7.11 There is no overriding theme to the design of buildings along
Puddock Road but what new buildings have been constructed in
recent years have tended to be traditional two storey properties of
brick and tile construction. There is no precedent for a quasi-barn like
structure which purports to be a “typical rural building” in this
instance, nor is there a tradition of such buildings in this locality. If a
dwelling is ultimately allowed on this site, it should at least pay some
heed to the fenland vernacular and should give up any pretence of
trying to be what it is not.

712 The applicant has put considerable store on the ability to extend the
existing building under the provisions of the GPDO, and arrive at a
structure which is not dissimilar in scale to the new dwelling now
proposed. This assertion does not stand up to close scrutiny. No
explanation or justification of the calculations has been put forward in
the Design and Access Statement and it should be noted that that the
applicant’s figures appear to be based on the dwelling as it exists at
present. The present dwelling cannot be used as the starting point as
the calculation of permitted development allowances should be based
on the “original” dwelling, i.e., the dwelling as it existed in July 1948.
The structural report notes that the building was extended in the
1960’s, and although the agent has stated that this “in effect replaced
a substantial part of the original dwelling house”, no further
information has been provided and thus any permitted development
assessment can only be based on the building less the single story
rear extension and the two storey side extension.

7.13 The current GPDO will allow a number of extensions to this property,
notably to the side and rear but not to the front. Taking the
dimensions of the original building as being approximately 8m by 5m,
on the rear of the building, a single storey extension measuring
approximately 4m by 5m would be permitted development, although a
two storey extension would be limited to 3m by 5m. Single storey
extensions on either side of the building would be limited to half the
width of the building (approx. 2.5m.) and could extend the full depth of
the existing building if combined with a rear extension, or extend a
further 4m if the rear extension was omitted. In either case, the
permitted development tolerance for this building is limited, and even
if it is extended to its maximum its resulting bulk will fall far short of
the scale of the proposed replacement. There is greater scope to
erect out-buildings to the rear of the dwelling, but, given the reported
ground conditions, the erection of any further extensions/buildings in
this site would seem unlikely.

7.14 In the light of the above comments, the proposal is considered to be
contrary to the provisions of policies H27, En25, E1 and H5.

86



The effect of the development on the amenities of neighbouring
properties.

7.15

7.16

The proposed dwelling is some distance from the nearest residential
properties and it should not have an adverse impact on their
amenities by reason of loss of privacy or overbearing impact. The
likely level of activity on the site will not cause a loss of amenity
through increased noise and disturbance, again due to the distances
from the immediate neighbours.

The proposal complies with the requirements of policies H31 and H7.

Highway considerations

717

The provision of an access to this site should not pose any undue
issues as far as highway safety is concerned. The road is not heavily
used, and, being straight, any access would have good visibility in
both directions. Should planning permission be granted, a condition
requiring details of the access improvements would be required.
There is ample space on the site to provide turning space, and there
are sufficient parking spaces to meet the standards in the DMDPD
and policy E10.

Flooding

7.18

7.19

The revised Flood Risk Assessment has been considered by the
Environment Agency. The Agency has raised no objection to the
proposal subject to the recommendation (referred to above) of a
specific floor level. Similarly the Middle Level Commissioners have no
objections to the proposal.

There are no objections to the development on flooding grounds, and
the proposal complies with polices CS8, CS9 and C5.

Other issues

7.20

There are no other material planning considerations which have a
bearing on this proposal.

Conclusions

7.21

1. The proposal does not comply with the policies relating to the
erection of replacement dwellings in the countryside in that it will
extend built development onto an otherwise undeveloped site, and
will significantly increase the scale and bulk of the original building
and hence its impact on the surrounding countryside. The impact of
the development will be exacerbated by the need to build up the site
level.

2. The development will not have an undue impact on the amenities
of the nearest dwellings

3. There are no overriding highway issues.

4. There are no overriding flooding issues.

5. There are no other material planning considerations which have a
significant bearing on the determination of this planning application.

87



7.22

Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and
having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
considered that planning permission should not be granted in this
instance.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

8

8.1

RECOMMENDATION — REFUSE for the following reason

The proposal would be contrary to the provisions of policies H27 and
En25 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, and policies E1 and E5
of the Development Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010 in
that the development, by reason of its form, bulk and massing would
not adequately respect or reflect the scale and nature of the dwelling
it is intended to replace and would, thereby, result in an over-
dominant feature which would be detrimental to, and have an adverse
impact on, the open character and rural appearance of the site and
the area in general. The proposed finished floor level would only
exacerbate the impact of the proposed building on the character and
appearance of the countryside. The proposal would degrade the rural
character of this section of Puddock Road by extending the amount of
built up development and residential curtilage, and the form of the
proposal has not demonstrated that it has adequately responded to
the character or historic pattern of built development in the locality.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to David Hincks Development Management
Officer 01480 388406

88



Huntingdonshire

DISTHRICT COoOuUNCIL

Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street
Huntingdon. PE29 3TN Tel: 01480 388388
mail@huntsdc.gov.uk Fax: 01480 388099

www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk
Head of Planning Services
Pathfinder House
St. Mary's Street

Huntingdon
Cambridgeshire PE 29 3TN

Application Number: 1101037FUL Case Officer David Hincks
Proposal: Replacement dwelling

Location: Rose CottagePuddock RoadWarboys N ; '
Observations of Warboys Town/Parish Council. OM \5 } : ”
Please ¥ box as appropriate o —
- D
L~ Recommend approval because ...... (please give relevant planning reasons in space below)
See attached

Recommend refusal because...(please give relevant planning reasons in space below)

No gbservations either in favour or against the proposal

Date : (Zé{((]

Failure to return this form within the time indicated will be taken as an indication that the Town or
Parish Council do not express any opinion either for or against the application.

=......Clerk to Warboys Tyﬁanarish Council.

89



Application No. 1101037FUL

Replacement dwelling, Rose Cottage, Puddock Road, Warboys

The Parish Council recommend that the above application be approved, subject to the
following conditions:

(a) the use of materials in character with the locality; and

(b)  the withdrawal of permitted development rights from the dwelling to be
constructed.

R Reeves,
Clerk to Warboys Parish Council.

12th July 2011.

90



Development Management Panel : "
Application Ref: 1101037FUL H U n -I-I n g d O n S h | re

Location: Warboys DISTRICT €O0OUNGCIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

.L o C .
g | =l 4 g a, :
7 Y’tﬁg iy "X %
Pl poed iy Q\@?’ L
g [ ‘Qﬁ " Fm v, i
i A : ¥ s L
ot /l/(,\c' 5 ¥ P 19-':(5 ™

LT 2

Legend
/] The Site

Scale: 1:5000



- T shog eny o

‘oY - ¥IOTTrE

ot

=

N-... ... 0

A : Yo frem2 Oy o 2
AT N IR | k3¢ vo0rP $o300y Ergcsiy \ . /
e TIINIWE -— : \!\‘Nﬂ\?\ g
ons/ - deds T\vwﬁﬂvw.w N.W& - O woof b AINF
! - l__
| } |
ATI W7 ML SYWF IV YOS ! ' T o
"lL - - .
P Ll d " ‘-
. 25T07 XYY PHO, 1T N 3 O
| ! : == .-
‘SEwW D ‘SAOTFIM W@LL o =l
TYOY YOQCU2S | e - — v
BN/ TIRAMT AMIN QRSOCLOYY N
> ~
PNt o gt < e 2 =

’J’QNP’?N,”

92




_ "t Wor orv bor

1108 937 I BEYQ

Q\V_\v vy

Gowsirow > 28 b.w
FEVLLOD - FEOY
YOT ONraSIXNT - SY
SNOILVAZTT Y SIve 7

Q00 c Zes

20 SRrMeyC AZAVON

F

AITWT ML SIW R YW Yoo

SYWYo 'SLODYYM
OOy FDOTI T LY
ENITTIMG MFN T 7SO OYS

o

W ETES
00.2Z © Qop-# x000-.§
$1.§ =006/ X00L-T
oG = 000TXOIL

ol12 = ovr-Ex00-L

WHEIT!
£5LC = 008:Lx058 L
70-QL = 0S€L X 9L/

SWFYY 7 Veal

S 8ROIILS

‘Cer?¥ BIOLS
e PYOULT
(PyOLS/ZOY¥YVE
TSEINITII8LO
FVYPEY TPeOL
JHOPTS LSS
rFeOTL GraCTDH

FBvisoD FSOY

(s pevespxT yarang) TSV IAY

g

[R-1-r PV %

mo..mi\\QQ\.oQboO -BINIMONS) NV T - ¥OOTR

‘RSvis00 7SOV

7voss

v
Prassy
x4

Fd bkm\u&-\wﬂv

CAWVTNROY - 4lS

Kawanveog 2178

(sxm)
“woz

INVISL - YOOYS - LEWIS

=g

::Eﬁj

ﬁ omvronry

=44 —
Zan u

R R i

/Oy

==

==

$779V4E

NYTd VOOPS oo vd

rikrr kl
. &
]

==
‘§
§
X

FYOLS u 344

ose’e/

WNOILVAT?T LSV T ALY ON

OSEZ

INOILYANTTT LSV - HLITRS

W NDILDPS . TVOLSLL

CNOILVARTT L SFM - HLNOS

H
5

TV XOOTTAS QL NOILVAZTT

DSOVIA
QIAIROFY

0n7 NOT G

[

H H
H H

4

™
(0))




NV T VOOTS LSV Y

P o M
(Fwawss - avonTWy

Ul s Bk i ' @RE0S OV S

2 W vorewy | SNOIIYATTZ G SAv e

oo/ (e

7

ATTWOT ML SSWF YW 07

STWYD ‘SAO9Y M
QYo FO0T TS
BNITTING MIN TZSOLO Y

;A8 gD IO D O
T avrapo prreay Berr im0 s svateg
ars Vo _pwakd wr oL svepsvaep
3928 @ “Evreree oyl areos 46N oy

27

Py ypred oy aoye greer fo 20ct

[ENYET B G Do VICYS NSV

< Bosyoq veay § vorpeavss

oyl ap ey Qu‘.uw\n\,w QMN oo

SvoOPE SCTTYIrT FIGIVEY RN

.V\fw‘m\ PG

mw.a mﬁ\\ﬂ\.vxfu B ooy Vs

IRCRY PGV fFOVI LS [CFYOZ IS,
v

By oy bt e Tl

aiopS Goyp Ve o Syneg byroes

SSTIVM TONYZLRT

oo Bugrs o yored o By

2500y Ve ot TrpiTeop Sees

vou /€ op sapped Ber3 yortens
=2

ISTHSIN/Z - TN VILXT

Yy NOILDTS TV OIIAL

IV 7S VOOTS - INOUD

éz:i;y

Smirwne g Snowwye @
FPr o

(LS IM - HLOOS) - NOILINT 77 - TT/S

- s==y 08

;; _ _ ,:, _ 7

ostg
=
;:

LA

TYOY . WDOTIOS OL F NOILYATT T

1N

94




Agenda ltem 6¢

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 17 OCTOBER 2011

Case No: 1101350FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
Proposal: RETENTION OF ANNEXE AS DETACHED DWELLING
Location: 32 CRANFIELD WAY BRAMPTON PE28 4QZ
Applicant: MRS L GRAY

Grid Ref: 520709 271012

Date of Registration: 23.08.2011

Parish: BRAMPTON

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 The site relates to an ‘annexe’ to No. 32 Cranfield Way which was
originally the garage for the main dwelling and has subsequently
been extended to provide residential accommodation.

1.2 The ‘annexe’ was approved in 2006 subject to a condition which
stated “The additional residential accommodation hereby approved
shall only be used as ancillary accommodation to the main dwelling
and shall at no time be used as an independent unit of residential
accommodation”. The ‘annexe’ has subsequently been rented and
occupied out on an independent basis.

1.3 This application seeks permission to retain the building as an
independent unit. The Agent has provided an additional plan which
demonstrates residents of both units can share the access and that
two parking spaces can be provided to the front of the ‘annexe’ with
one space to the side of No. 32 on the gravel area.

1.4 The ‘annexe’ has a separate garden area which is defined by a close
boarded fence; the ‘annexe’ accommodation comprises a bedroom
with ensuite, kitchen, and garden room.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 PPS1: "Delivering Sustainable Development” (2005) contains
advice on the operation of the plan-led system.

2.2 PPS3: “Housing” (2011) sets out how the planning system supports
the growth in housing completions needed in England.

2.3 PPG13: “Transport” (2011) sets out the objectives to integrate
planning and transport at the national, strategic and local level and to
promote more sustainable transport choices both for carrying people
and for moving freight.

95



24 PPG18: “Enforcing Planning Control” (1991) outlines the general
approach to enforcement, including the primary responsibility of Local
Planning Authorities in the matter and the decisive issue of whether a
breach of planning control would unacceptably affect public amenity
or the existing use of land and buildings meriting protection in the
public interest.

2.5 Draft National Planning Policy Framework: Consultation (2011) -
sets out the Government's key economic, social and environmental
objectives and the planning policies to deliver them. The intention is
that these policies will provide local communities with the tools they
need to energise their local economies, meet housing needs, plan for
a low-carbon future and protect the environmental and cultural
landscapes that they value. It seeks to free communities from
unnecessarily prescriptive central government policies, empowering
local councils to deliver innovative solutions that work for their local
area.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk  then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e SS1: “Achieving Sustainable Development” — the strategy seeks
to bring about sustainable development by applying: the guiding
principles of the UK Sustainable Development Strategy 2005 and the
elements contributing to the creation of sustainable communities
described in Sustainable Communities: Homes for All.

e H1: “Regional Housing Provision 2001 to 2021” — Local Planning
Authorities should facilitate the delivery of district housing allocations
— 11,200 for Huntingdonshire.

e T14: “Parking” — controls to manage transport demand and
influencing travel change alongside measures to improve public
transport accessibility, walking and cycling should be encouraged.
Maximum parking standards should be applied to new residential
development.

e ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the distinctive
character and best qualities of the local area and promotes urban
renaissance and regeneration.

96



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

e None relevant

Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)
Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are
relevant and viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards” — Indicates that
new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate standards of
privacy can be maintained and adequate parking provided.

e H32: "Sub-division of large curtilages" states support will be
offered only where the resultant dwelling and its curtilage are of a size
and form sympathetic to the locality.

e H37: “Environmental Pollution” — housing development will not be
permitted in locations where there is a hazardous installation posing a
substantial risk to the public.

e T18: “Access requirements for new development” states
development should be accessed by a highway of acceptable design
and appropriate construction.

e En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and make
adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local
Plan Alteration (2002)

e None relevant.

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and economic
issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development.

e CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — Identifies Brampton as a ‘Key

Service Centre’ in which development schemes of moderate and
minor scale and infilling may be appropriate within the built up area.

97



3.6

4.1

5.1

6.1

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

e C1: “Sustainable Design” — development proposals should take
account of the predicted impact of climate change over the expected
lifetime of the development.

e E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of the
surrounding environment and the potential impact of the proposal.

e E2: “Built-up Areas” — development will be limited to within the
built-up areas of the settlements identified in Core Strategy policy
CS3, in order to protect the surrounding countryside and to promote
wider sustainability objectives.

e E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord
with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1 ‘Parking
Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities shall be
provided to serve the needs of the development.

e H1: “Efficient Use of Housing Land” — housing developments will
optimise density taking account of the nature of the development site;
character of its surroundings and need to accommodate other uses
and residential amenities such as open space and parking areas.

e H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

PLANNING HISTORY

0503922FUL - alterations and extension to garage to form ancillary
residential accommodation — permission GRANTED

CONSULTATIONS
Brampton Parish Council recommends REFUSAL (copy attached)
REPRESENTATIONS

ONE letter of OBJECTION received from residents of 125 High St,
Brampton which raises concerns over:

* Unacceptable precedent to allow the annexe to be used for financial
gain.

* There will be two separate units with no garage or sufficient off road
parking spaces where there was once a double garage for a single
family dwelling.

* When the estate was constructed all houses had garages and
adequate parking on driveways to allow the roadway to be narrow
and remain mostly free of parked vehicles.

* The dwelling is located approaching a corner and parked vehicles
are frequently parked half on the pavement causing a danger for road
users and pedestrians, especially those with pushchairs, wheelchairs
or mobility scooters.

98



71

7.2

7.3

* A separate unit would be an overdevelopment in this part of the
village and set an undesirable precedent.

* An electricity substation is immediately next to the building which
has health and safety implications.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues in determining this application are the principle of the
change of use and the impacts upon the character and appearance of
the area, on residential amenity, and on highway safety.

It is noted that this application is retrospective however PPG 18
‘Enforcing Planning Control’ states “...that in assessing the need for
enforcement action, Local Planning Authorities should bear in mind
that it is not an offence to carry out development without first
obtaining planning permission. Section 73A of the 1990 Act
specifically provides that a granting of planning permission may relate
to development carried out before the date of the application” (para
6). Furthermore, an application cannot be refused on grounds that it
is retrospective. When considering the development regard has to be
had to Government guidance and the policies contained within the
Development Plan”. As such, the proposal must be considered on its
own merits.

The condition imposed on the permission for the annexe requiring it
to be used as ancillary accommodation to the main dwelling and not
as an independent unit of residential accommodation does not mean
that this proposal is necessarily unacceptable. That condition was
considered necessary based on the information submitted and
available at that time. This application must be determined on its
merits based on the information now submitted and available. The
reasoned justification of policy H31 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan
(1995) states that “non-severance conditions will be placed on any
approval [for a “Granny” unit] to ensure that any new small unit is not
divorced from the main dwelling”. Whilst this policy approach is
acknowledged, the principle of a separate unit should now be
assessed on its own merits.

Principle of Development

7.4

7.5

The site is in a ‘Key Service Centre’ and the proposed scheme is of
moderate scale within the built up area; this accords with policy CS3
of the Core Strategy 2009 and E2 of the Huntingdonshire LDF
Development Management DPD: Proposed Submission 2010. The
proposal represents a more efficient use of land in a sustainable
location and satisfies policy H1 of the DPD. The principle of
development on this site is therefore considered acceptable subject to
the proposal being appropriate in all other regards.

As such, there are no Officer objections in this regard.

Character and Appearance of the Area

7.6

The fencing which defines the private garden to the ‘annexe’ is not
obtrusive and does not have an adverse impact upon the streetscene.
The application does not seek to alter the existing appearance of the
‘annexe’ and, whilst there may be an increase in the number of

99



vehicles associated with the site, there are no Officer objections
based on the impacts upon the character and appearance of the
area.

Residential Amenity

7.7

7.8

7.9

As a result of the subdivision both units have private garden areas
which are felt to be appropriate and commensurate with the size of
property. There are not considered to be any associated issues from
overlooking or loss of privacy given the location and type of openings,
orientation and single storey scale.

The parking arrangements on site are currently that the residents of
32 Cranfield Way park in front of the ‘annexe’ and the occupant of the
‘annexe’ parks on the gravelled driveway. This arrangement is
unsatisfactory from an amenity and ‘neighbourly’ approach given the
close proximity of the spaces in front of the ‘annexe’ to the ‘annexe’
bedroom. However the additional plan received proposes the spaces
to the front of the ‘annexe’ to be for the occupants of the ‘annexe’,
thereby removing the concerns of residential amenity based upon
noise and disturbance. These arrangements can be secured by
condition.

Based on this, there are no Officer objections as a result of the
impacts upon residential amenity.

Highway Safety

7.10

7.11

7.12

713

As detailed above, the parking arrangements now proposed seek to
provide two parking spaces for the ‘annexe’ and one for No. 32. The
principle of a shared access is considered acceptable and, based
upon the nature of the residential area and relatively quiet highway, it
is not considered that there being no turning area within the site is a
reason for refusal in this instance.

The parking provision is in accordance with the Council’s current
parking policies which seek a maximum of two spaces per dwelling in
locations such as Brampton. Therefore, whilst comments about
parking on the highway are noted, this is a self regulating matter
based on highway legislation for on-road parking and proximity to
corners and junctions.

Regard is also given to the level of movements which could be
created from the fallback position of the building being retained as an
annexe with links to the main dwellinghouse. The space available
within the unit is considered to be a determining factor as it is unlikely
that more than two people would occupy the unit whether it be as an
ancillary or separate unit of accommodation; furthermore, the size of
the curtilage is such that this is unlikely to change with room for any
extension minimal.

It is therefore not considered that a recommendation of refusal could
be upheld on highway safety grounds.

100



Other Matters

7.14

7.15

Whilst the matter of precedent is noted, all planning applications are
assessed on their own merits and precedent is not a material reason
to refuse the application.

The proximity of the unit to the electricity sub-station is accepted,
Environmental Health advised that this relationship was acceptable
for the creation of the annexe initially and have raised no objections
to this proposal.

Conclusion

7.16

The proposed development is considered to be compliant with the
relevant national and local policy as it:

* Is an acceptable form of development in principle;

* Would not have a harmful impact upon the character and
appearance of the residential area;

* Would not have a detrimental impact upon the amenity of
neighbours;

* Would not have a significantly adverse impact upon highway safety.

Taking national and local planning policies into account, and having
regard for all relevant material considerations, it is recommended that
planning permission be granted, subject to the imposition of
appropriate conditions relating to parking arrangements.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or
an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try
to accommodate your needs.

RECOMMENDATION — APPROVE subject to conditions to include
the following:

Nonstand Parking arrangements provided within 14 days and
thereafter retained in perpetuity

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Ms Charlotte Fox Assistant Development
Management Officer 01480 388457

101



PN ) .
onshire
-\ ;}{fSTRmT COUNCIL
efﬁ%‘f’m@xgs@gr Huntingdon ~ PE29 3TN

0" 2~ )
(s,

é\']e‘ ’ \Qés

| APPLICATION NUMBER: | 1101850FUL | CASE OFFICER: | Ms Charlotte Fox ]
| PROPOSAL: Eetention of annexe as detached dwelling ‘
' LOCATION: ‘ 32 Cranfield Way Brampton PE28 4QZ

| - |%2¢n _

OBSERVATIONS OF BRAMPTON PARISH COUNCIL

\/ REFUSE

Recommend Refusal: Object. Over development. This type of residential development is not in
keeping with the general layout and character of the estate. It will also if approved set a precedence
for other similar applications on this estate and throughout the village. The site is on a corner at the
entrance to the estate, there is not enough room to park 4 cars on the drive. When visiting the site
there were 3 cars on the drive and 1 parked on the corner on the road.

......................................... Assistant Clerk to Brampton Parish Council.

Date: 14 Sep 2011

Failure to return this form within the time indicated will be taken as an indication that the Town or
Parish Council do not express any opinion either for or against the application.

PLANNING SERVICES deparish.rif

Tel 01480 388388  Fax 01480 388099 mail@huntsdc.gov.uk www.huntsdc.gov.uk

102



Development Management Panel - |
Application Ref: 1101350FUL Huntin g donshire

Location: Brampton BISTRIET €04NEIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

T = = =
L T TSN
W/ 2 B (\ / \ 2y %‘j‘j _’ 2 _):.
A Racnoﬂurs‘e_\%\w\ ﬁ??‘-"&( 9
Y, ]
N\ L 3’\ o4
eallinchingbrocke’ 4/
3 > \-,y{f;f_:oumaﬂﬁa Park:. «//:7.% ;KH
NS E B e 4 >
LT : r,u;';}in_cb‘iggbmelm/.-,
o ) a7 ws " ~IRs ]
e 3 2 S sl
o %ﬁ‘{\ﬂ 3’§/ B 15, /Hun's Bribgw/-‘?}‘?}\
a . & O}S;\:"t“::k 514! e il
= A, SN OO S
ﬁk;zf'?\w"ﬂ ST e
;‘*ﬁ}?é'?’@%ﬁ?{;{ i gy
Brampton— ; L '
A //& o | (Grle ‘
\ ) b\ 7” %ﬁ}% ong] Th 4
Brampton¥, 2"l L%,')“:S‘:B!émﬁm'ﬁ Ji1o : 4
Lodge Ca: * 4 Bramptén|Park, 410 4 E
g g L “E?ﬂ% Ly i oA
e ' A 7, 8
== vl R [ h «;9{
}*t-,/”/ -:r___—/ Oﬁl EH «K_/ ?lwe" ffy ;
Ty I AR E S S ."\@-—"N £ S
., . S Joiein N S :
B > B N
77 D
W, @
=)
3
N (e © S 67
S g (] 2
IS A 3 5
2 N, > & i
V ~
¥ Y EJ
I~ 5 78 Ny
g G S
Ve 4 $
%o, 2
7, &4
b &) Z?
R gl a0 SR
o\
o s %
Q il 13.4m &
i A f
© - D Q)
v O(,g,@\ —=" T ﬂ P Yoy
'\\’g’ (e (& -y

‘j 3 CU Sub Sta

Hall 2

/] The Site

g* L : Conservation Area

1L

Scale: 1:2500 1 03

oY 7 > _ g q @ ®Hi|ary Lodge
P i [ Xr’?@ - a
i . B
~ ) E\:I lil E E > < Stone =
o ) C:c - :
.‘@ “\ o & 2 - 7S
& L[ 5 @ %ﬁ <9
= e o o %
Legend & ) ¥ U :
9 S - D
)
 /

LAvrs CREDS

e
7
7




8,34 [2d T oyoma LANE 3uvq

00L:L B 0SZ: L ooyos WFA o
NV1d M0019

ANV ¥00714 ‘SNOILLVAT T3

I1LIL ONIMYEA

O s | . NV 1d 21 O NV1d
"NOGONILNNH ‘NOLdWV¥E 4
‘AVM @131INVYD Z€ ‘ONIT13Ma

OL XaNNV WO¥4 3SN 40 AONVHI
103roud

MNS LZ3d squed
uopbBununy

SaA| 1S <

0015 8bpug
SMBI\ JOUB O

uojiewiojul [euohippy L/eo/€c | 4 7 ﬁ
papuswe aull pey | L1/60/2Z | Y | 3] ;
S3LON NOISIAZY 31va | A3 ’ = j ==t ey ,. /
1 i | /
|
z¢ Joqunu f | 76 ON \
104 Bupped i e ON =
2l | I
\ — | il ="
S | ,
Ll — .
Buiomp
pasodoud oyl
1pieAunoy B
k ]
SR

i |

( ,,
COLN) /

104



Agenda ltem 6d

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 17 OCTOBER 2011
Case No: 1101436FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
Proposal: PROPOSED ADDITIONAL DWELLING AND GARAGE
Location: 4 THE CLOSE PE29 2DU

Applicant: MR T SMITH

Grid Ref: 525070 270349

Date of Registration: 22.08.2011

Parish: GODMANCHESTER

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 The site relates to a flat fronted semi detached dwelling with
projecting and attached single garage. The site is located in a corner
plot at the end of the cul de sac in The Close, which is characterised
by semi detached dwellings. The area is characterised by other
similar style dwellings in this large residential area.

1.2 The site is located in Flood Zone 2 and 3 of the Environment Agency
flood maps.
1.3 The proposal seeks the demolition of the existing garage and erection

of a new dwelling to be adjoined to No. 4 The Close in the form of a
two storey side extension, approximately 4.3 metres in width by 7.5
metres in depth. The proposal also includes the erection of a single
pitched roof garage approximately 3.2 metres in width by 6.43 metres
in depth to serve the new dwelling.

1.4 The application includes the submission of a Flood Risk Assessment.
2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 PPS1: “Delivering Sustainable Development” (2005) contains
advice on the operation of the plan-led system.

2.2 PPS3: “Housing” (2011) sets out how the planning system supports
the growth in housing completions needed in England.

2.3 PPS25: “Development and Flood Risk” (revised 2010) sets out
Government policy on development and flood risk. Its aims are to
ensure that flood risk is taken into account at all stages in the
planning process to avoid inappropriate development in areas at risk
of flooding, and to direct development away from areas of highest
risk. Where new development is, exceptionally, necessary in such
areas, policy aims to make it safe, without increasing flood risk
elsewhere, and, where possible, reducing flood risk overall.

105



24

3.1

3.2

Draft National Planning Policy Framework: Consultation (2011) -
sets out the Government's key economic, social and environmental
objectives and the planning policies to deliver them. The intention is
that these policies will provide local communities with the tools they
need to energise their local economies, meet housing needs, plan for
a low-carbon future and protect the environmental and cultural
landscapes that they value. It seeks to free communities from
unnecessarily prescriptive central government policies, empowering
local councils to deliver innovative solutions that work for their local
area.

For full details visit the government website
http://www.communities.gov.uk and follow the links to planning,
Building and Environment, Planning, Planning Policy.

PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding
planning applications can also be found at the following
website:http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning,
Building and Environment, Planning, Planning Information and
Guidance, Planning Guidance and Advice and then Creating and
Better Place to Live

East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

) S$S1: “Achieving Sustainable Development” — the strategy
seeks to bring about sustainable development by applying: the
guiding principles of the UK Sustainable Development Strategy
2005 and the elements contributing to the creation of
sustainable communities described in Sustainable
Communities: Homes for All.

o H1: “Regional Housing Provision 2001 to 2021” — Local
Planning Authorities should facilitate the delivery of district
housing allocations — 11,200 for Huntingdonshire.

o ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration

o WAT4: “Flood Risk Management” — River flooding is a
significant risk in parts. The priorities are to defend existing
properties from flooding and locate new development where
there is little or no flooding.

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

e None relevant

106



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards”
Indicates that new dwellings will only be permitted where
appropriate standards of privacy can be maintained and
adequate parking provided.

o H32: "Sub-division of large curtilages" states support will be
offered only where the resultant dwelling and its curtilage are of
a size and form sympathetic to the locality.

e En25: "General Design Criteria” - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

o (CS8: “Water” — satisfactory arrangements for the availability of
water supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities, surface
water run-off facilities and provision for land drainage will be
required.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies
from the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and
viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on
"Local Plan Alteration (2002)

e HL5 - Quality and Density of Development - sets out the
criteria to take into account in assessing whether a proposal
represents a good design and layout.

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including
design, implementation and function of development. Including
reducing water consumption and wastage, minimising impact on
water resources and water quality and managing flood risk.

e CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — Identifies Godmanchester
as a ‘Key Service Centre’ in which development schemes of
moderate and minor scale and infilling may be appropriate
within the built up area.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

107



3.7

3.8

4.1

5.1

5.2

6.1

e C1: “Sustainable Design” — development proposals should
take account of the predicted impact of climate change over the
expected lifetime of the development.

e C5: “Flood Risk and Water Management” — development
proposals should include suitable flood protection / mitigation to
not increase risk of flooding elsewhere. Sustainable drainage
systems should be used where technically feasible. There
should be no adverse impact on or risk to quantity or quality of
water resources.

e E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

o E2: “Built-up Areas” — development will be limited to within the
built-up areas of the settlements identified in Core Strategy
policy CS3, in order to protect the surrounding countryside and
to promote wider sustainability objectives.

e E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should
accord with the levels and layout requirements set out in
Appendix 1 ‘Parking Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle
parking facilities shall be provided to serve the needs of the
development.

e H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape Assessment (2007)
Huntingdonshire Design Guide (2007)
PLANNING HISTORY

1100510FUL - Two storey side extension and single detached garage
— permission granted (Copy attached as green papers)

CONSULTATIONS

Godmanchester Town Council - recommend refusal (copy
attached)

Environment Agency — the proposed development shall only be
acceptable if the floor levels of the dwelling are no lower than 10.46
metres above Ordnance Datum Newlyn.

REPRESENTATIONS

None received

108



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues to consider are the principle, the impact on the
character and appearance of the area, impact on residential amenity,
parking and highway safety and flood risk.

Principle

Godmanchester is identified as a Key Service Centre in policy CS3 of
the Adopted Core Strategy in which development schemes of
moderate and minor scale and infilling may be appropriate within the
built-up area. The site lies in an existing residential area and within
the built-up area of the Town; the principle of residential development
is therefore acceptable subject to other material considerations.

The Proposal

It is important to note that planning permission already exists for the
two storey extension to the existing dwelling and erection of a single
garage. This application seeks to alter the appearance of the
extension to form a new two bedroom dwelling. Alterations include:

o increasing the size of the first floor window to the front
elevation to match the ground floor window;
o omitting the single window to the ground floor and relocating

the access door on the side elevation (main entrance to the
additional dwelling), as well as the insertion of a window at
ground floor to serve a WC and insertion of a window at first
floor to serve the landing; and

. insertion of two windows to the rear elevation at first floor,
one to serve the bathroom and one to serve the rear
bedroom, in place of the approved single window.

Character and appearance of the area

When looking at No. 4 The Close from the highway the proposed
dwelling would appear as a subservient extension to No. 4, being set
back from the front elevation of the main dwelling (allowing access to
the proposed garage) and set down from the ridge of the main
dwelling. It is recognised that an additional dwelling, which would then
create a small row of terraced properties, is not characteristic of the
form of development in this area. However, the appearance of the
proposed new dwelling is in keeping with the scale and proportions of
the existing dwelling, and would appear to be an extension to the
existing dwelling,with the entrance door to the proposed dwelling being
on the side elevation. The proposal is not considered, whilst a different
form of development, to be harmful to the area.

The erection of the new dwelling would remove the existing parking for
No. 4 The Close and as a result the application proposes to provide
two parking spaces in front of the existing dwelling. This arrangement
shall necessitate the removal of the existing low boundary wall; this is
not considered to require permission. Although this shall alter the
appearance of the front of the site, hard surfaced front gardens are not
uncommon and provided the area is permeable this does not require
the benefit of planning permission. It is also recognised that this
effectively may result in the front of the site being visually more
dominated by vehicles, however this situation may also arise as a

109



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

712

result of the applicant constructing the extension and garage. It is not
considered that this would justify refusing this application, especially as
much of the works would not necessarily require the benefit of planning
permission.

The garage is single width and pitched roof and set within the rear/side
amenity space of the application site. It would appear that the siting of
the garage would necessitate the removal of soft landscaping in the
site, whilst not desirable this was also part of the previous permission.

Having regard to the proposed developments, it is not considered that
this would result in a harmful impact on the character and appearance
of the area. The new dwelling would still appear as an extension to
No. 4 The Close with an additional detached garage.

Residential amenity

Previously it was determined that the erection of the two storey
extension would not significantly harm residential amenity by reason of
overlooking, overshadowing or being overbearing. It is therefore
necessary to consider whether the creation of a separate residential
unit and associated curtilage and the proposed changes to the
fenestration would be acceptable in this location.

In terms of the overall mass of the proposed dwelling, this has not
changed from the approved extension, however fenestration detail has
changed. At the first floor this application proposes a bathroom and
bedroom to the rear. The distance from the centre point of these
windows to the boundary to the rear is approximately 7.4 metres and
8.6 metres respectively. Having regard to the proposed separation
distance to the neighbouring properties to the rear, the existing
permission which already permits an extension and represents the
applicant’s fallback position, it is not considered that this proposal
would result in a significant detrimental impact on residential amenity in
terms of overlooking.

A single window is also proposed at the first floor side elevation of the
new dwelling to serve the landing area. The addition of this window
having regard to its siting in relation to the surrounding residential
properties and area that it serves, the landing, it is not considered that
this shall have a significant detrimental impact on residential amenity
by reason of overlooking.

To provide access to the rear of the existing dwelling and proposed
dwelling an access route is proposed to the rear of the site with access
onto the adjoining footway. The remaining curtilage for No. 4 would be
approximately 5.5 metres in width by 10.8 metres at the nearest point
and 12.5 metres at the furthest point in depth. A 2 metre fence shall
define the boundaries.

The proposed dwelling’s curtilage shall form a corner plot and as such
the maximum depth of the rear curtilage shall be 8 metres (although it
is 9 metres to the boundary with the property to the rear) and minimum
5.4 metres. It is approximately 6.4 metres to the side elevation of the
garage to the south east.

110



7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

It is evident from the site plan that the creation of the curtilages is not
representative of the curtilages of the existing dwellings in the locality.
However it is not considered that the size of the proposed curtilages
are unacceptable, they still retain an appropriate amenity space to
serve the dwellings. It is not considered that the curtilages proposed
are so unsympathetic to the locality that this would warrant refusing
this application, as there is no obvious visual difference when viewing
the dwellings from the highway.

The proposed garage is intended to be sited adjacent the boundary to
the footpath to Tudor Road. An electricity substation separates this
from the residential dwelling to the north east/east and the footpath
forms the divide between the application site and number 5 The Close.
Having regard to the scale of the garage and siting in relation to
neighbours, it is not considered that the proposal would significantly
harm residential amenity.

Parking and highway safety

The proposal indicates a single garage and driveway to serve the
proposed dwelling and two spaces to the front of No. 4 to serve the
existing dwelling. This accords with the standards set out in the DM
DPD.

The addition of a new dwelling in this residential area is not considered
to harm highway safety.

The application provides an area for cycle parking on both sites to
serve the respective dwellings. This proposal is considered
acceptable.

Flood risk
The floor level of the proposed dwelling shall be above the existing at
10.46 compared to 10.4 (existing) and surface water drainage will be to
infiltration systems in the garden, to ensure no off site impact.
A condition shall be imposed to ensure these measures are
undertaken to ensure that the development is appropriately flood

resilient and resistant.

Sustainability measures

As part of this application the proposal includes a water butt to serve
the new dwelling. This is considered to be acceptable and it is
recommended that this is secured by condition.

Town Council comments

The Town Council consider that the site does not lend itself to the
creation of a new dwelling on this small close and this would represent
overdevelopment of the site with no garden or parking provision. For
the reasons considered in this report, an additional dwelling would be
acceptable in this location.

111



7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

8.0

Noting the second point, the site plan clearly shows that both the
existing and proposed dwellings would benefit from garden space and
parking on site.

Conclusion

The proposed erection of the 2 bedroom dwelling and garage building
are considered to be of an acceptable appearance and design, would
not harm the character and appearance of the area, would not have a
significant detrimental impact on residential amenity, provides
adequate parking and would not have a adverse impact on highway
safety and has appropriately considered flood risk in the development.

In approving the application, the relevant guidance and policies were
identified as PPS1, PPS3, PPS25, policies SS1, H1, ENV7 and WAT4
of the East of England Plan, policies H31, H32, En25 and CS8 of the
Local Plan, policy HL5 of the Local Plan Alteration, policies CS1 and
CS3 of the Adopted Core Strategy, policies C1, C5, E1, E2, E10 and
H7 of the Development Management DPD Submission, the
Huntingdonshire Design Guide and the Huntingdonshire Landscape
and Townscape Assessment (2007).

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or
an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to
accommodate your needs.

RECOMMENDATION

02003 Time Limit (3yrs)
Nonstand Materials to match
Nonstand Provision of parking area
Nonstand Floor levels etc
Nonstand Water butt

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Michelle Nash Development Management
Officer 01480 388405

112



Huntingdonshire

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Pathfinder House, St Mary’s Street
Huntingdon. PE29 3TN

Tel: 01480 388388
mail@huntsdc.gov.uk Fax: 01480 388099

www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk
Head of Planning Services

Pathfinder House

St. Mary’s Street

Huntingdon ‘5\> \\\

Cambridgeshire PE 29 3TN &\
fE;

Application Number: 1101436FUL Case Officer Michelle Nash

Proposal: Proposed additional dwelling and garage
Location: 4 The CloseGodmanchesterHuntingdon
Observations of Godmanchester Town/Parish Council.
Please ¥ box as appropriate

Recommend approval because

...... (please give relevant planning reasons in space below)

Recommend refusal because... (please give relevant planning reasons in space below)
The dte does not lend itself to the creation of an additional
dwelling on this small close and this would represent
overdevelopment of the site with no garden or parkingprovision

No observations either in favour or against the proposal

Clerk to Godmanchester Town/Parish Council.

Failure to return this form within the time indicated will be taken as an indication that the Town or
Parish Council do not express any opinion either for or against the application.

e v DI

'

7 HDC DOC. CENTRE |
, 3
“ 19 SEP 2011 |

\ ?

B

Rrrmeimer =t

113



Development Management Panel : "
Application Ref: 1101436FUL H U n -I-I n g d O n S h | re

Location: Godmanchester DI STRICT COUNTZCIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

S G \ \
» X RS .o

=

i
) \ 1 i :\
S Sl Q
Y > WNETHESIY / R
O R —¥x e Hotel N ’¥ e 8/ 2 1
o ¢ SenE T s e Bills P o= —Cr — 4= 4=
Sundial S 3 == x3y K L e
.'!'\ “ﬁ ,”‘- . | Sand & /@ ." \:
Gravel Pit | 7. & Hem
Beneve : v "B i w5 ewage
Glendial 704%, A Works ~
Bun il
Harcourt </
& Q T~ o 5 ”/,g’;?, .cg’)O =3 Fm i
) 1 Wz I ol o e /
x e B3 S = 7
?\\“ /v e [ e

Fm

N
)
Vi

m 2 o0 Qﬂ \*\P‘?\G fCDrpus Chrislf)i B NE

h/ b Slyde 4
e ROr g e - b Sl - o
== Pk e
o™ | b
/ 1
0 é

Sub Bta

T
S
GODMANCHESTER \'\ L
» D
% s
g bo 8 R %,
S 7
N
Z
o 2
g Pla % %
N
& <,
Ry < >
0&/78 a5 %
$
, <
% B [9)
& A ) © J
S | Sub AN %o, P
& Dl 8 ')
Ppg St: Q> g
=

A
R
64@O$ % A osts
\g Legend { Y A \
/] The Site X 3

L | Conservation Area

(02 AL ) i

Scale: 1:2500 114

&

MOWLA




496 624d SNV ‘NOUDNILNNH ‘08¢ XOd O d

ALTAMN

BI/S/11 ON

1102 ANNC HLVA

00Z:1 % 0STI:1 :ATVOS

HLIAS L ¥ INAITO

NV1d 320714 % NOLLYDO'1

YALSTHONVINAOD

ASOTD HHL ¥ “IDVIVD ANV NOISNALXT 9IS ATIOLS OM.L A4SOdOUd

«.\,\ 0GZL:1L - NY1d NOILYI07

B ET IR

080 VIA
13NI303Yy

oz any zz

007:T :3[edS
ue|d %20[g

43LSIHINVWAO09 3S01) IHL % NOISNILX3

——
H
Lyuesixs Jor
SN Z
b €
a5 .WNW-JF.«)O
0235 YIHLIM
a% = ADVIUS 250 ¢
KX o SNIE o1 DV idmisawh
S

7, TSN (TN 20~ FoM AUNTWY [
\»‘AOU.
s Fonaz ‘g
= whiH Wy
% i

115



446 67dd SINVI ‘NOADONILLNNH 085 X090 d
ALTAMN

Bp/S/T1 "ON

1102 ANOS HLVA

0S: 1 -dTVOS

HEINS L ¥ - LNATTD

DNLLSIXT SV NOLLVATTE YVTd
YALSHHONVYINACO

‘HSOTD HL ¥ ‘AOVIVD ANV NOISNALXH IS ATIOLS OML AdSOdOdd

A

geviotLt

OS8O VYIA
GZAIFOIY

1oz 9nv 2¢

JHIN3O '00a OaH

BNILSIX3 NOILVAIID ¥V3Y

116



dH6 67dd SHINVD ‘NOIONIINNH ‘08§ X0d O d

LT AMN

BE/S/TT "ON

1102 ANASL IV

0S:1 *ATIVDS

HLIAS I 9 INATTD

ONILLSIXH SV NOLLVATTH IS ANV LNO

YALSTHONVINAOD

ASOT0 FHL ¢ ‘FOVIVO ANV NOISNALXH AAIS ATHOLS OM.L dIS0Od0oud

4

ONILSIX3 NOILVAZI3 3018

I

geqioll

g T

CZAZOY
oz onvee

JY1IN3O "000 OgH

DNIESIX3 NOILVA3T3 LNOYA

=

|

T

117




aAdu vVLaU DAV YU INUMIRZINLLINI LN VoY Avad v a

ALTAMN

BL/S/11 'ON

LT0Z ANAS HLIVA

061 -dTVDS

HLIAS L 4N “INAITD

ddS0d0O¥dd SV NOILVAHTd dvAyd

HALSHHONVINAOD

‘ISOT0 HHA ¥ "IDVHVD ANV NOISNALXH JdIS ATIOLS OM.L adSOdoud

o

0350d04¥d NOILVAII3 3ais

geyl0Ll |

28 ¥IA
Q3AETY

nzsnvzz

FUINIO 004 oam

(3S0d0o¥d NOILYA3IZ ¥v3ay

00%%

[

0]

i

o

118



16 673d SAAVD ‘NOUONILLNNH 085 X0d O d

dLTAMN

©9/¢/11 'ON

[T0T ANAC -A1LVd

061 *HTIVOS

HLIAS L JA JINAITO

@as0d0Odd SV NOILVAHTH HdIS % LNOYA

YALSHHOINVINAOD

“ASOTO FHL ¥ “IOVIVO ANV NOISNALXH 3dIS ATIO.LS OML d450d0Odd

1350d0¥d NOIIVA313 3qais

%)

Q_ 00aL J_‘

00gYy

0350d0¥d NOILYAITI LNCY

380 viA
G3nzogy

oz onv zz

FINID 004 oaM

0504

il

Il

119

T

]

—




446 6T8d SHNYD ‘NOUONILNNH ‘08 XOd O d

ALTAMN

BG/S/TT 'ON

[T0T ANAS *HIVA

0S:1 *HTVOS

HLIAS L dN - INAI'TD)

TdS0dO¥d SV YOO TI 1SULL % ANNOYD

YHLSTFHONVINAOD

SO HHL + ‘HOVIVO ANV NOISNH.LXH 9dIS ATI0LS OM.L QmWOmOE

NY1d 40074 M NVY1d 40074 ONNOUB

| S

00€Y 00€Y

gy S

- _ .

= —

WoOoHQ3g

ONIAIT

005L
B

00S L

I +
WOOU HIvE W00yQd3ge

ININIG /NIHILIN

. L ; 3 _ﬁ\,/ !

0094

0S0VIA .
G3nF0TY

Hozonvee

ERIRC

0094

0000 ogH




€46 67dd SHNYD ‘NOTONLINNH 08§ X0d O d
diT1AMN

Bg/C/11 'ON

[10Z ANNC “HLVA

0S:[ ' IVOS

HLIAS L 9N INAITO

SNOILVAHTH 4OVIvVD

Y4 LSHHONVINAOD

‘GSOTO THIL ¥ ‘FDOVIVO ANV NOISNALXT IAIS ATIOLS OML AISOdOUd

2%

[T

NV1d

08ZE ﬁ

NOIIVAZT3 3ais m

3750

3BYYY9

6430

1
1

|
€79 NOILYATIZ 30IS]

0026 NOILvATIE avad 7

NOILVAZII LNOAd

/1

gcri0Ll1L

121



GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

122



€496 6THd SNV ‘NOADNILNNH ‘08§ XOd O d
ALTAMN

9/S/11 "'ON

1102 HOUVIN “41vd

0S:1 :dTVOS

HIDAS L ¥ “INAI'TO

d4S0d0Odd SV NOILVAATH 4dIS & LNO¥A
YALSHHONVINAOD ASOTO dHL ¥ ‘ADVIVD
ANV NOISNALXH ddIS AHYOLS OM L d9S0d0¥d

03S040¥d NOIVAINI 30IS

L

005L

-

=

016001

008Y

03S040¥d NOILVAITI LNOM4

050L

123




€446 6THd SHNVD ‘NOAONILNNH ‘085 XOd O d
LT AMN

L/S/T1 "ON

110 HOUVIN ‘41vd

0STI:1 =HTVOS

HLIAS L ¥ :INAT'TD

AASOdO¥d SV NOILVATTT ¥vayd
AALSHHONVINAOD “‘ASOTD HL + ‘HOVEVD
ANV NOISNALXA 4dIS ATI0LS OM L dASOdO¥d

016001}

0350d0¥d NOILYA3TII HV3Y

00LS

4D/
I 4

ancn



1‘\;
Aale T
#

Ll

NV1d X304
’A

ARG
g
gtﬁm )
9l
(K 1w,

b e ea

PROPOSED TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION AND ]
GARAGE, 4 THE CLOSE, GODMANCHESTER
BLOCK PLAN AREA

CLIENT: MR T SMITH

SCALE: NTS

DATE: MARCH 2011

NO. 11/5/1

NWV LTD
| PO BOX 580, HUNTINGDON, CAMBS PE29 9ER 12




€496 6THd SHNVD ‘NOADNILLNNH 085 XOd O d
ALT AMN

S/S/T1 "ON

[10Z HOYVIN ‘dLvd

0S-1 *HTVOS

HLIAS L ¥ “INHITO

AISOdOUd SV YOO T LSUIT ¥ ANNOUD
YHALSTFHONVINAOD ASOTO AHL + ‘HOVIVD
ANV NOISNALXHT dIS ATIOLS OM I A4SOd0O¥d

03S0d0¥d NV1d 40074 LSHI4

e

%
_
0j3S040¥d NVid ¥0074 ONNOYD

pLgo0" !

0084 # 008Y
= r— I D —
Wooya3g _ %H.ﬁ
- ~ + L
- |
9 4
bu |
_
3LINS~N3 HNISS3H0 e _ |
H ALITILN “ AONLS
() & |
< | —
= _
ONIONY] ~ ©
3 ; b alb - | N
=4 ~ e = L L
t [0,
o
\ i C NIHILIX
Wooyo3ig WOOYHLYE
W00Y A1IWY4 / DNINIO i
- ===
= —_—
[ _ slg | v
e —
— ¥ 3



H56 67dd SHNVD ‘NOUONILNNH ‘08¢ XOd O d
dLTAMN

8/S/11 'ON

[10T HOYVIN -H1LvVd

0STI-T “HIVOS

HIIAS L ¥ :INAFITO

SNOILVAHTH HOVIVD

MALSHHONVINAOD FASOTO dHL ¥ ‘ADVIVD
ANV NOISNALXH 3dIS ATJOLS OM.L d4S0dOdd

NOILVA313 3d4IS

NY1d

00zt

4 002¢ NOILVATTI uv3d

3750

VY9

Pt

—¥

0€%9

NOILYATI3 3019

6430

1

NOILYA313 LNO¥4

127



This page is intentionally left blank

128



Agenda Item 6e

17 OCT 11
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

Case No: 1101525FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: SUBDIVISION OF EXISTING DWELLING AND ERECTION
OF EXTENSIONS TO FORM A NEW TWO BED DWELLING

Location: 13 WINDSOR ROAD PE29 2DD
Applicant: MRS S PANESAR

Grid Ref: 525213 270238

Date of Registration: 07.09.2011

Parish: GODMANCHESTER

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This application relates to a two storey semi-detached dwelling with a
single-storey front projection on a prominent corner plot in a residential
area. There is a low wall in front of the house and a wall approximately
1.6m high around the north-western boundary. There is a lawn with low
shrubs and a hardstanding at the front of the site and lawns to the side
and rear.

1.2 The proposal is to extend and convert the existing house into two
dwellings: one 2-bed and one 3-bed.

1.3 The extensions include:
* a front lean-to canopy with a porch
* a garage extension to the side/northwest and
* a single-storey lean-to extension to the rear/northeast.

14 Three new car parking spaces are proposed: one in the new garage
and two in front of the property.

1.5 The proposal also entails the reduction of part of the northwestern
garden boundary wall to 0.6m in height in order to improve visibility.

1.6 The private amenity space would be subdivided with a 1.8m high
fence.

1.7 Bins would be stored in the rear gardens and a new gate would be
provided in the northwestern perimeter wall so that the bins and
garden of the southeastern unit could be accessed directly from the
public footpath.

129



2.1

2.2

2.3

24

3.1

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

PPS1: “Delivering Sustainable Development” (2005) contains advice
on the operation of the plan-led system.

PPS3: “Housing” (2011) sets out how the planning system supports
the growth in housing completions needed in England.

PPG13: “Transport” (2011) sets out the objectives to integrate planning
and transport at the national, strategic and local level and to promote
more sustainable transport choices both for carrying people and for
moving freight.

Draft National Planning Policy Framework: Consultation (2011) -
sets out the Government’s key economic, social and environmental
objectives and the planning policies to deliver them. The intention is
that these policies will provide local communities with the tools they
need to energise their local economies, meet housing needs, plan for a
low-carbon future and protect the environmental and cultural
landscapes that they value. It seeks to free communities from
unnecessarily prescriptive central government policies, empowering
local councils to deliver innovative solutions that work for their local
area.

For full details visit the government website
http://www.communities.gov.uk and follow the links to planning,
Building and Environment, Planning, Planning Policy.

PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy
(May 2008)

Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links to
Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents:

S$S1: “Achieving Sustainable Development” — the strategy seeks to
bring about sustainable development by applying: the guiding
principles of the UK Sustainable Development Strategy 2005 and the
elements contributing to the creation of sustainable communities
described in Sustainable Communities: Homes for All.

ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new development
to be of high quality which complements the distinctive character and
best qualities of the local area and promotes urban renaissance and
regeneration.

130



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)

Saved policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure
Plan 2003 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk follow the links to environment,
planning, planning policy and Structure Plan 2003:

None relevant.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)
Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant
and viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95:

H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards” — Indicates that new
dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate standards of privacy
can be maintained and adequate parking provided.

H32: "Sub-division of large curtilages" states support will be offered
only where the resultant dwelling and its curtilage are of a size and
form sympathetic to the locality.

H34: “Extensions to Dwellings” — should have regard to the amenity
and privacy of adjoining properties.

En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District Council will
expect new development to respect the scale, form, materials and
design of established buildings in the locality and make adequate
provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

T18: “Access requirements for new development” states development
should be accessed by a highway of acceptable design and
appropriate construction.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002)

Saved policies from the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002
are relevant and viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan -
Then click on "Local Plan Alteration (2002):

HL5: Quality and Density of Development - sets out the criteria to take
into account in assessing whether a proposal represents a good
design and layout.

Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy 2009

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy:

CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” - all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable development,

131



3.6

3.7

having regard to social, environmental and economic issues. All
aspects will be considered including design, implementation and
function of development.

CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — Identifies Godmanchester as a ‘Key
Service Centre’ in which development schemes of moderate and minor
scale and infilling may be appropriate within the built up area.

Development Management DPD: Proposed Submission 2010

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant:

C1: “Sustainable Design” — development proposals should take
account of the predicted impact of climate change over the expected
lifetime of the development.

E1: “Development Context” - development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of the
surrounding environment and the potential impact of the proposal.

E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord with
the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1 ‘Parking
Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities shall be
provided to serve the needs of the development.

H1: “Efficient Use of Housing Land” — housing developments will
optimise density taking account of the nature of the development site;
character of its surroundings and need to accommodate other uses
and residential amenities such as open space and parking areas.

H1: “Efficient Use of Housing Land” — to help reduce the need to travel,
proposals will be supported which include higher densities in locations
in close proximity to concentrations of services and facilities and
integrate commercial and community uses amongst new homes of a
scale and nature appropriate to their location.

H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the living
conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or nearby
properties.

Supplementary Planning Document:

Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document
2007.

PLANNING HISTORY
7600577FUL — Extension — permission granted.
8300448FUL — Extension — permission granted.

0701378FUL — Erection of garage and extension and alterations to
dwelling - permission refused.

132



0801780FUL - Erection of garage, extensions to front and rear —
permission granted. The plans also detail the conversion of the current
garage to a family room, which is permitted development. (COPY OF
PLANS ATTACHED). The development has begun with the
construction of the foundations of the garage.

1100972FUL - Subdivision of existing dwelling and erection of
extensions to form a new 2 bed dwelling — Withdrawn.

5. CONSULTATIONS

5.1 Godmanchester Town Council: At the time of application 1100972FUL,
which was for substantially the same development as now proposed,
the Town Council recommended refusal on the grounds of
“Overdevelopment of site, concerns re proposed shared driveway and
size and layout of proposed properties and garden areas”. Any
comments received in relation to this application will be reported to
Panel.

5.2 HDC Transportation: Recommend approval.

6. REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 None received. Any response will be reported to Panel.

7. SUMMARY OF ISSUES

71 The main issues are the principle of the additional dwelling, the impact
on the character and appearance of the area, the adequacy of the
amenities of existing and future occupiers and the impact on highway
safety.

Principle:

7.2 The site is in an accessible built-up area of Godmanchester and is
close to shops and services. Therefore the proposal for the additional
dwelling is in a sustainable location and is acceptable in principle
subject to the other issues being satisfactorily addressed.

7.3 The proposal accords with PPS1, PPS3 and Draft National Planning

Policy Framework: Consultation (2011), policy SS1 of the East of
England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May 2008),
CS3 of the Adopted Huntingdonshire Core Strategy 2009 and H1 of
the Development Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010.

Character and appearance of the area:

7.4

7.5

The external appearance of the extensions and alterations to the
building would be identical to a previously approved scheme
(0801780FUL) and of acceptable design and appearance. A condition
can be imposed to secure suitable external materials.

The development will entail the loss of soft landscaping to provide
additional hardstanding and car parking at the front of the site, which is
acceptable. A greater intensity of use of the front of the site for car
parking is likely but this would not harm the character or appearance of

133



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

the site or area unduly, as it is not uncommon within residential
localities.

The proposal entails the subdivision of the rear garden which will result
in two small private amenity areas:

* the garden for the southeastern, 3-bed, dwelling would measure
approximately 5-5.5m x 17.3m and

* the garden for the northwestern 2-bed dwelling being approximately
L-shaped and measuring from approximately 2.5-6.7m x 0.5-9.5m.

These dwellings and curtilages would be smaller than the neighbouring
properties. However, it is considered that the size of the properties
would not be unduly incongruous or harmful.

The proposal has no harmful effect on the character and appearance
of the area.

The proposal therefore accords with policies ENV7 of the East of
England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May 2008),
CS1 of the Adopted Huntingdonshire Core Strategy 2009 and H32 and
En25 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, HL5 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration 2002 and E1 of the
Development Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010 and the
guidance of the Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary
Planning Document 2007.

Amenities of existing and future occupiers including neighbours:

7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

7.15

The proposal will provide satisfactory amenities for the future occupiers
of the two dwellings. The garden areas would be small but useable.

The back fence of the smaller unit would be approximately only 0.5m
from the back/ kitchen window but this is acceptable as the room is
also served by a large northwestern facing opening.

The provision of three car space for the two units is acceptable.

The rear extension would project approximately 3.9m beyond the rear
wall of the adjoining property to the south east (15 Windsor Road). It is
considered that as the extension would lie northwest of the
neighbouring property, with a 0.3m gap between the side wall and
common boundary, and as the extension would be of a lean-to design
with the rear eaves being approximately only 2.4m high and the
highest part approximately 3.6m high, the proposal will have no
significant effect on the amenities of the occupiers of 15 Windsor
Road. The exterior of the rear extension is also identical to the
previously permitted rear extension (0801780FUL refers).

The back of the rear extension would be close to, approximately 4.8
metres, from the south-western side boundary of 2 Stuart Close.
However, the proposed single storey rear extension and the garage
are modest enough to have no significant impact on the amenity of the
occupiers of 2 Stuart Close.

The front porch and canopy are modest enough to avoid harm to
amenity.

134



7.16

717

The proposal is likely to increase the activity and disturbance on the
site with two households in place of one and their associated visitors.
However, the extra activity and disturbance, particularly the
disturbance associated with vehicle movements, car lights and doors
closing is unlikely to have any material adverse effects on the
amenities of the neighbours bearing in mind that the garden is already
used for vehicle movements and parking which is consistent with other
front gardens in the area.

The proposal accords with policies CS1 of the Adopted
Huntingdonshire Core Strategy 2009 and H31 and H34 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 and H7 of the Development
Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010.

Highway safety:

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

The access is considered to be of an acceptable design and
construction, with appropriate visibility to ensure there is no harm to
highway safety.

The submitted layout includes 2 on-site vehicle parking spaces and the
garage. The car space in the garage would be suitably sited for the
small unit and two spaces in front of the lounge would be suitable for
the larger unit.

The manoeuvring space into and out of the garage is restricted but
adequate. The Council’s Transportation Team Leader advises that it is
not essential for vehicles to enter and leave the site in forward gear, by
virtue of the residential nature of the locality. The reduction in the
height of the front part of the northern wall adjoining the access should
be conditioned in order to enhance visibility in the interests of highway
safety.

The provision of a total of 3 car parking spaces for the two dwellings
satisfies the relevant part of policy E10 of the Development
Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010, which is expressed as
a maximum standard of up to 2 car spaces per dwelling.

The proposal includes adequate on-site parking provision and there is
scope to park elsewhere in the highway without highway safety
problems arising.

Cycle parking for each unit can be secured by condition to comply with
policy E10 of the Development Management DPD Proposed
Submission 2010.

The development is accompanied by satisfactory car parking and
adequate cycle parking can be secured. The proposal will not detract
from highway safety. The proposal therefore accords with PPG13 and
policy T18 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995.

Other matters:

7.25

A condition can be imposed to encourage water conservation at the
site in accordance with policies CS1 of the Adopted Huntingdonshire
Core Strategy 2009 and C1 of the Development Management DPD
Proposed Submission 2010.

135



Conclusion:

7.26 The proposed development is considered to be compliant with relevant
national and local planning policy as the proposal:
* is acceptable in principle,
* will have no material harmful effect on the character and appearance
of the area,
* will provide satisfactory amenities for the future occupiers of the two
dwellings,
* will have no significant adverse effects on the amenities of the
neighbours,
* the development is accompanied by satisfactory car parking and will
not detract from highway safety and
* adequate cycle parking can be secured.

7.27 The application complies with PPS1, PPS3, PPG13 and the Draft
National Planning Policy Framework: Consultation (2011) and policies
SS1 ENV7 of the East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional
Spatial Strategy (May 2008), H31 H32 H34 En25 T18 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, HL5 of the Huntingdonshire Local
Plan Alterations (2002), CS1 CS3 of the Approved Core Strategy, C1
E1 E10 H1 H7 of the Development Management DPD Proposed
Submission 2010, and the guidance of Huntingdonshire Design Guide
Supplementary Planning Document 2007.

7.28 Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and
having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
therefore recommended that planning permission should be granted.

8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subiject to the following conditions
02003 Time Limit (3yrs)

Nonstandard materials

Nonstandard car parking

Nonstandard cycle parking

Nonstandard water conservation measures
Nonstandard reduce wall height for visibility

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Planning Application File References: 1101525FUL, 1100972FUL,

0801780FUL.

East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May 2008)

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan, 2003

Huntingdonshire Local Plan, 1995

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration, 2002

Adopted Huntingdonshire Core Strategy 2009
Development Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010

136



Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Sheila Lindsay Development Management

Officer 01480 388247
If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio

version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

137



Development Management Panel : "
Application Ref: 1101525FUL H U n -I-I n g d O n S h | re

Location: Godmanchester DI STRICT COUNTZCIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

e o‘ "_“ p "’¢ /7,,,//_ , ,
i»“""f““’ ‘6:\\ IR -Eﬂ NGy s | D ]
é‘m\ LN\ e Gl e
\‘ @ :«‘, N Mo, /oot o

)

e e
% \%‘V srave P L% Horing
N A \

I I

= B _/’?\U“‘- Sewge
= < el ¢}
> T 4@ ¥ % works
Q)

W
Bo

5 L = ‘."
\ ‘?’% . Harcourt </
E .

=777

0 — " oo LV ey,
ORI
© O > \I‘ X 4 I8 ity rﬂ\‘, o ¥

g < LA 7'/. e > 0 S
’ 7 @ / & AV O NN
X T s oo

% é %\QD;% g:;i‘t;' %%Q‘:l:srar's Croft ”ﬂ
r SR

Corpus Christi &
-

@ 9 W)
$ N %{’\‘,‘?’g ‘\4/

==z
<
i
f ==
}&

<

O

s, ]

& W,
A N
s
N &
=)
= 0 A
Y S/ &
9 Po AQ' /S
Z N ¥ T S [
m S 7
& g
Sg 2
2 Po:
N )
S
L
B D
5 G %,
N
Z
2
Z
Are, f % ~,
A 2
‘/&/7@ ‘?6‘9 Z
§ h/ 2
A %, 3 £
| Sub DR %, z
r, 7

Ppg St, Q g

Y/ $ =

9 (g,a 29,
4 D
< Q
s,
S

N
&y F
S,
7
13 {—IF
2
Q,
&
0
&/
>
> &
A
AN
&
B

Ny
¥
o

to
CARNABY CLOSE
7
T
|
2
[
Q

b

(]

DOVE!
N
12
MOWLANDS —~
A

Y Legend

i m The Slte Q McCartney House

L | Conservation Area 4

Scale: 1:2500 138




LLOPGE 081 [0 “2uoydaja] 2]A] o ¥ovf
AINVLINSHOO MOIS2A OX 1071108

4

"ONITIIMQ WOO¥Q38 OML MIN ¥ WAO4 OL SNOISNILX3

4
40 NOILO3d3 ANV 9NITIAMA 9NILSIX3 40 NOISIAIQ-8NS J3SO40Ud

a9 Byilido ey agn

Mi.x\\ﬁwﬂ.,.._ \ m
{ 1= > 1
\ § ppoy JOSPUIM e

JEC IR

139

800Z LSNONV 8Z paipg 1N408LL080 334
03A04ddY SY "av0Yd YOSANIM'ELON

— NOILV]I1ddV SIHL

'QQq2 62 3d 'SAWYD 'NOQINILNNH "YILSIHINYWQA09 'QYO JOSANIM '€1 "ON

NSETE S
250|) tuim\l
T

W oo
8 8 £ ¢
& P © @
gz 4

& € et
n
sH S0

- EN N

nh 4K > |
Hamﬂ
o=z ®
Maoo
N‘W_QN
>
n o
= >
s 2

o
o~
wn
o
o
—
-



001/1

1102 ¥38W3.143s
¥10/80/1102
KNOILVYATTT INILSIXI

<

01525

‘2j09g
g

“oN Emaq
34y 6maq

'qQZ 62 3d 'SWYD 'NOIINLLNNH Y31 SIHINYWQ09 ‘AYOY JOSANIM ‘€1 "ON

o e

[l

]

DE

1v

INITIIMQ WOORQ38 OML MSN ¥ W04 OL SPOISN3LX3
40 NOLLI3Y3 QNV INITIIMQ INILLSIX3 4O NOISIAIQ-8NS QISOL0OYd

FRONT

140

REAR

SECTION

/

I DE

S

423louy

BUILDING DESIGH COHSULTANCY

Jack E Tyler. Telephone: 01480 394877



W

~J
- 001/1 apoog ‘0QZ 62 3d 'STWYD ‘NOQINLLNNH "YILSIHONYWA09 ‘QvOy YOSANIM ‘€1 ON
1102 338W31 435 ‘agnq ' I
< Y£0/80/1102 oN Smaq INITIIMQ WOOUQIE OML MIN ¥ WO OL SNOISNILXI
00T LSYIS INILSIXT 2 bmaq 40 NOLLORI ANV ONITEMQ SNILLSIX3 4O NOISIAIQ-8NS Q3SOdong
:' 1o3fouy
b A
3 _—
E I t‘
: oy 3
£ >
1 1
i
=g -
H
§
¥
<
K}
[Se]
=
N
" w
r_ - _—
{ >
(TS
~* m
D 2 = -
m
Lo
| — =z
<€
-1
a.
o o
o
i =3
—
13
—
v
or
L——————————-—‘— — W

141

BLILDING DESIGH COHSULTANCY

Jack £ Ty.zr: Telephone: 01480 394877



- 001/1 ‘2[pag ‘QQ2 62 3d 'SaWY2D ‘NOQONILNNH "¥ILSIHINYWQO9 ‘QYOY YJOSANIM ‘€1 ‘ON >
< 1102 ¥39W3aLd3s 210Q 1v St
. VZO/80/1102  “oNbma INITIZMA WOOUTIS DML MIN v WH0d 01 SNOISNALYE X 5
a()\O‘L.] QANNOYI INLLSTXI ‘3411, Bmaq 40 NOIL23¥3 ANV 9NITIEIMG ONILSIX3 40 NOISIAIQ-9NS QISO4OUd S‘ 0:5;
©
. 153fouy g S
_ S:
- = S
SR
S 8
Qe
S 5
o =
T4
Q s
-~ 5
h ~
Q
(YU
(S
— 3
= S -
1 | | [ (G ]
| prd
s D L -
n f- = L
T T = f: = i
| N N % »
(VN ]
5 2 ] | -
=X
e =1 /
%) ] j\.& -
3
 Sm—

FLOOR PLA

142



R%va 08p 10 “suoydaja] oA Yooy
AINYLINSHOD WIISIG IRITING

2>
o

'qQZ 62 3d 'SaWYD 'NOTINILNNH "YILSIHINYWA02 'QvYOd JOSANIM ‘€1 'ON

avas
215G
"opy Bmaq

2411 Bmag

001/1

1102 ¥3gW3a1d3s

SNITIEMQ WOORQI8 OML MIN ¥ WI0L 0L SNOISNILXD

4O NOLLOFY3 QNY ONITIBMA ONLISIX3 40 NOISIAIG-8NS Q3S0J0Ud

v90/80/1102

YO0 ANNOYI Q35040Yd

1oafouyd

13S0d0dd

jjom ybry ww gy Buijsixy T >

pauinjal

1

NV Td

yi1016 |

. w>_._w_ paJoys

(V1d 00714 ONDOUD

"Juesj o] |[om| 10} sy " ybly 69 of
24 Jybiay j|nm Jo uoly3IDS 3jON

SI"ON

uoISudy X3 p qm.ann_ —

4

00¢

Bujouz) pund __

od ybiywwpegy AIopunog s

pog-019 ;
AOpUIA AIN LN
| e N
. : J : "2 0 pupadusy
K R /ﬁ r\ ] 1dund ybry ww 008l
090" T44 : 9NN0T 040 -0 744 % y ., W abub pasod odd
39NN07 ﬁ o 7 39V4VD £
- 7]
~T S )
.. A W,ﬁ _ Wl:.
3 + ‘ = .. , ‘ ri
d ) ﬂn ssiosy 419 L
= ONINIG/LIM o1 pd ; y
S IR 00 o
09L-0 . | _I_A
“Bynaso 144 j _ _ ﬂ wapuoy: < a.uu_...._wwzm_ﬁ:mukﬁ_nw
ONINIG LI j DL O L By whogsy Burys:
1l q 47 (0 |
] m o 2o (305 B W = papypog b1y s
— - *$53230{ mu pasodosd
‘ 009 | Jﬂ T I:lﬁ
Ll
0)49d - ,
_m uop.Ing
il | . %E%ia s
1 ON

143



LL8F6E OSPI0 Puoydala] uaid] T yory
AORVLINSHOI KOIS3Q DRGNS

08T

o= : 03S0d 0¥ d

1102 Lﬂgohnvw UMDIPIY Y ‘a2y

>mMyI7T
4 X RBe
wmm WOZ 435 /.-
a8
MQ v 3¥ NOI 1J335S / 3a1s
S |
® m |

009€

|
o
)
"s
Y
[
|

"INITIIMQ WOOUT38 OML M3IN V WHOH o1

40 NOILOI¥I ANV OINITIE3MA INILSIXI JO NOISIAIQ

‘qQ2 62 3d "SEWYD ‘NOTINILNNH ‘YALSIHINYWA09 ‘Qvoy YOSANIM ‘€1 ‘'ON

<
<
—
INOY
- -
= w 1
£
£ | L
¢ vy T
1]
m, MN o m :
F e ,m & N ~= —
£ T
L] u?
SHS R
SIER
ﬂ ~
8 a
3 S m ‘Prouddy Auosne 0007 By ol puo Buisixa so
D Wuv_ N 25014 YISO OF SOLF LU FASGD 244 [Iy "BLON
S m BUYM SN 2N SMOTNIM
= M 31499904 paso(as STIvm
u ‘S JOOU B}2.10U0) '400Y
ﬂ 7 ﬂm _\% — —‘ 'SIHSINII ONV STYIHALYW Q350408



! -
50 001/1 apag 'QQz 62 34 'STWYD 'NOQINLLNNH "YILSIHINYWACS 'QvOd YOSANIM 'S ‘ON
e JIOZ ¥3EWIL4IS 240Q iV
v L0/80/1102 ‘o Bmaq ‘ONITIIMA WOOUQ38 OML MIN ¥ Wi04 O SNOTISNILX3
16674 15y14 QISOdOYd 21w bmag 40 NOLLOZYI ANV ONITIIMA ONILSIX3 40 NOISIAIG-8NS Q35040ud
§W'f“" so9fouy
!
H
2
?
E
3
:
<
&
P
hand o~
[ ] (-]
[FN ] | FS]
m m
m 1 b fan )
E’[-E I w
1 v
1 o
= ‘o
4 ; O
T g | a
o a
a T
R I
[=a] —
i I
 S— _
=y
<T
o |
[a W
a4
(en]
(e )
-
1w
p—
v
. o
i —_—————— e -—
— w

145

BUTLDING DESIGH CONSULTANCY

304877

J

Telephone: 01480

Tas
FEA N

T
SECK L T}

T



o
o~ 001/1 ‘3|pG '‘AQ2 62 3d 'STWYD ‘'NOQINILNNH "YALSIHINYWA09 ‘Qvod JOSANIM ‘€1 'ON
LO 1102 ¥38W3Ld3s 210q 1v
-— v#0/80/1102 "oy 5muq ONITIIMA WOOUQ38 OML MIN ¥ WaO4 O SNOISNALX3
av‘]d 4009 Q350d0Ud 2111y, GmaQ 40 NOILOFYI ANV INITIIMAQ ONILSIX3 4O NOISIAIG-8NS Q3ISOLOUd
jo3fouy
P
(
| N
— - o
- w
[ v
3 = ©
z ] (a1
e — 1 o
— [& 4
[+
‘ZZ
<<
\ w
| o
L o
S x

146

BUILDIHG DESIGH CONSULTANCY

e ded
[s]

1
GO/

Jack £ Tyler. Telephone: 01480 39



GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

147



-

1V

ANA08 (|00

L
AL

S |

Qw\f_wowm Hom 4B ry wwggy Burisix]
800z

any Lz
W.WH_HE. - O UQT
g f

Jued of [Joa] Jof sy *yBjy 009 of

‘pauipj 3 Guiyuo|d Buiysix3 a1 yybiay 194 Jo uoidog: ajopN

/ LT}

000-019

uoIsudixa pasodolq

'SNOLLYYILTY TWNYILNI QNY SNOTISNILX

'qQ2 62 3d 'SAWYD 'NOTINILNAH "¥ILSIHINYWAO02 "QYOY JOSANIM E1 "ON
dv3d QNV INOYd AYOLS ITMONIS HLIM 39vdv9 Q3HOVLLY QISOLOY

ELLZ)
‘31vq
‘amdq

‘001/1
B0, 3NNT

50/01/8002
Nvd 400174 GNNOY9 Q350404d

&

vo)d soatt pancs e (nsvouasy

o

-U|“ _ ROPUIM MIN I T V_
by T ,__ s b
_ _ _ : L._ _HT -2y o6 pup aiuny
== .\ =1 _:!I - 1qund yby wuw pog}
: g 36munb pasodosyg
: 09L-0 144 LI Wooy 0160 144 =
5 O 3ONNOT AWV 39v4Y9 £ ©
&
4
- b
. 1 ,juhl. | Wm_
-4 i T =
SiopalQ SPNOS tevoneisdo J 0po 19 _ L]
o /. - ~y " § QIS , . gt \
- ] ._, .; —_———— m .
T 86 0910
i ddY B UMOL Baxam s pauiDjor{[oM 3319
mmwh%oua_zs: ONINIO — ybry wwigQgy Buiysixd
uoisualxa p asodotd —)
= opo-o19
: poE N
oygd
L/

H140ON
Bujsuey puod __
od yby wwppgr A1ppunogajis




)

Selected face brick,

NOTE, PROPOSED MATERIALS AND FINISHES.
WINDOWS. White UPVC windows,

ROOF. .  Concrete roof tiles,
WALLS,

OO0 1 F80FLL, Pr‘eku\s% agp\pfowd

elevudion j
001/1 ‘AMVIS 'QQ2 62 34 'SEWYD 'NOQONLLNNH "d31SIHINVYWQO2 'QvOY JOSANIM ‘€1 ON' ,
80, INNT ‘31vQ .LV '
#0/01/8002 ‘aMaQ 'SNOLLVYILIV TYNIZLINI QNV SNOISNILX3
'SNO1LVA313 Q350404d dvY3Y ANV LNOYd AIYOLS I19NIS H1IM 3J9vdveo QIHIVLLY Q3SOdodd

2 \'?g

i AT
.1
E.g ‘.B
.-E "_L
i

3

Q)
!
E

& |
S D

<

rzﬂﬂ _ [ .

o " » 5 -

E;[; = TR S
: |
Vo

=

N —

R TS

149



OBOIFBOFVL- ! freviously

PPV md%raoloth :

001/1 3IVoS 'QQ2 62 34 "SAWYI ‘'NOQINLLNNH "YILSIHINYWA09 'QYOd YOSANIM ST 'ON
80.3NNL  31VQ v
£0/01/8002  "9MaQ 'SNOLLYYILTY TYNYILNI QNY SNOISNILXI
‘Nvd 400d 93S040ud dv3d ANV INOY¥d AJYOLS IONIS HLIM 39vdvo QIHIVLLY QISO40Yd

i

(m)]

= g W

O o =

6 2 m

2 30

g Y

I
! =
s

)
- I
‘!‘r
| ] !ﬂ
g
4
= I
] I
Sy : a
S / — ;

.
1
= |

150



Agenda ltem 6f

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 17 OCTOBER 2011

Case No: 1101264S73(RENEWAL OF CONSENT/VARY CONDITIONS)

Proposal: VARIATION OF CONDITION 1 OF PLANNING PERMISSION
0802184FUL TO EXTEND TEMPORARY CONSENT TO
DECEMBER 2015 FOR CONTINUATION OF USE OF
PORTABLE BUILDING AS 2 CLASSROOMS

Location: HUNTINGDONSHIRE REGIONAL COLLEGE CALIFORNIA
ROAD PE29 1BL

Applicant: HUNTINGDONSHIRE REGIONAL COLLEGE (FAO MRS E
MEGSON)

Grid Ref: 524224 272713

Date of Registration: 21.07.2011

Parish: HUNTINGDON
RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
1.1 This application site is located within the Regional College site,

towards the eastern corner of the campus. To the south and east of
the site are residential properties.

1.2 The application is for the retention of a portable building which is sited
within a car park area ‘C’ and used to provide two classrooms. The
building is cream in colour and measures approximately 16.75m by
9.832m and 3.512m in height. There is a ramp to the temporary
building to provide access for all.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 PPS1: "Delivering Sustainable Development"” (2005) contains
advice on the operation of the plan-led system.

2.2 Draft National Planning Policy Framework: Consultation (2011) -
sets out the Government’s key economic, social and environmental
objectives and the planning policies to deliver them. The intention is
that these policies will provide local communities with the tools they
need to energise their local economies, meet housing needs, plan for
a low-carbon future and protect the environmental and cultural
landscapes that they value. It seeks to free communities from
unnecessarily prescriptive central government policies, empowering
local councils to deliver innovative solutions that work for their local
area.

151



2.3 Policy Statement: planning for schools development (August
2011) — applies to both change of use development and operational
development necessary to the operational needs of the school and
sets out Government’'s commitment to support the development of
state-funded schools and their delivery through the planning system.
The Government wants to enable new schools to open, good schools
to expand and all schools to adapt and improve their facilities.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e ENV7 - requires new development to be of high quality which
complements the distinctive character and best qualities of the local
area and promotes urban renaissance and regeneration.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)
Saved policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure
Plan 2003 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk follow the links to environment,
planning, planning policy and Structure Plan 2003.

¢ No specific policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough
Structure Plan (2003) are relevant to this application.

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e En25 - New development will respect the scale, form, materials
and design of established buildings within the locality.

3.4 Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

e No specific policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan
Alteration (2002) are relevant to this application.

3.5 Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework
Approved Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning and then click on Planning Policy where there is a
link to the Local Development Framework Core Strategy.

152



3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

6.1

e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and economic
issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development. Criteria to be used to
assess how a development proposal contributes to sustainable
development includes: supporting the local economy and businesses
by providing lifelong learning and skills development.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire LDF Development Management
DPD: Proposed Submission 2010 are relevant

e C1: “Sustainable Design” — development proposals should take
account of the predicted impact of climate change over the expected
lifetime of the development.

e E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of the
surrounding environment and the potential impact of the proposal.

e H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

PLANNING HISTORY

Various applications for the site, including a number of temporary
consents which have subsequently been renewed until December
2015 for the following:

1100152873 - Renewal of planning permission 0600103FUL for
continued siting of temporary building for use as 52 place nursery
with play area

1100153S73 — Renewal of planning permission 0802896S73 for
continued siting and use of 2 temporary buildings for horticultural and
practical learning purposes

1100154S73 — Renewal of planning permission 0403660FUL for
continuation of use of portable buildings as changing rooms for a
temporary period

The other most recent application for the site is: 1001665FUL —
extension to provide new main entrance layer and atrium with break
out space over. Remodelling of front fagcade of main building, new
parking arrangements — permission GRANTED and works underway.
CONSULTATIONS

Huntingdon Town Council recommends APPROVAL (COPY
ATTACHED).

REPRESENTATIONS

No comments received within the consultation period.

153



7.1

7.2

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues to consider with this application are the principle of
the development and the impacts on the character and appearance of
the area and on the residential amenity of surrounding properties.

This application has been referred to the Development Management
Panel as the Town Council has recommended approval for the
retention of the building until 2013 only. Given this recommendation
and that the College are seeking approval until 2015, and that a
previous temporary consent was granted for three years, the time
period now sought cannot be approved under Delegated Powers.

Principle of Development

7.3

7.4

The Regional College had planned to relocate to new premises in
2011 and as such, a number of temporary consents were granted for
portable buildings to remain on site until this time. The relocation has
not taken place and a long-term refurbishment scheme is now in
place.

Given these long-term plans and the current economic climate, it is
considered that a temporary consent can be considered acceptable in
principle and the time period requested until 2015 seems reasonable
to allow for more permanent arrangements to be made.

Character and Appearance of Area

7.5

7.6

The building has been painted cream and is of a scale and form
which does not appear out of keeping within the site which has a
number of flat roofed buildings of a similar appearance. It is therefore
not felt that the temporary building appears incongruous within the
setting despite the public views.

Therefore, no Officer objections are raised to the siting of the
buildings for a further period of time as a result of the impacts upon
the character and appearance of the area.

Residential Amenity

7.7

7.8

The closest residential dwellings adjoining the college site are
situated approximately 25 metres from the application building. Given
the separation distance and that the use of the building is for teaching
purposes, it is not considered that the building has an adverse impact
upon residential amenity.

It is therefore considered that the retention of the buildings will not be
harmful to the residential amenity of the surrounding neighbours.

Conclusion

7.9

The proposed development is considered to be compliant with the
relevant national and local policy as it:

* Is acceptable in principle to aid the future development of the
school;

* Would not have a significantly harmful impact upon the character
and appearance of the area;

154



* Would not have a significant detrimental impact upon the amenity of
neighbours.

7.10 Taking national and local planning policies into account, and having
regard for all relevant material considerations, it is recommended that
planning permission be granted, subject to the imposition of an
appropriate condition requiring the removal of the building and the
site returned to its original state (car parking) prior to the 31st
December 2015.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

8. RECOMMENDATION — APPROVE subject to conditions to include
the following:
Nonstand Temporary permission until 31.12.2015 and the land

restored to its former condition
CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Ms Charlotte Fox Assistant Development
Management Officer 01480 388457

155



PAP/M8
HUNTINGDON TOWN COUNCIL

TR
PLANNING COMMENTS : 1°SEPTEMBER 2011 \o@\

[1101235FUL EAST |
BT Payphones, 11-13 Great Tower Street, London EC3R 5AQ

Replacement of telephone kiosk with kiosk combining public telephone and
machine - Land adjacent to Car Park Fronting 58 - 68 Mayfield Road, H ingdon.

Recommend APPROVAL.

1101260FUL » EAST
Mr & Dr Owen-Smith, 3 Old Houghton Road, Hartford PE29 1B

Erection of detached dwelling with double gaége and access driveway - Land at 3 Old
Houghton Road, Hartford, PE29 1YB

Recommended APPROVAL. T dwelling will have no detrimental impact on the
neighbouring properties or t6 the amenities of the neighbourhood.

1101263FUL EAST
Mr & Mrs D Brown, Mill Road, Hartford, PE29 1Y

Side and rear extensions to bungalow - 31 Mill Road, Hartford, PE29 1YJ

Recommiend APPROVAL. The proposed extension is considered an appropriate
development the existing dwelling.

1101264S73 EAST
Huntingdonshire Regional College, California Road, Huntingdon PE29 1BL

Variation of condition 1 of Planning Permission 0802184FUL to extend temporary
consent to December 2015 for continuation of use of portable building as 2 classrooms -
Huntingdonshire Regional College, California Road, Huntingdon PE29 1BL

Recommend APPROVAL. Planning permission should be subject to the time
limitation of no more than two years. During that time the Panel would like to see
a permanent solution resolved.

1101315FUL EAST |
Mr M Weedon/Ms M Gathercole, 7 Florida Avenue, Hartford PE29 TP_Y_,_MM"”"—#—'——_

-
Single storey extension to rear of properv’g_/;_j_ﬂer'rd’é"Avenue, Hartford, PE29 1PY

Recommend AEE!ZQVaIr"---”“

e

[

156



Development Management Panel : .
Application Ref: 1101264S73 H U n -I-I n g d O n S h | re

Location: Huntingdon DISTRICT C€COUNTZ CIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

Scale: 1:2500



Q?
0{%’\
7 R
Lo

»

&
G

Temporary building ¢
for retention

2R3

oS
S ‘0‘3;

//

sz.o



. ]
\Q\QN\\\Q 707 .7 Nwi S \.m\*w\ud V250400 LZ16LE 0810 XBy
‘ON '9HA IVOS Egithe il COTBLEOBIIOIBL e Tvworoay
'/ AHIHENOCTONLINNH
| \SATINAH L W WSS T SMOSOHIg 778 - 29 omsobpiaimy |
ToJn oz \bnos 1. ey (s noyes Gsmony ’ “esainy
3190 Al NMYHO NOILY2O0T , L CEOY BlUIGHED
! L bt LSy 0091 ) (220 A2 HPV1L5/%7
w IV W <
07 s o1 s o AN 4 Lapsam
M TTTTTT T .@ N P @ )
A5 1
S sirm o O m@@v vors [BDFD CB| coss | B 7]
T 7777 B @S G H@ =% m
7z |
Y079 INYIINIING VLK g b
%Q. !
- \\\\\\\\ 7 :W
I U3A1303y o Q
| wzane.g g gm
A. S8 MaTeTe NN &l 9/ o~ X
et F L J Ws Wi Ty
ILEL 4 0
| g 8
s WOTHSSHTT FT9N07 259 %S
/] C0b 2/ ,,M
e N NISENLI0 UISHONS
T oW ¥y
A oy 00U w IR
A 7 riiemis on R
- 2 (ot R . N7 3
. Mty BT 7UE a0 7 oo SSZH IMISIXT
s P ‘ = TS
OMET Ly %
o ok ~ = e w\g TETh L L L TX
i - » . . e
A SB[ s vy ovusp L amsg \ﬁ T

199




1nouyim suckan o

biwp B OHA JORGo 07 jou

1] U000, 10 Aviedoid syl st Bumbip s1u7607 payL

DL

LO/SLSLN #9019
A3y on Big WooJssD|n) 7 idé
£V ® 0oLl SUOIIDAB|T
Elleds v% CO_ﬁ_
Ur9'a BO60°60
UMD 8100 ey

WIo0JSSD) 2|qnog]

absjjo) [puUOIbay SuIySUOPBUUN$xn

10%{0.4d

asy
11174
ENTINEK

sburwado Huny doy| ‘episy

POGL0 X04  GG¢
MIOA UOTBWIUNLE peyLd

PO UDDLIRWIY SJOOP [DussiUl G

K348 yupy unood
Kua sopklod wig Bupoaos 1064 4

9 0610 suoydepe |
UIIDNDYIC

- - W01 6

VTN
_Crzj || maeppog

c

s

ra
o

dn desp m/o

J00p yoa; wuge Ly Kkdouo

2

LH9B8'GG| Daly JOOl4 |D}O] NvId

Wiceg'o

0GZL * 0622 N—DAd SMopum ¢
€6 3 8L 404 | ¥
Sg }sepeu anig jusiog ioeQ juy (Igy) QoIS eompoy M/ yz/1) e ) iymmv/\w
SpIM wwige Buuoniiog g I .4
SS 3 00 42 SHYOT0 ]
SH 1s8ipau S11um, SMOPUIM wgz bey Buiped puisiuy \>mm_0.._
uizagy sajoN f
JBAlS Jnopon) jo0y |
i 0 ot 9 WZLdg |
401 S@ 18808 AJSBUOH NS DWRYXT Z WOOMSSYTD S — | WOONESYTD
1€ 0l oi 5 SRASHT #/D bumy jmtEasn AR % 7 | o m
S8 }s94psu AjssucH swy ||y aowryr shounsud /o BUNln J0CRieNg  mgy x| BELELEO AN m m
¢
i£ 2 04 IWEONLAY] PUY (0400 ce3 TG OV o 390 _ i
48 S8 yseivdu A}sauop SUWNPD Iy [ : |
1§ 3 ot 4ol oo mpssnios 1o !
sS4 183ipsu Aysauoy S|OM . | !
i SPRSIOS Ssoys eas 0L/ BEE0MN BT LBCBOMN e JWBTCLL i LLLBCEDNN { SZLBTEOMN
SUWIBYDS UNOJO) [DWIBYXT Joaas POUSHAS Gxanop 3¥OLS .
! | o
RS pREAS oS - et £, = ; o
P L3 : T -3 T
= s A 7
oy me [ 9
: i - . I
mnr L g WG/ 9l
, d  NOILVATT3 vV NOILVYAZT3
+ J0H w [ ,
H ]
| _
! 7
i N
| o ) N i
3 NOILvA33
: . : I
o | : |
o == = = S | W
—_ i - . i | H
ﬁb _‘ el M S e i W
> | |

o

PaP

(40 3OS 30U on

160



Agenda Iltem 69

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 17 OCT 11

Case No: 1101200FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: REMOVAL OF BRICK WALL AND REPLACEMENT WITH
1.8M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

Location: LAND OFF BYDAND LANE AND REAR OF PARK
CRESCENT LITTLE PAXTON

Applicant: KIER HOMES (FAO MR J GRIFFITHS)
Grid Ref: 518777 262557
Date of Registration: 25.07.2011

Parish: LITTLE PAXTON

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This application relates to a section of the perimeter wall of the former
industrial estate, known locally as ‘Bydand Lane’. The land has been
cleared, in anticipation of future residential development, which has not
been implemented and is the subject of ongoing discussions with the
Local Planning Authority.

1.2 The applicant has identified that a section of wall, in their ownership,
approximately 26m in length and 2.9m in height, to the rear of 29, 31
and 33 Park Avenue is structurally unsound and needs to be replaced.
Unlike the wider walled perimeter, this section is constructed of a
modern brick and not considered to be part of the historic wall.

1.3 This application is for the demolition of that section of wall and
replacement with a gravel board, vertical close boarded fence and
trellis with a cumulative height of approximately 2.5m. This will connect
to the existing close boarded fencing forming the rear boundaries of 9-
19 Park Crescent.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 PPS1: “Delivering Sustainable Development” (2005) contains advice
on the operation of the plan-led system.

2.2 Draft National Planning Policy Framework: Consultation (2011) -
sets out the Government’s key economic, social and environmental
objectives and the planning policies to deliver them. The intention is
that these policies will provide local communities with the tools they
need to energise their local economies, meet housing needs, plan for a
low-carbon future and protect the environmental and cultural

161



landscapes that they value. It seeks to free communities from
unnecessarily prescriptive central government policies, empowering
local councils to deliver innovative solutions that work for their local
area.

For full details visit the government website
http://www.communities.gov.uk and follow the links to planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links
to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new development
to be of high quality which complements the distinctive character and
best qualities of the local area and promotes urban renaissance and
regeneration

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)
Saved policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure
Plan 2003 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk follow the links to environment,
planning, planning policy and Structure Plan 2003.

None relevant.

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)
Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant
and viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District Council will
expect new development to respect the scale, form, materials and
design of established buildings in the locality and make adequate
provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

3.4 Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002)
Saved policies from the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002
are relevant and viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan -
Then click on "Local Plan Alteration (2002)

None relevant.

3.5 Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at

http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then

click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

162



3.6

3.7

6.1

CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” - all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable development,
having regard to social, environmental and economic issues. All
aspects will be considered including design, implementation and
function of development. Including reducing water consumption and
wastage, minimising impact on water resources and water quality and
managing flood risk.

Policies from the Development Management DPD : Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

E1: “Development Context” - development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of the
surrounding environment and the potential impact of the proposal.

H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the living
conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or nearby
properties.

Supplementary Planning Document:
The Huntingdonshire Design Guide 2007

PLANNING HISTORY
The most relevant applications are

04011560UT — Residential development — Allowed on appeal but now
lapsed.

0802209REM — Approval of reserved matters in respect of
appearance, layout and scale for the erection of 49 dwellings. —
approved but now lapsed.

0802883REM — Approval of landscaping in respect of the erection of
49 dwellings — approved but now lapsed.

1002018REP — Replacement of planning permission 04011560UT
(Appeal App/H0520/A/04/1161944) for outline planning permission for
residential development — Pending consideration

CONSULTATIONS
Little Paxton Parish Council — recommend refusal (Copy Attached)

REPRESENTATIONS

2 letters of objection have been received from one property objecting
on the grounds of:

* Loss of privacy and security

* Established landscaping will be removed.

* Overlooking

* Works being undertaken to accommodate plot 46 (of the approved
residential scheme)

163



71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

1 letter supporting this proposal on the grounds of:

* Resident contacted Kier to advise wall was crumbling.

* Survey has confirmed wall to be unsafe and to be replaced.

* Concern that falling bricks will result in injury, particularly in high
winds.

* Wall in current condition poses risk to family.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues for consideration are the principle of development,
Impact on the amenity of neighbours and the design of the proposal.

The principle of development:

As part of the 2008 approval of reserved matters for this site, it was
conditioned that the historic wall shall be maintained. However, this
particular section of wall is clearly not part of the historic wall, is
constructed of a modern, industrial red fletton brick and is unstable.
Given the modern construction of this section of wall, the existing
timber fenced rear boundary of neighbouring properties on Park
Crescent, future limited views of this section of wall and poor stability
of the wall, the replacement of this section with a gravel board, vertical
close boarded fencing and trellis is acceptable in principle.

Impact on residential amenity:

Concerns have been expressed about increased overlooking. The plot
immediately north of Nos. 29, 31 & 33 Park Avenue of the previously
approved residential development was designed with 1 ground floor
window serving a wc and one window between ground and 1st floors,
serving the stairwell. There were no 1st floor windows on the southern
elevation of the approved dwelling (plot 46).

The resulting boundary will be approximately 0.4m lower than the
existing unstable wall. The upper 600mm of the boundary will be
trellised, to allow for residents to transfer landscaping and encourage
landscaping to mitigate any perceived overlooking. A new boundary
2.5m in height would maintain privacy and is not considered to be
detrimental to the amenity of residents.

The design of the proposal:

The fencing detail has been designed to replicate the 1.8m close
boarded fence to the rear of properties on Park Crescent. However
additional height has been created by way of the gravel board and
trellis. This design is considered to be in keeping with the immediate
area and is therefore acceptable.

Other matters raised:

Mature landscaping on the boundary wall:

The applicant has confirmed that notification of the unstable wall was
sent to residents in July. One neighbour has objected to this proposal
on the grounds of mature landscaping on the section of wall to the rear
of the property. The applicant has confirmed that they are the owners
of the wall. This is a matter of civil law between the owners of the
landscaping and the owner of the wall. However, a trellis has been

164



7.7

7.8

proposed with the hope that landscaping can be transferred where
possible. For that reason this consideration can be given very limited
weight.

Conclusion:

This proposal is recommended for support as it is considered that it
complies with planning policy and will not be significantly detrimental to
the amenity of residents, will not be detrimental to the existing historic
wall and is in keeping with the locality. The proposal is considered
acceptable whether or not the ‘Bydand Lane’ site is redeveloped. In
light of National Guidance, Development Plan Policies and other
material considerations, permission may be granted for the
development as proposed.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or
an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to
accommodate your needs.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subiject to conditions to include the
following:

02003 Time Limit (3yrs)

Nonstand - Stain of fence

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Clara Kerr Development Management Officer
01480 388434

165



Page 1 of 1

Parker-Seale, Debra (Planning)

From: Little Paxton Parish Council [littlepaxton@hotmail.com]

Sent: 02 September 2011 11:06 \]\_ﬁ
To: Kerr, Clara (Planning Serv); DevelopmentControl [}F‘ \M
Subject: 1101200 FUL Land off Bydand Lane and rear of Park Crescent '\3\6‘\\

Clara

The Parish Council does not support this application and would wish this historic wall repaired and made
good.

Jenny

Mrs. Jennifer Gellatly, Parish Clerk, Little Paxton Parish Council. Tel: (01480) 470193 email:
littlepaxton@hotmail.com DISCLAIMER: If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and
delete the email and all attachments immediately. This email (including any attachments) may contain
confidential and/or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient any reliance on, use,
disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copy of this email or attachments is strictly prohibited. It has been
checked for viruses but the contents of an attachment may still contain software viruses, which could damage
your computer system. We do not accept liability for any damage you sustain as a result of a virus introduced
by this email or any attachment and you are advised to use up to date virus checking software. Email
tranmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error free, This email is not intended nor should it be taken
to create any legal relations, contractual or otherwise. If verification is required, please request a hard copy
version. We are not bound by or liable for any opinion, contract or offer to contract expressed in any email.

02/09/2011 166



Development Management Panel |
Application Ref: 1101200FUL Huntin g donshire

Location: Litle Paxton DI STRICT COUNZ CIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

NN ] 0 /
4 = WA Little Paxton /3

i :P’ i L & W T ;5', :\'2
Se . A ; '
- fa 3 -
Uittt P:—]xl(?l‘ﬁ\:‘ﬂ‘ i d 4 { il
Wouod T 'F k‘('
3 N / ; /f 7 ¥ ‘fw% i
i S S [ fHe N
it === i aHeTgd ||
W B N A P
. ] ! 3 gy ) Mot ' §
1 5 ; \ '_A "-]Eﬁ fr s S 'Y
EeRRey e
‘ Y SRt 4 SmN
o B if 5
> i
=l [

14

4
[]

<

Algonquin

LI

Scale: 1:1250 1 67



- 90-1X3-ALS-90

TuoKIADY :ou Bumolg

“PajDs aq Jou PNoYS BUMDIR SIYL
“AIBJDIDBWILLL JDDHYDIY 3Ul
6} popodos 8q 6 $8IUBABIONP Auy
“31IS UO PE3D3UD Bq O SUOISUBLUIP IV
‘pa|osjoid |YBUAdOD @ 5| BUMDIP SiL

90°50°10 PAACAVAL
a)0q 18j098

HN

:AQ paxo8uD 1AQ umpig

DJ\3904 10130 PIOPUDIS\SBUIMDIA POD\'D
“woyoo07 24 Bumoig

$450d Jaquuil UQ sllisil Yim
80us4 paplpnog as0|1D

‘Bumoig

Tvi3a
QYVANVIS

UBAWOD IDHUBPISSY 131} D SI POJILIT SOUIOH USPBIML
03'50ICYUBPBIM BUSWIOIEP IDIIUYDS} IDW3
££8TTT 08Y 10 XOd  8Z/a/¥ 08 (0191
ABT 613d
anysebpuquod
SI03N 1S
19314S Uoinyd
Aisqaniys syl

:josfoid

—— SOWOH —

NAHADIM L

¥

(Somoug o} a1pb 10y)
I BuiXy ©40d [IOM

WWIQOE UlW Woyoq

@ doy sanuad wwQg Aeas
IDJLIS JO JOYDUD (9717 1Y OU
101} aA88[s YOMDY Yim ajojd
I0M PBIDIL MS WILLOSXCO | X

Iore@ Buixi4
2i0|d IIPM
3io|d |jom WILIDOE U

o} padiown
29 o} |Ip1 sy

*92u8y

woyjog g doj sayuso
wiwigoe Aleas paaoiddo
ID|ILUS 1O JOYDUD
(921214 ou jo1) araa)s
JomDy Yiim 8oid [jom
P2I0a MS WWOSXS/ X4

papipog 850/

aplfi

siojaq Ag

8|0g  AsY

SNOISIAIY ONIMVIA

paysop umoys sjjal; jo doyj o} 7

1B 5D PaAD|ds 05XS/

uIDjs paij10ads SA81D3I O
paipdald poomios UMDS
pajpal 89 0} AW} IV “aN

)

<

sysod ojul pasnoy

S|IDJ SIID G/XG/ JO U - NV1d
'sisod m/s 001X00 1
‘July paaoiddp of 5
510 0081
.7 e
sioLep o[ ]
si@auibua [DINfoNIYS ﬁl_ vﬁ 4 |
Jad sp a¢ o} J 7 _ & 7
SUOIDPUNOJ BL2J0U0D — - ﬂ K
el - |
KRG |7 K s
OO NPY NI SIS ATIN
R | R | e
2 PN NS TN N
\/A\\/A\\//\\\//\\\//\\, W\\/«\\/@A\\A\\&/a\\@@@@&&@@/@@&@ﬁ ﬁ\m\\«\\«\\«\\««
—
R wv v#, 1
) bl s s SN e sl e s s el e s ) Pl s s L R ml

2011
/VA //\/(//, YA
D w\\ ORI s
R ROy,
NN /7\\/7\\/7 1103 o
RN XNO SR
RO RRURAGLI
SRR RSN
pioog [9ADIG
I WWISZX0S |
>
Buipiooq pabpa
JeY|De} WWISZXOS |
sjsod ojul pasnoy
Bl SJI0J WY LULIG /XS,
spsod
L  M/sWW00LX00L
Buipivogq o doy
UM [2A8] |ID)
7r e 'sluo do| 05%X5/

sjs0d Usamjad paxy
AlIDDILBA D\D WWs

3 |RJUOZHOY D\ D Wiy |
40 MS UL XS JO
PaI2NIsUOD aq o} SIIRIL

(0081 AllLDIdAL)

BulmpIp PHOM [DLIBIXS 885 8dUB] JO JyBisl Jo4

_
_

o o s
;

i
I
T
L
I
[l
I
!
I
1
I
H
il
I
I
I
|
T
I
T T
|y
I
[

L]

LAl

[ T W (I

LI

[

7
7
::_;::_::_:_:_:::f
T e |

|
L
L

I,

i

£0-1X3-A1S-920 "ON ©dd 33S S1SOd F1FIDNOD JO4
S0-1X3-Q1S-20 "ON DY 33S §1SOd ¥FIWIL 4O

168



GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

169



gm0t 1 00

€0-1d-291)
oG Buang

Felso
1]
i
12
g

ueid a|us
Dumaig

UOpXEd I
eue puepAg
4o puer]

B

\

pajwi] sawoH uapbim |
Rt

EVLEVE S86.0 S9N
SBLOZB ZLS 40 XB/0L

y16SLa1

puepmy

uoBuippky

jeens Uiy L}

P2y - 1edoo)) sjeyIy esino

AT
®
5

i

‘paoe|dal aq
0} |[em 30lq JO Uopoes
‘sajeolpul aul| an|g

VENEREL

A

_ma 42 07
" 930N LISIONINNY I

M IPERINER
oY dvikannouian

e




YH - 0L0H/£52

Lt vsning 01 Lawnsiig:

FHOLS ST J0r ks BUMIID $i|,
"ABIDIGILL L 383y 2 S

€ Depods) 80 Of tapud BoNa Auy

I UC BI1IRD I 6 SUOEUEI gy

PRATEIEK 1 BRALED 1 5 Bubai Siqy

LOILST 00T
200 ELEH

O

Ay payosyD A umBay

UK PUEPAG-£ ST\ s Iasitiumex) ped\ia
YOG @y Buroig

IncAe) Buuueyy

Bupoig

uogxed 3]

BUE puepAg  osiow

AOdURD Lo AN M) O POUL R webbay

92 o9 i U A 10344 8] Rmisy
SERCEEORVI0 XD BZLTLF ORYL0 10y

AR2 4150 _

SALSOOTAIDT
HOBN )5
1BI4S DI
AR B,

— SaWoH —

NAGOIML

¥

reg hg ewg Ay

9% 3 0b b2 104

LoneAR|3 Jeay

100} 15114

uoneaa|3 aplis

Jooj4 punous

49NN01

uoneAs|3 apis

UORBA3|T U0

=T
L]

R
— m].’
II’ U ——
2 e e i
WH:HHHH\NH!\HII.\|HHMHHHJMH\HI|

I

171



This page is intentionally left blank

172



Agenda ltem 7

AGENDA ITEM NO.
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 17 October 2011

APPEAL DECISIONS
(Report by Planning Services Manager (Development Management))

WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS

1. Appellant: Mr Daniels and Mr Westwood
Agent: Partners in Planning
Erection of two dwellings and raised
planting bed, following demolition of wall and
two metal sheds Dismissed
01.09.11
Between Great Northern Street Car Park
and 67 Ermine Street
Huntingdon

2. Appellant: Mr | Barrett
Agent: Grounds and Co

Residential development Dismissed
67 Station Road, 02.09.11
Warboys

3. Appellant. Mr & Mrs Wright
Agent: Paul Mitchell & Co
Pitched roof addition on flat roofed stables Dismissed

Two Hoots Farm, Sawtry Way 08.09.11
Wyton

4. Appellant: Mr & Mrs Death
Agent: Andrew S Campbell Associates
Residential development (2 dwellings) Dismissed

North of 2 and 3 Home Farm Close 08.09.11
Colne

Application for Costs Against Council Refused

173



WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS

1.1001673FUL Erection of two dwellings and raised planting beds

following demolition of wall and two metal sheds
Between Great Northern Street and 67 Ermine Street
Huntingdon

Mr Daniels and Mr Westwood

Planning permission was refused by Development Management Panel at its meeting
held on 20 December 2010 contrary to the recommendation of the Town Council for
the following reasons:-

1.

The poor design, scale, proportions and siting of the dwellings are not in keeping
with the surrounding development and would create an incongruous
development. The proposal would be overdominant and cause a detrimental
impact to the visual amenity of the area and would not protect, preserve or
enhance the historic asset of the Huntingdon Conservation Area. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Development Plan Policy and Development Management
DPD proposed submission 2010.

The setting, bulk and mass of the dwellings would cause an unacceptable
overbearing impact on the existing adjacent dwellings to the detriment of their
residential amenity. The application also fails to demonstrate that there will be no
adverse odour impact on the occupiers of the proposed dwellings from ventilation
sources associated with the adjacent restaurant. The proposal is therefore
contrary to Development Plan Policy and Development Management DPD
proposed submission 2010.

The Inspector’s Reasons

o The appeal site lies at the edge of Huntingdon town centre within the
Conservation Area. It lies behind development fronting Ermine Street and
together with the Bongo Raj restaurant projects into the car park, reflecting
the original pattern of long narrow plots. The proposed pair of two storey
semi-detached dwellings would be aligned at right angles to the Ermine
Street frontage. The use of gault brick, slate and stained timber would
reflect the traditional materials in the area and the Inspector accepted the
removal of the sheds would result in a tidier appearance. However, the
scale of the buildings would appear incongruous and would be too high to
reflect the subordinate relationship to the existing buildings that would be
expected here. The Inspector concluded that the development would fail to
preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the Conservation
Area.

o The gable end of the dwellings would be prominent and overbearing in the
outlook from the first floor flats at 67 Ermine Street and their neighbours.
The Inspector was concerned about the relationship between the
amenity/bin store and the new dwellings. If this space was available to be
shared between several flats and the new dwellings it would be next to a
living room window of the dwelling and could result in noise and
disturbance for the occupiers and loss of privacy. He concluded that the
development would be harmful to the living conditions of the occupants of
the neighbouring and proposed dwellings.

The appeal was dismissed.

174



2.

10012890UT Residential development
67 Station Road
Warboys
Mr | Barrett

Planning permission was refused under delegation agreement in accordance with the
recommendation of the Parish Council for the following reasons:-

1.

The dwelling as shown as plot 2 is outside of the built-up area of Warboys and
within the countryside. A new dwelling in this position would be detrimental to the
character and appearance of the countryside by eroding the loose knit pattern of
development on the edge of the settlement. As such the proposal would be
contrary to Development Plan Policy and Development Management DPD
proposed submission 2010.

Noise and disturbance generated by the more intensive use of the vehicle access
would be detrimental to the amenities of the bungalow at No. 67 contrary to
Development Plan Policy and Development Management DPD proposed
submission 2010.

The Inspector’s Reasons

) The proposed development would be in the long garden to the rear of 67
Station Road, with one bungalow close to the centre of the site and the
other close to the south western boundary. While there is some
development in depth at Ash Close and Coronation Avenue, from Nos. 67
to 101 the dwellings have very long back gardens where there is no
backland development. The Inspector found it more important to establish
whether the site relates more to the open countryside than lies within the
open countryside. He accepted that the boundary at the end of the garden
marks the start of open countryside and considered that the garden
becomes more closely related to the countryside the further it is from the
dwelling. He found that the dwelling on plot 2 would relate more to the open
countryside and would therefore be subject to policies for development in
the countryside.

o The access to the bungalows would be along the existing narrow drive to
the side of No. 67. In the Inspector’s judgement the traffic generated by two
dwellings would result in unacceptable noise and disturbance for the
occupants of No. 67.

The appeal was dismissed.

3.

1100334FUL Erection of pitched roof addition onto existing flat roof
stable to be used as storage
Two Hoots Farm
Sawtry Way
Wyton
Mr & Mrs Wright

Planning permission was refused under delegation agreement in accordance with the
recommendation of the Parish Council for the following reason:-

1.

The scale and form of the proposed development (9 metres by nearly 18 metres
and 4.6 metres in height including two staircases) fails to have regard to the scale
and simple form of the existing stable block and its addition would appear out of

175



keeping with its context and have an adverse impact on the rural landscape
contrary to Development Plan Policy and Development Management DPD
proposed submission 2010.

The Inspector’s Reasons

The appeal site consists of an open area that is mainly grassed. There is a
cluster of relatively large buildings at Manor Farm which is separated from
the site by a field. To the south and west are adjoining fields, and as such
the surrounding area is predominantly open countryside. The Inspector
considered the proposal would not only more than double the height of the
building but would also effectively increase its depth. The proposed
structure would be above the existing hedge and would be prominent in
views from Sawtry Way, the adjacent footpath and the surrounding
countryside. In addition, the proposal would give the appearance of a top
heavy structure, accentuated by the projecting front gable which together
with the expanse of slate roof would make it appear as an incongruous
building in its rural setting. The Inspector concluded that the proposal would
have an adverse effect on the character and appearance of the surrounding
countryside.

The appeal was dismissed

4. 10010430UT Residential development (2 dwellings)

North of Home Farm Close
Bluntisham Road

Colne

Mr and Mrs C Death

Planning permission was refused by Development Management Panel at its meeting
held on 20 September 2010 contrary to the recommendation of the Parish Council for
the following reason:-

1.  The site is outside the built up area of Colne and in the countryside for the
purposes of the Development Plan and emerging planning guidance.
Development in the countryside will only be permitted where it is essential to the
operation of agriculture and other uses appropriate to a rural area. The proposal
would represent a harmful visual intrusion which would adversely affect the
character and appearance of the site and the setting of the area in general. As
such the proposal would be contrary to Development Plan Policy and
Development Management DPD proposed submission 2010.

The Inspector’s Reasons

The site consists of a mainly grassed area of land adjacent to Home Farm
Close and to the west of York House. It is accessed from a driveway that
provides access to 2 large dwellings which have been converted from their
agricultural use. To the west of the site are open fields, although a timber
fence gives the boundary a domestic appearance, the surrounding area
has a rural character and appearance. The built-up area defined in the
LDFCS lists three exceptional circumstances one of which is gardens at the
edge of the settlement where these relate more to the surrounding
countryside than the built-up parts of the village. The Inspector could see
no significant change to the built-up parts of the village since the previously
dismissed appeal in 1995 and the proposal would not represent an infill
development within Colne.

Although the site has a hedgerow and fence along its boundary to the west,
the proposed buildings would be seen above this in views across the

176



surrounding countryside. They would appear as additional built
development beyond the garden to York House. As such the proposal
would harm the green and open rural character and appearance of that
area.

o The Inspector considered the representations made with regard to the draft
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), but attached reduced weight
to it as it is a consultation draft document that could be changed. It
reinforces the presumption in favour of sustainable development and he
accepted that in this respect the appeal site is in a relatively sustainable
location close to a school, the services and facilities of Colne and
Bluntisham and access to bus services to St Ives. However, the Inspector
found that the proposal would not accord with development plan policies in
that it would be outside of the built-up area of Colne.

The appeal was dismissed.
APPLICATION FOR AN AWARD OF COSTS AGAINST THE COUNCIL

. The Inspector considered the application for costs in the light of Circular
03/2009 and all relevant circumstances. He was satisfied that the reason
for refusal was complete, precise, specific and relevant to the application
and the Council has given relevant consideration. The evidence produced
does not support the applicants’ claims that Council members were given
misleading advice by the Council officers. Although the definition of the
built-up area is open to some degree of interpretation, the report to DMP
gives reasons why the applicants’ arguments regarding inclusion of the
site as part of the built-up area of the village cannot be accepted. The
Inspector agreed with the officers’ conclusions on this matter. He
concluded that the Council has not prevented or delayed development
which clearly should be permitted and its evidence provides a respectable
basis for the reason for refusal.

The application for an award of costs against the Council was refused.

177



FORTHCOMING APPEALS

NONE

178



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 ST. IVES WEST URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK
	4 DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - DEFERRED ITEM
	5a Huntingdon
	5b Holme
	6a Sawtry
	6b Warboys
	6c Brampton
	6d Godmanchester
	6e Godmanchester
	6f Huntingdon
	6g Little Paxton
	7 APPEAL DECISIONS

